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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), which statements
involve substantial risk and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements, which are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about us, generally relate to future events or our future financial or operating performance. In some cases, you can identify these
statements by forward-looking words such as “believe,” “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “design,” “intend,” “expect,” “could,”
“plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “seek,” “should,” “would,” “target,” “project” or “contemplate” or the negative version of these words and other
comparable terminology that concern our expectations, strategy, plans, intentions or projections. Forward-looking statements contained in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to, statements about:

• our ability to attract and engage users and attract and expand our relationships with brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and
distributors;

• our future results of operations, including trends in revenue, costs, operating expenses and key metrics;

• our ability to compete successfully in competitive markets;

• our expectations and management of future growth;

• our ability to manage our supply chain, manufacturing, distribution and fulfillment, including the ability to forecast demand and manage
our inventory;

• our ability to enter new markets and manage our expansion efforts, including internationally;

• our ability to attract and retain management, key employees and qualified personnel;

• our ability to effectively and efficiently protect our brand;

• our ability to maintain, protect and enhance our intellectual property and not infringe upon others’ intellectual property;

• our continued use of open source software;

• our estimated Serviceable Addressable Market, or SAM, and Total Addressable Market, or TAM;

• our ability to prevent serious errors, defects or vulnerabilities in our products and software;

• the adequacy of our capital resources to fund operations and growth;

• our ability to remain in compliance with laws and regulations that currently apply or become applicable to our business both
domestically and internationally;

• Petrus’ significant influence over us and our status as a “controlled company” under the rules of the Nasdaq Global Select Market, or
the Exchange;

• expectations regarding the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the related responses by governments and private industry on our
business and financial condition, as well as the financial condition of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, online and e-
commerce channels and users; and

• the other factors identified under the section titled “Risk Factors” appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We caution you that the foregoing list may not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. These statements are only predictions based primarily
on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. There are important factors that could cause our actual results, events or circumstances to differ materially from the
results, events or circumstances expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including those factors discussed in the section titled
“Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. You should specifically consider the numerous risks outlined in the section
titled “Risk Factors.” Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks and uncertainties emerge from
time to time and it is not possible for us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of any of these forward-looking statements.
Moreover, the forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K relate only to events as of the date on which the statements
are made. We undertake no obligation to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to
reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect new information or the occurrence of unanticipated
events, except as required by law. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements
and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of
any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or investments we may make.

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements
are based upon information available to us as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and while we believe such information forms a
reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our statements should not be read to indicate that we
have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain
and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.
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PART I

Item 1. Business 

Overview

At Cricut, our mission is to help people lead creative lives.

We have designed and built a creativity platform that enables our engaged and loyal community of 6.4 million users, as of December 31,
2021, to turn ideas into professional-looking handmade goods. With our highly versatile connected machines, design apps and accessories and
materials, users create everything from personalized birthday cards, mugs and T-shirts to large-scale interior decorations and more. Our cloud-
based software enables us to update the functionality and features of existing physical and digital products, and to release new products that
seamlessly integrate with our platform. This makes our platform broadly extensible and empowers our users to unlock ever-expanding creative
potential.

Cricut often becomes a huge part of our users’ creative lives, serving as the foundation for their journey of creativity. Our users’ journeys
typically begin with the purchase of a connected machine and expand across our family of products as users harness the power of our platform.
Our users have demonstrated continued engagement with their connected machines over time, which results in purchases of subscriptions and
accessories and materials long after they first purchase a connected machine. As of December 31, 2021, 60% of our users created on their
connected machines in the last 90 days and 81% created on their connected machines in the last 365 days.

We enable users to be inspired, create and share projects with the Cricut community and to follow others doing the same. Our users join
the Cricut community to share projects and inspire others, both on our platform and across social media. Our community of users has scaled
significantly over time, and our number of users grew by 50% from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019, 71% from December 31, 2019 to
December 31, 2020, and 48% from December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2021.

Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share seamlessly. Our software is
cloud-based meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any time, across desktop or mobile devices. Our software
aggregates billions of data points of our users’ contributions, giving us valuable insights into our users’ preferences and behaviors. We use our
data science capabilities to continuously improve our software and products, driving further engagement. As a result, our business model is
characterized by strong user engagement and diversified sales across product categories.

Our portfolio of connected machines cut, write, score and create decorative effects using a wide variety of materials including paper, vinyl,
leather and more. We strive for our users’ journeys to be both inspiring and intuitive, so we take great care to design connected machines that
are beautiful and easy to use. Our connected machines are designed for a wide range of uses and available at a variety of price points:

• Cricut Joy for personalization on-the-go, $179.99 MSRP

• Cricut Explore for cutting, writing and scoring, $249.99 - $299.99 MSRP

• Cricut Maker for cutting, writing, scoring and adding decorative effects to a wider range of materials, $399.99 MSRP

We offer free design apps, in-app purchases and subscription offerings that enable our users to create and complete projects. On our apps,
users can find inspiration, purchase or upload content like fonts and images, design a project from scratch or find a vast array of ready-to-make
projects on both mobile and desktop devices. All users can access a select number of free images, fonts and projects from our design apps or
upload their own. In addition, we offer a wider selection of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte, including licensed content from
partners with well-known brands and characters, like major motion picture studios. We also provide two subscription offerings, Cricut Access and
Cricut Access Premium. Cricut Access provides users with a subscription to a curated and growing design library of over 200,000 images,
thousands of ready-to-make projects and hundreds of fonts, as well as other member benefits, such as discounts and priority Cricut Member
Care. Cricut Access Premium includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and preferred shipping. As of December
31, 2021, we had over 2.0 million Paid Subscribers to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium, representing approximately 32% of our total
users.
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We also sell a broad range of accessories and materials that help bring designs to life, from advanced tools like heat presses to Cricut-
branded scoring tools, pens, paper and iron-on vinyl. These products are designed to work seamlessly and easily with our connected machines,
which is why we see many of our users purchase Cricut-branded accessories and materials. Creating projects often drives repeat purchases of
accessories and materials for years after a user first buys a connected machine, demonstrating ongoing engagement with our platform.

Many of our users share a love of our brand, products and mission, which fosters a loyal community of users who are deeply engaged with
Cricut. Every project is an opportunity to start a conversation, both with us and with each other. We often see our users inspire, teach and create
together. Users are passionate about sharing Cricut tips, tricks and personal stories and this engagement carries over into social media and into
everyday life. There are over five million Cricut followers and hundreds of independently-run Cricut groups across social media. Users often self-
organize, host independent events and meet up in person across the globe.

Our community creates a reinforcing network effect. As the number of our users grow, so does the number of projects made and shared
physically or digitally. This generates even more shared projects and word-of-mouth that in turn helps to grow our community. This community
network effect has allowed us to efficiently acquire new users and drive sales of connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and
materials. To date, our success has been driven by word-of-mouth referrals as well as effective use of low-cost marketing channels like social
media, which we then complement with our targeted sales and marketing efforts.

We generate revenue from the sale of our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials. We sell our products through
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, including Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target and Walmart, as well as through online
channels such as Amazon and cricut.com.

We are a fast-growing, scaled and profitable business. For the years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, we generated:

• Total revenue of $486.6 million, $959.0 million and $1,306.2 million, respectively, representing 43%, 97% and 36% year-over-year
growth, respectively

• Net income of $39.2 million, $154.6 million and $140.5 million, respectively, representing 43%, 294% and (9)% year-over-year growth,
respectively

Our Industry

We both influence and benefit from powerful secular tailwinds:

• Personalization is a Global Mega Trend. Today, more and more people want to be surrounded by personalized items. We
empower individuals to personalize. The number one reason why people buy our connected machines is personalization.

• Digitization of Tools. Consumers have access to more tools in the digital world than ever before. They are easier to use, more
powerful and available on every device. The power to create and manipulate content – text, audio or video – can now be done
from anyone’s smartphone or laptop. Cricut has built on this trend by offering both digital and physical tools and, more
importantly, bridging these two worlds together.

• Technology is Enabling a New Generation of Entrepreneurs. The rapid growth of marketplaces and commerce enablement
platforms creates economic opportunities for millions of creative entrepreneurs. Individual entrepreneurs value supplemental
income, flexibility and the opportunity to do what they love for a living. Cricut enables the shift in production of physical goods
from factory floors to kitchen tables and provides manufacturing solutions for small scale businesses. 31% of our users make
projects to sell. Women, who represent 94% of our users as of December 2021 and are at the forefront of this trend, created
businesses more than twice as fast as national average.

• Social Media is Enabling a New Wave of Creativity. The ubiquity of social media is a key driver of global consumer
engagement with new creative endeavors. Through social media, people can be inspired by new ideas or projects anywhere and
anytime. We help our users turn virtual inspiration into beautiful, physical things. We have over five million followers across social
media, and our users have shared thousands of projects on our platform.
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Our Opportunity

We believe that everyone is innately creative and thus anyone can be a part of the Cricut community of users. This presents us with a large
untapped market opportunity in addition to our current user base.

We quantify our market opportunity in terms of SAM, which includes active creatives who we address with our current products and price
points, and TAM, which includes potential creatives who we believe we can reach over the long term as we make products for new uses and
products that are more accessible, even easier to use and available at a broad set of price points.

We commissioned a study from YouGov America in September 2020 across multiple countries. The sample size of those surveyed in each
country included over 1,000 individuals ages 18 and older. To calculate our SAM and TAM, we extrapolate these survey results across the
general population ages 18 and older in each country.

Our SAM consists of the portion of individuals surveyed who said they have made at least one creative project in categories addressed by
our current products in the last 12 months, whom we call “active creatives.” Our TAM includes the individuals in our SAM as well as the portion of
individuals surveyed who said they like, buy, used to make or are interested in creating personalized, handmade or custom items, whom we call
“potential creatives” but who have not made at least one creative project in categories addressed by our current products in the last 12 months.

We assess our SAM and TAM in the United States and Canada and internationally. Today, a small portion of our revenue is generated from
countries outside the United States and Canada. We currently classify four of these countries, Australia, France, Germany and the United
Kingdom, as our primary international target markets and include them in our international SAM and TAM.

Based in part on the YouGov study, we estimate that our SAM consists of over 85 million people in the United States and Canada. We
estimate that our SAM among our primary international target markets consists of over 44 million people. Accordingly, we estimate our total SAM
is over 129 million individuals. As of December 31, 2021, we had 6.4 million users, implying approximately 5% penetration of our SAM in all
markets.

We estimate that there are over 163 million potential creatives in the United States and Canada and over 109 million potential creatives in
our primary international target markets. We estimate that our United States and Canada TAM includes over 248 million individuals, which
reflects our belief that all people, regardless of demographic, can be creative and a part of the Cricut community. Our TAM among our primary
international target markets includes over 153 million individuals, for a combined TAM of approximately 402 million individuals. We believe our
products could achieve broader adoption in a number of countries beyond our primary international target markets that also have large
populations engaging in creative activities and represent a similar product-market fit.

Because our products make creativity accessible, we believe our opportunity is much larger than the estimates of the size of the traditional
craft market. We put production power into the hands of our users by allowing them to create their own professional-looking homemade goods
instead of purchasing manufactured goods from a third party opening up a broad array of markets for our users that go beyond the traditional
craft market. For example, the goods that users can produce or customize using our platform fall into multiple large market categories, some of
which may overlap, including cards and calendar, stationery, seasonal decor, wedding-related services, organization and custom gifts.

The Cricut User Journey

Creative individuals come to Cricut and quickly become engaged users who can express themselves both individually and as part of a
large and passionate community. As of December 2021, 94% of our users were women. Many users also earn income through products they
create on Cricut. According to a survey that we conducted in December 2021:

• 83% of new users want to make a broad range of products

• 31% make projects to sell

• 79% say crafting helps them with their mental well-being

• 85% say crafting inspires feelings of accomplishment
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A user’s journey evolves after their first purchase. New users typically intend to create a broad range of products but may start with one or
two intended uses and grow with Cricut over time. For example, a user may buy a connected machine and begin by making cards but later
branch out to T-shirts, wall decals and more. As we launch new software and products, and as our community continues to grow and share on
our platform and on social media, we have the opportunity to continually refresh this relationship and expand the versatility of our platform.

Our large and loyal community of users engage with Cricut and each other across our design apps and on social media. Users can share
projects they created, and other users can be inspired and access and create that same project. These teaching and inspiration moments
enhance our monetization opportunities, as projects often lead users to purchase images, fonts, accessories and materials. There are over five
million Cricut followers and many independently-run Cricut groups across social media.

Our Software

Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share seamlessly. Our software is
cloud-based meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any time, across desktops or mobile devices. We enable our
users to be inspired, create and share projects with the Cricut community, and follow others doing the same. Each user’s credentials, profile,
machine registration data, pressure settings for various materials and tools, uploaded images, designs, projects, community networks and more
are stored in the cloud. Our software aggregates billions of data points of our users’ contributions, giving us valuable insights into our users’
preferences and behaviors. We use our data science capabilities to continuously improve our software and products, driving further engagement.
For example, as we monitor how users engage with a certain feature, we can continue to improve it or choose to sunset it if it is no longer useful.
We have the ability to release new connected machines with new uses that can seamlessly integrate with our software, allowing us to grow with
existing users.

Connected Machines

Our connected machines currently include Cricut Joy, Cricut Explore and Cricut Maker. Our portfolio of connected machines cut, write,
score and create decorative effects using a wide variety of materials including paper, vinyl, leather and more. Our connected machines are
designed for various uses ranging from quick, everyday projects like handmade cards or signs to professional-level DIY projects like home décor
and quilts. Each of our connected machines provides users with different capabilities. For example, Cricut Joy can work with over 50 different
materials – from the most popular craft materials like cardstock, vinyl and iron-on to specialty materials like glittery paper and polished foils.
Cricut Maker incorporates even more material capabilities from the most delicate paper and fabric to harder materials such as matboard, leather
and basswood. Our connected machines also incorporate different tools, attachments, accessories and capabilities. For example, Cricut Explore
Air pioneered a calligraphy pen, while Cricut Maker cuts fabric and can also engrave metal. Machine connectivity is enabled through Bluetooth
and USB. All Cricut connected machines come with Design Space, a free, easy-to-learn and easy-to-use, cloud-based design software available
on Android, iOS, Mac and PC devices.

Design Apps and Subscriptions

Users can leverage the full power of our platform by using our connected machines together with our free design apps for our connected
machines, including our Design Space app that works with all connected machines and our Cricut Joy-specific app. Users download our apps,
create a profile and design and share their Cricut projects from both desktop and mobile devices. All users can access a select number of free
images, fonts and projects from our design apps or upload their own. In addition, we offer a wider selection of images, fonts and projects for
purchase à la carte, including licensed content from partners like major motion picture studios. Ready-to-make projects, from cards to holiday
décor, each come with instructions and recommendations for the ideal materials to use. Users can share their designs on our apps to teach and
inspire others. If one user shares a project that uses images from the Cricut library, another user can download and create that same project – as
long as they are subscribed to Cricut Access or Cricut Access Premium or have purchased those images.
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Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium are our subscription offerings that include a large selection of images, fonts and projects as well
as other member benefits, such as discounts, priority Cricut Member Care and, in the case of Cricut Access Premium, preferred shipping. Paid
Subscribers are granted access to a curated and growing design library of over 200,000 images, thousands of ready-to-make projects and
hundreds of fonts. Cricut Access is billed monthly for $9.99 per month or annually for $95.88 per year. Cricut Access Premium, which includes all
of the benefits of Cricut Access and additional discounts and preferred shipping, is billed annually for $119.88 per year. As of December 31,
2021, we had over 2.0 million Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium subscribers, representing approximately 32% of our total users.

Cricut Accessories and Materials

We sell a broad range of accessories and materials that help bring designs to life, such as Cricut EasyPress, Cricut Mug Press, various
hand tools, machine replacement tools and blades and project materials. These products are designed to work seamlessly with our connected
machines. This interconnectedness is important to our users, who choose to buy Cricut-branded accessories and materials because they find
them easy to use and trust our brand. Some products, like our mats and blades, attach to a connected machine. Mats hold materials in place as
they are cut by the connected machine. Our mats are sold in different grip strengths that are appropriate for the material being used. For
example, a light-grip mat is perfect for paper, while a strong-grip mat is optimal for materials that need stronger adhesive to secure in place, such
as matboard and leather. Blades are inserted into Cricut connected machines. For example, a Premium Fine Point Blade works well with
cardstock, a Rotary Blade is perfect for fabric and a Knife Blade is optimal for leather and wood products. We have also created a portfolio of
both complex and basic accessories. For instance, Cricut EasyPress is a portable heat press with a variety of heat transfer uses for oddly-
shaped, non-uniform surfaces. Cricut BrightPad illuminates fine lines to ensure precision for removing the unneeded pieces of a cut image. We
also sell a wide range of project materials including vinyl, iron-on vinyl, deluxe paper, Infusible Ink (sublimation), machine tools and accessories
and more. In 2021, we introduced our line of Smart Materials, including Smart Vinyl, Smart Iron-on, and Smart Paper Sticker Cardstock, all
designed to feed directly into our Cricut Maker 3 and Explore 3 connected machines, allowing users to cut even faster without the need to use a
cutting mat. We offer over 3,000 total SKUs within our Cricut accessories and materials, ranging in price from a $0.99 digital image to the
$239.99 EasyPress.

How We Go to Market

Many of our users hear about our products through word-of-mouth. With 86% of our users creating products for their friends and family,
word-of-mouth marketing continues to be one of the most efficient and effective ways we attract new users. In 2021, over 40% of new users first
heard about Cricut through friends and family. We also use digital and social media marketing to attract users.

We sell our connected machines and accessories and materials through our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as through
our website at cricut.com. Our partners include Amazon, Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target, Walmart and many others. We also sell
our products, including subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium, on cricut.com. In 2021, 50% of our revenue was generated
through brick-and-mortar sales and 50% was generated through online channels.

Our Competitive Strengths

Our competitive strengths include:

Our Vertically Integrated Platform Encourages Continual Engagement. Our platform accompanies a user from an idea to a finished
project, with Cricut providing the connected machines, design apps and accessories and materials to make this a seamless journey. All of the
content our users purchase and the projects they spend hours designing are stored in the cloud. This allows our users to access their designs
from their Android, iOS, Mac and PC devices seamlessly. This content can only be accessed through Cricut’s design apps and is optimized to a
proprietary Cricut format for a great experience. As of December 31, 2021, 60% of our users created on their connected machines in the last 90
days.
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We Build Beautiful, Inspiring and Easy-to-Use Products. Our mission is rooted in our passion for design, and this passion comes to life
in the beautiful products we build and experiences we create. We take great pride in marrying design and functionality for each SKU – from our
connected machines to design apps to content to accessories and materials. Every touchpoint is an opportunity to engage the customer and
exceed expectations. Our goal is to provide users with an experience that is both inspiring and intuitive, and we take great care to make our
products easy to use. Our elegant products are backed by deep user experience, software, technology and engineering expertise.

We Designed our Platform to be Able to Constantly Evolve so We Can Find New Ways to Delight Users. We constantly innovate and
offer new products and functionality to provide users with new capabilities for their existing connected machines. For example, in 2021, we
launched the Cricut Mug Press, which gives users the ability to design and create custom mugs. New products are integrated seamlessly into
existing connected machines with updates to our software, infrastructure and content. We also launched our Cricut Maker 3 and Cricut Explore 3,
which have more processing power, more memory, and more powerful motors than the previous connected machine models. We aim to give our
users the freedom to create without limitations while improving their experience along the way.

We Have a Strong and Loyal Community of Users. Many of our users become deeply engaged in our creative community and loyal to
our brand. Each project becomes an opportunity to create a conversation – our users share, inspire and teach each other. Our community of 6.4
million users as of December 31, 2021, creates a reinforcing network effect. As the number of our users grow, so does the number of projects
made and shared physically or digitally. This engagement generates even more shared projects and word-of-mouth that in turn helps to grow our
community.

We Have a Positive Impact on Our Users, in Good Times and in Bad. When users design with our products, they feel creative and self-
accomplished. When they personalize an object or make something for someone as a gift, they feel good about themselves. Our products make
people feel accomplished and confident – powerful emotions that help create a relationship and love between our brand and our users. Crafting
allows people to save money by creating their own gifts or to earn income selling handmade goods. Given the positive emotions connected with
crafting, our users create to celebrate and as a respite during difficult times.

Our Growth Strategy

These are key elements of our growth strategy:

Expand Internationally. We believe there is a significant opportunity for Cricut to grow internationally. We began our international
expansion by launching in Australia, Canada, France, Germany and the United Kingdom, and subsequently launched in all Latin America,
Western Europe, and most of South East Asia. We have also localized our design apps in several languages such as French, German,
Portuguese and Spanish. We offer country-specific content and continue to add local content for markets where we are in various stages of
launch. We will continue to pursue disciplined international expansion by targeting countries with large populations of active creatives where we
believe the Cricut value proposition will resonate. We expect to leverage a combination of brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to go to
market internationally.

Reach More Users. As of December 31, 2021, we had 6.4 million users, representing approximately 5% of the 129 million addressable
active creatives in our SAM. We have a significant opportunity to bring more users to our platform by enhancing our brand and product
awareness in both the United States and Canada and in the other geographies where we currently sell our products. We intend to pursue this
opportunity in part through digital and social media marketing, retail partners and word-of-mouth referrals.

Increase Monetization from Current Users. We keep our users engaged by applying what we learn on our platform to launch new
software and products. We believe that by finding new ways to inspire our users with their existing connected machines, we can sell more content
and accessories and materials. By enhancing our subscription offerings, we also believe we can grow our subscription base over time.

Continuously Improve Ease of Use and User Experience. We plan to continue to broaden our demographic appeal by making our
products even easier to use and educating users on our products and their capabilities. We believe that reducing the barriers to entry for active
creatives and potential creatives can help us both further penetrate our SAM and continue to expand and penetrate a portion of our TAM.
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Launch New Products in New Categories. New products help us extend our impact with new and existing users. Our deeply engaged
base of users gives us unique insights into what new products are going to be most successful. Our strategy for keeping current users engaged
is focused on launching new products and services that attach seamlessly to our existing platform, whether accessories and materials or
connected machines. We plan on expanding our offerings to serve a larger portion of our SAM, including new connected machine offerings with
new uses to capture additional customer segments. Our ability to launch new services and new products will allow us to diversify our channels
and bring on new brick-and-mortar and online retail partners.

Technology and Content

Our core technology and content that support our platform are critical competitive advantages and are purpose-built to leverage the tools
and capabilities of our connected machines. These solutions utilize a myriad of factors and elements unique to Cricut and are highly
differentiated.

• Cutting-Edge Innovation, Beautiful Design and Ease of Use. We invest substantial resources in research and development to
enhance our platform, develop new products and features and improve our user experience. Our hardware innovation harnesses the
power of technologies typically found only in professional robotics, computer numerical control machinery and other automated
commercial devices. One example of our cutting-edge innovation is our Cricut Joy, a connected machine that is both powerful and
portable. Our software integrates our connected machines with the rest of our platform and enables a seamless creative experience for
our users. Our hardware and software are beautifully designed to be easy-to-use, so that users can be their creative best.

• Proprietary Technology. Our platform benefits from our proprietary intellectual property. Servo motors in our connected machines
operate with feedback control to ensure ultra-precise cutting and drawing paths are generated each time a user clicks “Make It.” The
uniform heat plate technology in our EasyPress family of products allows our users to more evenly adhere iron-on vinyl and films onto T-
shirts, totes or tags. The ability to control the amount of machine pressure used by Cricut Maker was an industry first in such a compact
form factor and allows our users to not only cut thicker materials like matboard, leather and basswood but also to deboss heavy
chipboard or even engrave metal. While assorted machine tools are required to create these decorative effects, our connected machines
also have the capability to automatically detect whether the proper tool is installed in order to safeguard proper operation and help our
users achieve their desired effect.

• Cloud-Based Architecture Which Allows for Simplicity, Scalability and Security. Our distributed and scalable technology
architecture allows our users to access inspiration and create anytime they want from almost any computing device, maximizing
utilization of our platform. Our users can get inspired on the go using Design Space on their phone, continue designing on their tablet,
and then finish creating using their desktop; or stay on one device during their all-night crafting session. Design Space maintains an
expanding list of materials and a corresponding database. As every creative project is unique, this database aids our users in
understanding which materials are compatible with or optimized for their connected machine. Our materials database also houses,
maintains and controls the precise pressure, speed and machine tools needed to ensure a unified experience when a connected
machine communicates with our cloud-based, highly-scalable, microservice-designed APIs. Our software and apps are built and
continually maintained using the industry’s latest technology like Swift for iOS, Kotlin for Android and Electron Framework for Mac and
Windows. We benefit from and leverage the AWS security frameworks to provide our users an infrastructure that is consistent with
information security best practices so that our users’ information, creative projects and account are safe and secure.

• Cut Smart Technology, Adaptive Tool System and QuickSwap Housings. Years ago we transformed the household electronic cutting
machine market with the introduction of our Cut Smart technology on Cricut Explore. This allows our connected machines to cut and
draw on materials through machine mat and carriage plot movements, while our servo motors apply a precise amount of cut force
tailored to each material so there is no need for users to manually adjust blade depth, cut force or speed. Later on, with the release of
Cricut Maker, we further innovated by introducing our Adaptive Tool System, which deepens and enhances our connected machine
movements by adding additional control from the drive housing itself. Through the interlocking of gears with the machine carriage, our
Adaptive Tool System (currently available only on Cricut Maker) can additionally lift and turn the blade during operation. This third
juncture point allows Cricut Maker to intelligently control the direction of the blade and cut pressure to match the material, enabling
experiences like machine cutting fabric with a rotary blade or using our knife blade to machine cut
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thicker materials like matboard and basswood. In addition to this multi-dimensional movement, our Adaptive Tool System also allows our
users to install one machine tool housing that can be easily changed to have varying tips, something we aptly call QuickSwap. While
Cricut Maker was released with only four tools initially, together with our Adaptive Tool System and QuickSwap housings, we have since
empowered Cricut Maker users with the use of over 10 tools. Our connected machines are durable, built to last and designed with this
level of extensibility to quickly enable new uses as they are designed and brought to market.

• Optimized Accessories and Materials. While our connected machines work with a wide variety of accessories and materials regardless
of brand, using Cricut-branded products brings added benefits. For example, with the introduction of our Smart Materials line (including
Smart Vinyl, Smart Iron-On and Smart Label), our users can load these materials into their connected machines without the need for a
separate cutting mat. Our sourcing, quality assurance and materials teams go to great lengths to ensure all Cricut-branded accessories
and materials (including Smart Materials, as well as cardstock, vinyl, transfer tape, leather, hand tools and others) are calibrated and
purpose-built to work hand-in-hand with Cricut connected machines, as well as interplay well with other Cricut products. Our materials
database works best with these Cricut-branded accessories and materials, thereby allowing our users to create quicker with more
predictable results.

• Content Development and Production. The breadth and depth of our growing content library comes as a direct result of the data-driven
approach we use to gain insights into our users’ preferences and behavior. Using real-time data points, we observe the use patterns and
other aggregated data to predict future trends or gaps in our content offering. Using these key learnings, we select ideas, themes and
content categories that ultimately inform and shape our product development cycle. By partnering with professional illustrators, project
designers and subject matter experts, both internally and externally, we create tailor-made content offerings that beautifully complement
our platform. Whether through the creation, acquisition or licensing of varied creative assets, our content teams then use a proprietary
process to convert these images and projects into content specifically optimized to integrate with our connected machines and Cricut-
branded accessories and materials seamlessly. The output of this content lifecycle results in authentic, on-trend and high-quality images
and projects we offer our users for à la carte purchase or as a part of our Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium subscriptions. As we
diversify our content categories and further expand internationally, we will continue to develop localized and meaningful content shaped
to meet the language, needs and preferences of our growing global user base. As our user base expands, demand for content is higher
than ever. To scale our Design Space library and better support Cricut Access, we recently launched our Contributing Artist Program
(CAP), which gives artists the opportunity to upload their artwork, and once approved by Cricut, it is ready to use in Design Space. Artists
get compensated when members use their artwork.

• Unified Integration Between Hardware, Software and Content. Our design, engineering, product and content teams work hand-in-
hand to bring our products to life, from conception and validation to implementation. We work hard to build strong synergies across teams
in order to successfully launch products that address new creative categories. One such example was evident in the successful launch of
Cricut Joy together with its companion Cricut Joy Insert Cards. Collaborating with our hardware engineering and machine teams, our
materials team launched a colorful array of newly designed pre-scored and pre-cut cardstock greeting cards, complete with decorative
inserts and envelopes. Utilizing a patent-pending card mat to hold these cards in place during operation, Cricut Joy can cut and draw
professional-looking handmade cards for any occasion while easily pulling from hundreds of ready-to-make greeting card projects in
Design Space. This type of unified integration by and between our hardware, software, content and accessories and materials provides
an outcome to our users with a value much greater than the sum of its individual parts.
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Human Capital

Our Culture. Our mission is to help people lead creative lives. Our employees strive to support this mission by providing an innovative
creativity platform that includes software, machines, materials, and tools to our users. Much of our team are makers and crafters and are
engaged with our end-users. We celebrate seeing the creativity and kindness that our end users create with the tools we provide. Behind the
products, is a team that subscribes to an articulated culture of values and mantras. We start with a foundation of trust and encourage constructive
conflict. The team lives by mantras such as “spend every dollar like it’s your own”, “no brilliant jerks”, “put the stinky fish on the table”, and “don’t
assume the happy path”, among several others. We have built a team of talented professionals who are anxious to work in an environment where
how we work matters as much as the work itself.

Our Employees. Our culture is important to us and is what we strive to maintain as we have navigated the COVID-19 pandemic while
doubling in size and expanding our employee footprint. As of December 31, 2021, we had over 830 employees of which 151 lived outside of the
United States. Before the pandemic, we had employees in 11 states and six countries. As of December 31, 2021, we had employees in 33 states
and 22 countries. We believe the diversity of background and thought that this growth has infused into our company is a great strength and will
continue to be as we continue to grow and expand around the world. We consider our relations with employees to be good. None are covered by
collective bargaining agreements or are represented by a labor union.

Employee Well-Being. Employee incentives and benefits include medical, life, disability, vision and dental insurance coverage, 401(k)
retirement plans with company matching contributions, and paid time off. We emphasize “acting like an owner” and in support of the mantra have
awarded equity to much of the team. Furthermore, our employee assistance program offers confidential guidance and resources to employees
and their household family members, including unlimited counseling sessions, access for financial and legal advice, and services to assist with
childcare, elder care, pet care, and vacation planning. Additionally, Cricut provides opportunities for employees to privately support it’s members
and select community organizations that are aligned to our mission to help people lead creative lives. While support is primarily provided in the
form of product donations, it also includes employees’ time in providing crafted projects.

Employee Safety. We prioritize the health and wellness of our employees and our members. During the pandemic, we have taken caution
by moving our primarily in-office workforce to work from home and abide by local safety guidelines. We created policies and practices to ensure
the safety of employees within the office, including increasing cleaning procedures, implementing mask mandates, social distancing, and
additional safety measures as appropriate.

Competition

We compete in a number of market segments with our business, separately and together.

We experience competition in connected machines; for example, Brother, Graphtec and Silhouette America sell cutting machines. We
expect significant competition to continue, both from current competitors as well as new entrants into the market, some of which may become
significant competitors in the future.

The accessories and materials DIY market is highly competitive with few barriers to entry. We face heightened competition in providing
accessories and materials that we sell for use with our connected machines. We compete against well-established, well-known companies, many
of which are also our retail partners, including Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Amazon and Walmart. Many of these companies have
substantial market share, diversified product lines, well-established supply and distribution systems, strong brand recognition and significant
financial, marketing, research and development and other resources. These brick-and-mortar and online retail partners often have their own
brands of products that we compete against, particularly in accessories and materials. We also compete with well-established content providers,
from free resources that enable users to access content that is compatible with our platform, to more specific content marketplaces, where
customers can purchase digital files to upload to our platform. We believe that our brand, technology, software, and content set us apart. We
provide a superior value proposition and benefit from our deeply engaged community of users.

The areas in which we compete include:

• Product Offering. We compete with producers of DIY design and crafting tools, materials and accessories and work to ensure that our
connected machines maintain the most innovative technology and user-friendly features. Our products, materials and accessories allow
our users to produce professional-looking projects.
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• Engagement. We compete for consumers to purchase our products, and we seek to retain them through our connected machines,
subscriptions and accessories and materials, as well as our engaged community.

• Talent. We compete for talent in every vertical across our company including technology, design, marketing, finance, legal and retail. As
our platform is highly dependent on technology and software, we require a significant base of engineers to continue innovating.

The principal competitive factors that companies in our industry need to consider include but are not limited to total cost of product,
manufacturing efficiency and supply chain management, product vision, product innovation, digital content (original and licensed), product quality
and safety, pricing, user engagement, strength of sales and marketing efforts, technological advances and brand awareness and reputation. We
believe we compete favorably across these factors and we have developed a business model that is difficult to replicate.

For additional information, see the section titled “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Industry and Business—We operate in a highly
competitive market and we may be unable to compete successfully against existing and future competitors.”

Intellectual Property

We believe that our intellectual property rights are valuable and important to our business. Our practice is to seek protection for our
intellectual property as appropriate, and we rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, license agreements,
confidentiality procedures, non-disclosure agreements, employee disclosure and invention assignment agreements, as well as other legal and
contractual rights, to establish and protect our proprietary rights. Although we rely in part upon these legal and contractual protections, we believe
that factors such as the skills and ingenuity of our employees and the functionality and frequent enhancements to our platform are larger
contributors to our success in the market.

As of December 31, 2021, we had 43 issued patents in the United States, which expire at various times between March 11, 2022 and July
20, 2036, as well as 65 issued patents in non-U.S. jurisdictions, which expire at various times between July 14, 2026 and August 1, 2043. As of
December 31, 2021, we also hold 42 pending patents in the United States and 59 pending patents in non-U.S. jurisdictions. These patents are
intended to protect our proprietary inventions that are relevant to our business. We continually review our development efforts to assess the
existence and patentability of new intellectual property.

We have an ongoing trademark and service mark registration program pursuant to which we register our brand names and product names,
taglines and logos in the United States and other jurisdictions to the extent we determine appropriate and cost-effective. We also have common
law rights in some unregistered trademarks that were established over years of use. As of December 31, 2021, we have a total of 16 registered
trademarks in the United States and 65 registered trademarks in non-U.S. jurisdictions. We also have registered domain names for websites that
we use in our business, such as cricut.com and other variations.

We intend to pursue additional intellectual property protection to the extent we believe it would be beneficial and cost-effective. Despite our
efforts to protect our intellectual property rights, they may not be respected in the future or may be invalidated, circumvented or challenged. In
addition, as we continue to expand internationally, the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same
extent as laws in the United States. We expect that infringement of our intellectual property may increase as the number of products and
competitors in our market increases, and effective protection of intellectual property rights is expensive and difficult. In addition, to the extent that
we gain greater visibility and market exposure as a public company, we face a higher risk of being the subject of intellectual property infringement
claims from third parties. Any third-party intellectual property claims against us could significantly increase our expenses and could have a
significant and negative impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition. For additional information, see the section titled
“Risk factors—Risks Related to our Intellectual Property.”

Manufacturing, Supply Chain and Fulfillment

We currently outsource the manufacturing of our products to third-party contract manufacturers located primarily in Malaysia and China.
We believe outsourcing our manufacturing function promotes more flexibility and scalability in our operations.
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We primarily use one contract manufacturer, Xiamen Intretech, Inc., or Intretech, with operations in Malaysia and China, to produce our
connected machines, which are built based on our quality and performance standards and specifications. Our agreement with Intretech is on a
purchase order basis, and Intretech is not otherwise obligated to supply our connected machines in any specific quantity or at any specific price.
The Intretech agreement has an initial five-year term beginning August 2018 and thereafter automatically renews for one additional year unless
earlier terminated by the parties for breach or upon 60 days’ prior written notice.

Our contract manufacturers procure from approved third-party suppliers a majority of the components (measured by spend) that are used
in the production of our products. We also secure long-lead-time component supply directly from suppliers on a purchase order basis. Our
contract manufacturers then procure these components from our suppliers within the lead times provided by our finished goods purchase orders
based on component allocations that we control. We also hold long lead-time electronic component inventories in contracted warehouses in Asia
as a mitigation measure against shortages. We generally do not have long-term contractual agreements with these component suppliers. Certain
highly specialized components and raw materials, such as electronic components, microchips and certain alloys that are critical to the
performance of our connected machines, are sourced from very limited component suppliers. These components have unique performance
profiles, and, as a result, it is not commercially practical to support multiple sources for these components for our products.

To streamline e-commerce logistics, inventory management, warehousing and fulfillment, we engage a small number of third-party logistics
partners, including last mile warehousing and delivery partners, located in the United States, China and Europe to receive and distribute our
products. Our third-party logistics partners complete a substantial percentage of our deliveries to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners,
distributors and online sales channels. Our products generally arrive at our third-party logistics partner facilities via ocean shipping services from
our contract manufacturers. Direct shipments to users are then typically ground shipped for U.S. users and air- or ocean-freighted for our
international users. Most brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors generally use their own freight carriers for shipments from
our third-party logistics partner facilities.

As we grow and scale, we continue to evaluate and assess the need for existing and new manufacturers, suppliers and partners. To
mitigate the risks of having a limited number of suppliers, we have in place currently-qualified alternative contract manufacturers for certain
products; however, we do not currently have alternative suppliers for certain key components. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we
continue to experience certain delays in component and raw material sourcing and procurement, manufacturing and shipping. For additional
information, see the section titled “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Manufacturing, Supply Chain and Fulfillment.”

Sales and Marketing

Sales Channels

We sell our products primarily through our third-party brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as through our website at
cricut.com. We also sell to a network of distributors in over 45 countries who resell our products primarily to international brick-and-mortar and
online retail partners and on a limited basis to U.S. brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. In both 2019 and 2020, 48%, and in 2021, 50% of
our revenue was generated through online channels, respectively. Our sales and channels team located in the United States support both the
onboarding of new brick-and-mortar and online retail partners as well as account management of existing brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners. We also have an international sales and marketing force in the United Kingdom, Australia, across Western Europe, South Africa,
Singapore, Mexico and Brazil, to drive sales and whose reach spans into many jurisdictions across the globe.

Many of our products are sold through traditional brick-and-mortar retail partners, varying in size, including on their websites, as follows:

• Specialized Craft Retailers. We sell to specialized arts and crafts supply retailers with large regional or national presence, such as
Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann and Michaels.

• National Retailers. We sell to large, mass merchant retailers with national and international presence, such as Amazon, Target and
Walmart.

• Independent Retailers. We sell to a network of smaller, independent retailers in targeted locations or in specialty markets.
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Each of Amazon, Jo-Ann and Michaels represented 10% or more of our consolidated revenue in the year ended December 31, 2019. Each
of Jo-Ann, Michaels, and Walmart represented 10% or more of our consolidated revenue in the year ended December 31, 2020, and Amazon,
Michaels, and Walmart represented 10% or more of our consolidated revenue in the year ended December 31, 2021. We also currently offer our
products through our website at cricut.com, which can be purchased directly by users in the United States and Canada. Users can also purchase
subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium through our website or through Cricut’s design apps on Android and iOS devices.
Additionally, users can make in-app purchases of images, fonts and projects à la carte on our platform and through our design apps. We drive
consumers to our website and platform primarily through word-of-mouth marketing channels and the use of low-cost marketing channels like
social media.

We believe our omni-channel strategy enables us to target a diverse consumer base.

Marketing

We focus our marketing efforts on building brand and product awareness and community engagement to attract new users and retain
existing users. We believe our platform and loyal community of millions of users are our best and most effective marketing tools, helping to
generate robust word-of-mouth referrals, which have been significant drivers of our growth. With 86% of our users, as of December 2021,
creating products for their friends and family, word-of-mouth marketing continues to be paramount to our operational success. Crafting inspires
feelings of accomplishment in our users, which promotes repeat use of our products and reengagement in our platform and community.

Users in our community are deeply engaged and are passionate about sharing inspiration, Cricut tips, tricks and personal stories online on
social media, which promotes discovery and adoption. Users across the globe often also connect offline, self-organizing and hosting in-person
meet-up events to create together, which reinforces the community network effect. As the number of users grow, the number of projects and
content created and shared physically and digitally multiply.

Additionally, our users’ ongoing engagement on our data-driven platform enables us to learn more about their preferences and behaviors,
which we harness to continually improve our platform and to predict what new products will be successful, driving a cycle of further community
engagement.

We intend to continue to invest significant resources to build our brand and community engagement, including from time to time employing
traditional online advertising as well as third-party social media. We also spend significant time and resources training our Cricut Member Care
team to resolve any technical and operational issues relating to our products and services so that our users’ experience with our platform is not
negatively impacted.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts focus on enabling our users to express their creativity. Technical direction is derived from our data
science capabilities and feedback from our deeply engaged user community. This focus enables the development of a robust platform architected
to ensure a simple and intuitive user experience, centered around our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials. Our
design, product, engineering and customer support teams collaborate extensively with our user community. Our platform is primarily built and
maintained in-house by a team of professionals across design, product management and engineering disciplines.

As of December 31, 2021, we had over 285 employees in our research and development organization. We intend to continue to invest in
our research and development capabilities to further improve our software, and the ease of use and functionality of our connected machines and
platform and to expand our accessories and materials offerings.
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Government Regulation

We are subject to a variety of U.S. federal and state laws and foreign laws and regulations that involve matters central to our business,
many of which are still evolving and could be interpreted in ways that could harm our business. These laws and regulations include laws
governing, among other areas, privacy, data protection, information security, content regulation, intellectual property, competition, consumer
protection, e-commerce, product liability, marketing, advertising, trade (e.g., sanctions, export controls and tariffs) and taxation. These laws and
regulations are often complex, sometimes contradict other laws, and are frequently still evolving. Laws and regulations may be interpreted,
applied, created, amended and enforced in different ways in various locations around the world, posing a significant challenge to our increasingly
global business.

As we grow and expand our geographical reach and our offerings, we may become subject to additional regulations, in the United States
and internationally.

In the European Union, or EU, the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679, or GDPR, became effective on May 25, 2018. The
GDPR is intended to create a single legal framework that applies across all EU member states. However, there are certain areas where EU
member states can deviate from the requirements in their own legislation. It is therefore likely that we will need to comply with these local
regulations in addition to the GDPR. Local supervisory authorities are able to impose fines for non-compliance and have the power to carry out
audits, require companies to cease or change processing, request information and obtain access to premises. The GDPR created more stringent
operational requirements for processors and controllers of personal data, including, for example, requiring enhanced disclosures to data subjects
about how personal data is processed (including information about the profiling of individuals and automated individual decision-making), limiting
retention periods of personal data, requiring mandatory data breach notification and requiring additional policies and procedures to comply with
the accountability principle under the GDPR. In addition, data subjects have more robust rights with regard to their personal data. Similarly, other
jurisdictions are instituting privacy and data protection and information security laws, rules and regulations, which could increase our risk and
compliance costs.

The California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018, or CCPA, also affords consumers expanded privacy protections. Additionally, the California
Attorney General issued CCPA regulations that may add additional requirements on businesses. The potential effects of this legislation and the
related CCPA regulations are far-reaching and may require us to modify our data processing practices and policies and to incur substantial costs
and expenses in an effort to comply. For example, the CCPA gives California residents (including employees, though only in limited
circumstances until January 1, 2023) expanded rights to transparency access and require deletion of their personal information, opt out of certain
personal information sharing and receive detailed information about how their personal information is collected and used. The CCPA also
provides for civil penalties for violations, as well as a private right of action for certain data breaches that may increase data breach litigation.
Additionally, in November 2020, California passed the California Privacy Rights Act, or CPRA, which amends and significantly modifies the
CCPA, potentially resulting in further uncertainty and requiring us to incur additional costs and expenses in efforts to comply. Similar legislative
developments in other states and at the federal level in the United States have been enacted or proposed, which could create the potential for a
patchwork of overlapping but different laws.

Further, some countries also are considering or have passed legislation requiring local storage and processing of data, or similar
requirements, which could increase the cost and complexity of operating our products and services and other aspects of our business.

Additionally, we are subject to laws, rules and regulations regarding cross-border transfers of personal data, including laws relating to the
transfer of personal data outside the European Economic Area, or EEA, and the United Kingdom (after Brexit). We rely on transfer mechanisms
permitted under these laws, including the standard contract clauses, which have been subject to regulatory and judicial scrutiny. If these existing
mechanisms for transferring personal data from the EEA, the United Kingdom or other jurisdictions are unavailable, we may be unable to transfer
personal data of employees or users in those regions to the United States.

See the section titled “Risk Factors” for additional information about the laws and regulations we are subject to and the risks to our
business associated with such laws and regulations.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described
below, together with all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including in the section titled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our consolidated financial statements and related notes and all of the other
information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, before making a decision to invest in our Class A common stock. If any of the risks actually
occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the market
price of our Class A common stock could decline, and you could lose part or all of your investment.

Summary of Risk Factors

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk because our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties,
as described below. The principal factors and uncertainties that make investing in our Class A common stock risky include, among others:

• risks regarding our ability to attract and engage with our users, including anticipating their product preferences;

• competitive risks in each of our three segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and Materials;

• supply chain, manufacturing, distribution and fulfillment risks, including our being primarily dependent on a single manufacturer and on
limited sources of supply for components, accessories and materials, as well as our ability to forecast demand and manage our
inventory;

• international risks, including regulation, tariffs that have materially increased our costs and the potential for further trade barriers;

• sales and marketing risks, including our dependence on sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and our need to continue to
grow online sales;

• risks relating to the complexity of our business, which includes connected machines, custom tools, hundreds of materials, design apps,
e-commerce software, subscriptions, content, international production, direct sales, and retail distribution, particularly for a company of
our relative size;

• risks related to product quality, safety and warranty claims and returns;

• risks related to protection of our intellectual property, as well as to cybersecurity and potential data breaches; and

• risks related to our dependence on our Chief Executive Officer.

Risks Related to Our Industry and Business

If we are not able to attract and engage with our users, our business and rate of growth could be adversely affected.

Since launching our first connected machine, we have built a loyal and growing community of users that has reached substantial scale. Our
business and rate of growth is dependent upon our ability to attract and engage with our users. We cannot ensure that our efforts to attract and
engage with users will be successful or that we will be able to maintain sales to our users. There are a number of factors that could impact our
number of users and our ability to increase sales to users, including:

• a decline in the public’s interest in or discretionary time available for do-it-yourself, or DIY, crafting activities;

• pricing, perceived value and ease of use of our connected machines and accessories and materials as well as our subscriptions;

• our ability to satisfy demand for and deliver quality products and value for subscriptions;

• sales of competitive products;

• our failure to broaden our demographic appeal;
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• our ability to continue to improve the user experience in each aspect of our business and successfully educate our users about our
products;

• our failure to capitalize on growth opportunities;

• our inability to meet the challenges resulting from fast-paced changes in technology;

• the failure of our connected machines to communicate or sync properly with Cricut-authorized design apps, including our Design Space
apps, or other third-party applications such as Android, iOS and Windows;

• unsatisfactory experiences with our products, including with respect to the use, purchasing or delivery of our products or with Cricut
Member Care, including public disclosure of those experiences through social media or other communications from our community;

• changes to our product offerings;

• our failure to increase our international presence, including the failure to translate and localize our digital content and subscriptions, or
the failure to further expand internationally;

• decreased word-of-mouth referrals from our community or failed marketing efforts; and

• deteriorating general economic conditions or changes in consumer spending preferences or buying trends.

As a result of these factors, we cannot be sure that we will be successful in attracting and engaging with users, or increasing sales to our
users, at levels that will be adequate to maintain or grow our business.

Our revenue growth rate and financial performance in recent periods may not be indicative of our future performance, and we expect
our revenue growth rate to decline compared to prior years.

We have experienced rapid revenue growth in recent periods, with revenue of $486.6 million, $959.0 million and $1,306.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively. You should not rely on our revenue for any previous quarterly or annual period as
any indication of our revenue or revenue growth in future periods. As we grow our business, we expect our revenue growth rates to decline
compared to prior years due to a number of reasons, including more challenging comparisons to prior periods as our revenue grows, slowing
demand for our products and subscriptions, increasing competition, a decrease in the growth of our overall market and our failure to capitalize on
growth opportunities. For example, we saw significant growth in sales online through the online channels of our brick-and-mortar or online retail
partners as well as through our website during the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and 2021, but there can be no assurance that online sales will
remain at these levels in the future or that we will be able to continue to significantly grow our online channels, particularly once the rollout of
COVID-19 vaccines reaches critical mass, restrictions on movement are lifted and full-time return to work trends normalize.

If we are unable to anticipate user preferences and successfully develop and introduce new, innovative and updated products in a
timely manner, our business may be adversely affected.

Our success in maintaining and increasing our user community depends on our ability to identify trends, as well as to anticipate and react
to changing preferences, which cannot be predicted with certainty. If we are unable to introduce new or enhanced products, or additional designs
and projects, in a timely manner, if such new offerings are not accepted by our user community or if our competitors introduce similar offerings
faster than we do, our business may be adversely affected. We also need to successfully educate our users on new offerings or improvements to
current offerings. Moreover, our new offerings may not receive market acceptance if preferences change rapidly to different types of personal DIY
offerings or away from these types of offerings altogether. Our future success depends in part on our ability to anticipate and respond to these
changes as well as to improve the user experience in each aspect of our business. For example, some users find our connected machines to be
challenging to use or may require user education in order to operate them efficiently or have the best user experience. If we are not able to make
our connected machines easier to use or improve user education and experience, it may have an adverse effect on our business. In addition,
failure to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to changing user preferences could lead to, among other things, reduced word-of-mouth
referrals, lower sales, lower subscription rates, pricing pressure, lower gross margins, discounting of our existing products and excess inventory
levels.
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Even if we are successful in anticipating user preferences, our ability to adequately react to and address them will partially depend upon
our continued ability to develop and introduce innovative, high-quality products. Development and launch of new or enhanced products is time-
consuming and requires significant financial investment, which could result in increased costs and a reduction in our profit margins. We have
experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in the planned release dates of new products. Delays could result in adverse publicity (if
potential new product announcements are leaked and then delayed), loss of sales and delay in market acceptance, any of which could cause us
to lose or fail to engage with existing users or impair our ability to attract new users. In addition, the introduction of new products by competitors
could adversely affect our ability to compete. Any delay or failure in the introduction of new products could harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Moreover, we must successfully manage the introduction of new or enhanced products and product offerings, which could adversely affect
the sales of our existing products. For instance, users may choose to forgo purchasing existing connected machines in advance of new product
launches, and we may experience higher returns from users of existing products after a new product launch occurs. As we introduce new or
enhanced products, we may face additional challenges related to managing a more complex supply chain and manufacturing process, including
the time and cost associated with onboarding and overseeing additional suppliers, contract manufacturers and third-party logistics partners. We
may also face challenges managing the inventory of new or existing products, which could lead to excess inventory and discounting of such
products. Users may negatively react to changes we introduce to products and product offerings. In addition, new or enhanced products may
have varying selling prices and costs compared to legacy products, which could negatively impact our gross margins and results of operations.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales of our connected machines, and a decline in sales of our connected
machines would adversely affect our future revenue and results of operations.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales of our connected machines. Any factors adversely affecting sales of our
connected machines, including introduction by competitors of comparable machines at lower price points, a maturing product lifecycle, shortages
in our supply or inventory of connected machines, a decline in consumer spending or other factors discussed elsewhere in this Risk Factors
section, could result in a decline in sales of our connected machines, which would adversely affect our future revenue and results of operations.
Moreover, because we derive a significant portion of our revenue from the sale of subscriptions and accessories and materials as an extension of
the sales and use of our connected machines, any material decline in the sales and use of our connected machines would also have a
pronounced impact on the sales of subscriptions and accessories and materials, which would adversely affect our future revenue and results of
operations.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected if we are unable to accurately forecast consumer demand for our products or
adequately manage our inventory, the manufacturing capacity of our contract manufacturers or their component supply.

Our ability to accurately forecast demand could be affected by many factors, including changes in consumer demand for our products,
changes in demand for the products of our competitors, unanticipated changes in general market or economic conditions or changes in consumer
confidence in future economic conditions. This risk may be exacerbated by the fact that we do not have the manufacturing capacity or supply-
chain flexibility to satisfy short-term demand increases. For example, during the COVID-19 pandemic and stay-at-home orders, we saw
significant growth in sales in 2020, which strained our inventory levels and caused shortages that likely resulted in lost sales. Although our in-
channel and on-hand inventory as of year-end 2021 were strong, if we fail to accurately forecast consumer demand, we may experience
insufficient or excess inventory levels or a shortage or surplus of products available for sale. If we underestimate demand or are otherwise unable
to meet consumer demand, we could experience loss of revenue, reputational harm and damaged relationships, including through social media
or other communications from our community, and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If we forecast
inventory levels in excess of consumer demand, this may result in inventory write-downs or write-offs and the sale of excess inventory at
discounted prices, which would cause our gross margins to suffer and could impair the strength and premium nature of our brand image. We
currently intend to carry higher component and product inventory levels into the future until we are comfortable current supply chain risks have
improved. These dynamics, along with an increased level of promotions in the fourth quarter of 2021, decreased our margins in the fourth quarter
of 2021. We expect these inventory and supply chain dynamics to continue to put some pressure on margins in 2022.
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We depend on sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, including a limited number of sophisticated key brick-and-mortar
and online retail partners. The loss or substantial decline in volume of sales to any of our key brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners could adversely affect our financial performance.

Our financial performance has been and will continue to be significantly determined by our success in attracting and retaining brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners. For the year ended December 31, 2021, our top seven brick-and-mortar and online retail partners accounted for
52% of product revenue. We anticipate that a similar concentration will continue for the foreseeable future.

We are dependent on our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to manage the sales of our products in their stores and on their
websites. For example, we depend on brick-and-mortar retail partners to provide adequate and attractive space for our products and point of
purchase displays in their stores and to employ, educate and motivate their sales personnel to sell our products. We also depend on our brick-
and-mortar and online retail partners to adequately market our products on their websites and provide a positive online shopping and shipping
experience for their customers. However, we generally do not have significant input or control over the display or promotion of our products by
our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, and they are generally not prohibited from promoting products of our competitors.

Our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners have demanded and may in the future demand heightened security, product safety or
packaging requirements and specified service levels. If we fail to meet these requirements, we may not only lose a brick-and-mortar and online
retail partner, but we may have to pay significant punitive costs or retailer-imposed fines for such failures. We also impose policies and guidelines
on our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners through our contractual agreements. If a retailer fails to follow the policies and guidelines in our
sales agreements, we may choose to temporarily or permanently stop shipping product to that retailer, which could adversely affect our revenue
and results of operations.

Because our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners have dominant positions in their markets, a loss of any key retailer may not be
easily replaced. The loss or substantial decline in volume of sales to our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners would adversely affect
our financial performance. Moreover, if we are not able to meet demand from our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, they may limit or
eliminate our shelf space, fail to feature our products on their websites or cease to offer our products and instead offer or promote products from
our competitors who are able to meet their demands.

If the financial condition of one or more of our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners weakens, a key retailer stops selling our
products or uncertainty regarding demand for some or all of our products causes one or more of these brick-and-mortar and online retail partners
to reduce its ordering and marketing of our products, it could decrease revenue from sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and
adversely affect our total revenue. Financial difficulties for one or more of our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners could also expose us
to financial risk if such retailer were unable to pay for the products purchased from us. We may not be able to collect our receivables from our
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, or we may incur significant expense in attempting to collect receivables, which would materially and
adversely affect our profitability and cash flows from operations. For example, the COVID-19 pandemic has had a material adverse effect on
many retail chains generally, many of whom were required to close their stores for periods of time, and some of which have gone out of business.
While the challenges that many retail chains experienced during the COVID-19 pandemic have not had a material adverse effect on our
business, such challenges could negatively affect our business and results of operations in the future.

Our long-term growth is dependent upon our ability to increase online sales through the websites of our brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners as well as through our own website. If we do not effectively grow our online channels while reducing our reliance on our
other sales channels, our business, financial condition, results of operations and profitability could be harmed.

Our ability to continue our revenue growth and increase our profitability depends in part upon our ability to successfully implement certain
strategic go-to-market initiatives, including expanding our online sales presence while continuing to work with key brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners. Our online sales include online sales through the websites of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners as well as through our
own website cricut.com. In each of the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2020, 48% of our revenue was generated from these online
channels. In the year ended December 31, 2021, 50% of our revenue was generated from these online channels. There can be no assurance
that online sales will remain at these levels in the future or that we will be able to continue to significantly grow our online channels.
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To successfully grow our sales through cricut.com, we must continue to drive traffic to our website, convert a larger percentage of potential
brick-and-mortar and online retail partner sales to our website and create and maintain a streamlined and intuitive online shopping experience.
Increasing sales through cricut.com may be costly and may place increased demands on our operational, managerial, administrative and other
resources. We are dependent on our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to manage their own e-commerce operations effectively and to
promote our products through those channels. We or our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may be unable to effectively address the
challenges involved with increasing online sales, which could negatively affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Sales through online channels, either through cricut.com or our online retail partners’ websites, could reduce sales by our current brick-
and-mortar retail partners, which could adversely affect our relationship with our brick-and-mortar retail partners, particularly those that do not
have a strong online presence. Based on our strategic initiative to increase sales through online channels, our brick-and-mortar retail partners
may decide not to adequately display our products in store, choose to reduce the in-store space for our products, locate our products in less than
premium positioning in their store, choose not to carry some or all of our products or promote competitors’ products over ours in store, and as a
result, our sales could decrease and our business could be harmed.

If we are not successful in effectively and sustainably growing our online sales channels, through cricut.com and our brick-and-mortar and
online retail partners’ websites, our business, financial condition, results of operations and profitability could be harmed.

If we are unable to maintain or increase our subscriptions, or if existing users do not renew their subscriptions, our future revenue and
results of operations could be harmed.

As of December 31, 2021, approximately 32% of our users were Paid Subscribers. If we are unable to maintain or increase subscriptions,
which have higher margins than our other products, our future revenue and results of operations could be harmed. Our Paid Subscribers have no
contractual obligation to renew their subscriptions to Cricut Access or Cricut Access Premium after the expiration of their initial subscription term,
and our subscriptions may be offered on a monthly and annual basis. The images and designs on our platform are available for purchase à la
carte, which may limit the incentive for users to purchase subscriptions. Our ability to increase new subscriptions may decline or fluctuate as a
result of a number of factors, including seasonality, the quality of images and projects we offer, the number of new features and capabilities only
offered through our subscriptions, the prices of products offered by our competitors and the budgets and consumer spending habits of our users.
If our users do not renew their subscriptions or if additional users do not purchase subscriptions, our future revenue and results of operations
could be harmed. To the extent that users of our free design apps do not purchase images, projects or products à la carte or convert to a
subscription, our future revenue and results of operations could be harmed. Our efforts to increase our subscriptions may not have the desired
effect. For example, in 2021, we proposed changes to our free Design Space app that would have limited the number of personal images or
patterns a user could upload and save each month to our cloud without a subscription; however, because of user reaction, we determined not to
proceed with the proposed changes. Instead of increasing subscriptions, other attempts to increase subscriptions could cause our users to limit
their use of our connected machines, cause reputational harm and damaged relationships, and result in reduced sales of connected machines
and accessories and materials, any of which could negatively affect our future revenue and results of operations. Finally, any future changes to
our subscription model could make our subscriptions less attractive to users or reduce our margins on subscriptions, which could negatively
affect our future revenue and results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive market and we may be unable to compete successfully against existing and future competitors.

The markets in which we participate, including the traditional craft market and the other creative or DIY markets we touch, are highly
competitive with limited barriers to entry. We operate and manage our business in three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscription
and Accessories and Materials. We face competition in every aspect of our business, but particularly in Accessories and Materials. Many
accessories and materials produced by our competitors, including the private label products of some of our retail partners, are compatible with
our connected machines and are often available for purchase through our retail partners. Our competitors may offer competing accessories and
materials at lower price points or with different features than our products. Moreover, we expect the competition in the accessories and materials
DIY market to intensify in the future as new and existing competitors introduce new or enhanced products that may compete with our product
lines. Because we derive a significant portion of our revenue from the sales of accessories and materials, any material decline in such sales
would have a pronounced impact on our future revenue and results of operations.
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We also experience competition in connected machines from sellers of both connected and manual cutting and other machines. For
example, Brother, Graphtec and Silhouette America sell cutting machines, and a number of companies sell heat press machines. Our
Subscriptions business, which provides users with fonts and images for making designs, competes with well-established content providers, from
free resources that enable users to access content that is compatible with our platform, to more specific content marketplaces, where customers
can purchase digital files to upload to our platform.

With respect to all of our segments, introduction by competitors of comparable products at lower price points, a maturing product lifecycle,
a decline in consumer spending or other factors could result in a decline in our revenue derived from our products, which may adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

As our product categories mature, new competitive forces and competitors may emerge. As we expand our product offerings, we may
begin to compete in new product offerings with new competitors. Our competitors may develop, or have already developed, products, features,
content, services or technologies that are similar to ours or that achieve greater market acceptance, undertake more successful product
development efforts, create more compelling employment opportunities or marketing campaigns or may adopt more aggressive pricing policies.
Our competitors may develop or acquire, or have already developed or acquired, intellectual property rights that significantly limit or prevent our
ability to compete effectively in the public marketplace. In addition, our competitors may have significantly greater resources than we do, allowing
them to identify and capitalize more efficiently upon opportunities in new markets and consumer preferences and trends, quickly transition and
adapt their products, devote greater resources to marketing and advertising or better position themselves to withstand substantial price
competition. If we are not able to compete effectively against our competitors, they may acquire and engage our users or generate revenue at the
expense of our efforts, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sales of copycat products or unauthorized “gray market” products by brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or distributors could
adversely affect our authorized distribution channels and harm our reputation, business and results of operations.

Copycat companies or products may attempt to imitate our connected machines and accessories and materials, our brand or the
functionality of our products. When consumers purchase copycat products in lieu of our products, it negatively affects our business and results of
operations. In the past, when we have become aware of such products, we have employed technological or legal measures in an attempt to halt
their distribution, and we plan to continue to employ such measures in the future. However, we may be unable to detect all copycat products in a
timely manner, and, even if we could, technological and legal measures may be insufficient to halt their distribution. In some cases, particularly in
the case of brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors operating outside of the United States, our available remedies may not be
adequate to protect us against the effect of such copycat products. Regardless of whether we can successfully enforce our rights against the
producers of these products, any measures that we may take could require us to expend significant financial or other resources, which could
harm our business, results of operations or financial condition. For example, we are currently aware of certain unauthorized copycat products,
such as mats and other accessories, that are actively marketed for use with our connected machines and are available through certain major
online retail partners. We have taken legal action against certain of the producers of these copycat products and anticipate expending significant
financial or other resources in the future to combat these products. In addition, to the extent that sales of copycat products create confusion or
experiences with our products among consumers, our brand and business could be harmed. For example, in some cases, users purchase
copycat products believing them to be Cricut products and then inaccurately attribute defects with those products to Cricut, which would
adversely affect our reputation. In other cases, our users purchase copycat accessories to use with their connected machine, but since the
copycat accessories are not calibrated correctly to work with our connected machines, they may have a negative experience and attribute it to
the connected machine.

Further, some of our products may find their way to unauthorized outlets or distribution channels. This “gray market” for our products can
undermine authorized brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors who promote and support our products and can damage our
reputation and business, and we may have to spend significant time and resources in the future to challenge such copycat products and
unauthorized “gray market” products.
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Competitive pricing pressures, including with respect to our products, subscriptions and shipping, may harm our business and results
of operations.

If we are unable to sustain pricing levels for our products and subscriptions, whether due to competitive pressure or otherwise, our gross
margins could be significantly reduced. As of December 31, 2021, our portfolio of connected machines range from $179.99 to $399.99 MSRP,
and subscription offerings range from $9.99 per month to $95.88 per year for Cricut Access or $119.88 per year for Cricut Access Premium,
which includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and preferred shipping. Within our accessories and materials,
our SKUs range in price from $0.99 to $239.99.

Demand for our products can be sensitive to price, especially in times of slow or uncertain economic growth and consumer economic
conservatism. To the degree we implement price increases, we could see further impact on consumer behavior and demand. Many factors can
significantly impact our pricing strategies, including production and personnel costs, as well as other factors outside of our control, such as
consumer sentiment, increases in the price of raw materials, and our competitors’ pricing and marketing strategies. Changes in our pricing
strategies have had, and may continue to have, a significant impact on our revenue and net income. From time to time, we have made changes
to our pricing structure to remain competitive, because if we fail to meet our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners’ and users’ price
expectations, we could lose sales. Furthermore, brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may choose to offer promotions or sales on our
products, including our connected machines, and we may have to match those prices on our own website to continue to attract users to our
website to make purchases, which could affect our business and results of operations.

Many of our accessories and materials, including vinyl, iron-on vinyl, paper, metal, laminate, leather, fabric, stationery, stickers and other
merchandise, are also offered by our competitors at lower prices or with free or accelerated shipping timelines that we either are unable to or
choose not to match. Accordingly, if a user runs out of materials during a project, they may opt to purchase a replacement from a competitor or
other online retail partner, such as Amazon, to receive one or two-day shipping, which we may not be able to offer. In addition, many of our
competitors discount our accessories and materials or competitors’ accessories and materials at significant levels, and, as a result, we may be
compelled to change our discounting strategy, which could impact our business and results of operations. If in the future, due to competitor
discounting, shipping or other marketing strategies, we significantly reduce our prices on our products without a corresponding increase in sales
volume, it would negatively impact our revenue and could adversely affect our gross margins and overall profitability.

Further, our decisions around the development of new products and subscriptions are grounded in assumptions about eventual pricing
levels. If there is price compression in the market after these decisions are made, our business and results of operations could be adversely
affected.

If we are not able to accurately estimate variable consideration from sales incentives each quarter, it could affect revenue in future
periods.

We participate in promotional and rebate programs with our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to enhance the sale of our
products. These promotional programs consist of incentives or entitlements to our customers, such as advertising allowances, volume and
growth incentives, business development, product damage allowances and point-of-sale support. Sales incentives are considered to be variable
consideration, which we estimate each quarter using the expected value method or most likely amount, based upon the nature of the incentive.
Sales are reduced by the cost of these promotional and rebate programs and we record a related sales incentive liability in our consolidated
balance sheets at the date of the transaction. To the extent that our estimates of variable consideration from sales incentives each quarter are not
accurate, it could affect our revenue in future periods.
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We have grown rapidly in recent years and have limited operating experience at our current scale of operations. If we are unable to
manage our growth and the complexity of our business effectively, our brand, company culture and financial performance may suffer.

We have grown rapidly in recent years and have limited operating experience at our current size. For example, our revenue has grown
from $486.6 million to $959.0 million and $1,306.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively. In addition,
between January 1, 2019 and December 31, 2020, our employee headcount increased from over 350 to over 640, and we expect headcount
growth to continue for the foreseeable future. Employee headcount as of December 31, 2021 was over 830. Further, as we grow, our business
becomes increasingly complex, particularly for a company of our relative size. To effectively manage and capitalize on our growth, we must
continue to forecast demand and manage our supply chain, expand our sales and marketing, focus on innovative product development, upgrade
and secure our management information systems and other processes and obtain more space for our expanding staff. Our continued growth and
complexity could strain our existing resources, and we could experience ongoing operating difficulties in managing our business across
numerous jurisdictions, including difficulties in hiring, training and managing a diffuse and growing employee base. Failure to scale with growth
could harm our future success, including our ability to effectively focus on and pursue our corporate objectives. Moreover, the complicated nature
of our business, in which we design our own products, develop our own design apps, rely on third-party manufacturers and sell our products
through brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as through our website, exposes us to risk and disruption at many points that are
critical to successfully operating our business and may make it more difficult for us to scale our business. If we do not adapt to meet these
evolving challenges, including hiring and maintaining the right number of employees for each aspect of our business, or if our management team
does not effectively scale with our growth, we may experience erosion to our brand, the quality of our products may suffer and our company
culture may be harmed.

Our growth strategy contemplates an increase in our advertising and other sales and marketing spending, which represented 8% and 7%
of revenue in 2019 and 2020, respectively, and 10% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. Successful implementation of our growth
strategy will require significant expenditures before any substantial associated revenue is generated, and we cannot guarantee that these
increased investments will result in corresponding and offsetting revenue growth.

Because we have a limited history of operating our business at its current scale, it is difficult to evaluate our current business and future
prospects, including our ability to plan for and model future growth and anticipate the risks that may affect our business. This limited operating
experience, combined with the complexity of our business and rapidly evolving nature of the market in which we sell our products, raises
substantial uncertainty concerning how these markets and other economic factors beyond our control may develop and reduces our ability to
accurately forecast quarterly or annual revenue. Failure to manage our future growth effectively could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our business is affected by seasonality.

Our business has historically been influenced by seasonal trends. We generate a disproportionate amount of sales activity related to our
products during the fourth quarter, due in large part to seasonal holiday demand. For example, in 2019 and 2020 our fourth quarter represented
36% and 39% of total revenue for the year, respectively, and 30% of total revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. Our
promotional discounting activity is also higher in the fourth quarter, which negatively impacts gross margin during this period. Accordingly,
adverse events that occur during these months could have a disproportionate effect on our results of operations for the entire fiscal year. In
contrast, sales of accessories and materials typically slow in the second quarter of the year in connection with school summer holidays.
Seasonality in our business can also be affected by introductions of new or enhanced products, including the costs associated with such
introductions. Furthermore, our rapid growth in recent years may obscure the extent to which seasonality trends have affected our business and
may continue to affect our business. For example, we experienced unusually high demand in the first and second quarters of 2021, which is
inconsistent with normal seasonality patterns. Accordingly, yearly or quarterly comparisons of our results of operations may not be useful and our
results in any particular period will not necessarily be indicative of the results to be expected for any future period. Moreover, we have
experienced a significant increase in sales since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the rollout of COVID-19 vaccines, lifting of
restrictions on movement and/or normalized full-time return to work trends may negatively impact demand for our products and subscriptions,
and our sales activity may diminish as a result.
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Our quarterly results of operations and other operating metrics may fluctuate from quarter to quarter, which makes these metrics
difficult to predict.

Our quarterly results of operations and other operating metrics have fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate in the future. Additionally, our
limited operating history at our current scale of operations makes it difficult to forecast our future results. As a result, you should not rely on our
past quarterly results of operations as indicators of future performance. Our financial condition, results of operations and operating metrics in any
given quarter can be influenced by numerous factors, many of which we are unable to predict or are outside of our control, including those
discussed in this Risk Factors section and:

• the continued market acceptance, and the growth, of the personal craft market;

• our ability to attract and engage our users, leading to increased sales to them;

• our development and improvement of the quality of our user experience, including enhancement of existing products, creation of new
products, technology and features and licensing of new content;

• the continued development and upgrading of our proprietary software;

• the timing and success of new products, features and content introductions by us or our competitors or any other change in the
competitive landscape of the markets in which we operate;

• pricing pressure as a result of competition or otherwise;

• delays or disruptions in our supply chain;

• errors in our forecasting of the demand for our products, which could lead to lower revenue, increased costs or both;

• increases in marketing, sales and other operating expenses;

• seasonal fluctuations in subscriptions, engagement by users and purchases of accessories and materials;

• the mix of our products sales from period to period;

• our ability to maintain gross margins and operating margins;

• system failures or breaches of security or privacy;

• adverse litigation judgments, settlements or other litigation-related costs;

• changes in the legislative or regulatory environment, including with respect to privacy, data protection and security, consumer product
safety and advertising or enforcement by government regulators, including fines, orders or consent decrees;

• fluctuations in currency exchange rates and changes in the proportion of our revenue and expenses denominated in foreign currencies;

• changes in our effective tax rate;

• changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles; and

• changes in business or macroeconomic conditions, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, lower consumer confidence,
recessionary conditions, inflationary pressures, increased unemployment rates or stagnant or declining wages.

Any one of the factors above or the cumulative effect of some of the factors above may result in significant fluctuations in our results of
operations.

The variability and unpredictability of our quarterly results of operations or other operating metrics could result in our failure to meet our or
investors’ expectations or those of analysts that cover us with respect to revenue or other results of operations for a particular period. If we fail to
meet such expectations, the market price of our Class A common stock could fall substantially, and we could face costly lawsuits, including
securities class action suits.
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Our future growth depends in part on further penetrating our SAM and TAM and we may not be successful in doing so.

We believe that our growth depends on our ability to reach our market opportunity in terms of our SAM, which includes active creatives who
we address with our current products and price points, and our TAM, which includes potential creatives who we believe we can reach over the
long term as we make products for new uses and products that are more accessible, even easier to use and available at a broad set of price
points. See the section titled “Business - Our Opportunity.” We assess our SAM and TAM in the United States and Canada, as well as
internationally. We believe that in order to further penetrate our SAM and TAM, we must continually improve ease of use and user experience,
launch new products in new categories and expand internationally. For example, some users find our connected machines to be challenging to
use or may require user education in order to operate them efficiently or have the best user experience. If we are not able to make our connected
machines easier to use or improve user education and experience, we may not be able to expand our SAM and TAM. Our SAM and TAM are
representative of a broad demographic. However, historically we have served a largely female demographic representing 94% of our users as of
December 31, 2021. We continue to explore additional offerings that address new categories that will appeal to a wider demographic. Any new
offerings may not appeal to current consumer preferences and may not be accepted by our user community or potential new users. While we
believe our growth depends on our ability to expand our sales into our SAM and our TAM, we cannot be certain that we will be successful in
doing so.

Our focus on delivering a high-quality product, which may not maximize short-term financial results, may yield results that conflict
with the market’s expectations and could result in our stock price being negatively affected.

We focus on delivering a high-quality product, which may not necessarily maximize short-term financial results. We operate on the
conviction that focusing on the needs of our users and our employees will produce positive results for our owners over the long term. We
frequently make business decisions that may reduce our short-term financial results if we believe that the decisions are consistent with our goals
to improve our users’ experience, which we believe will improve our financial results over the long term. These decisions may not be consistent
with the short-term expectations of our stockholders or produce the long-term benefits that we expect, which could hinder the growth of the
number and engagement of our users and harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Any failure to successfully implement new technology or upgrade our information technology systems, or any major disruption or
failure of our information technology systems or websites, could adversely affect our business and operations.

Certain of our information technology systems are designed and maintained by us and are critical for the efficient functioning of our
business, including the manufacture and distribution of our products, online sales of our products and the ability of our users to access their
content and designs. Our rapid growth has, in certain instances, strained these systems. As we grow, we continue to implement modifications
and upgrades to our systems, including sunsetting the use of internal servers and the implementing a company-wide product lifecycle
management system. These changes subject us to inherent costs and risks associated with replacing and upgrading these systems, including,
but not limited to, impairment of our ability to fulfill brick-and-mortar and online retail partners orders and other disruptions in our business
operations. Further, our system implementations may not result in productivity improvements at a level that outweighs the costs of
implementation, or at all.
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Our platform is complex and multifaceted, and operational and performance issues could arise both from the platform itself and from
outside factors, such as cybersecurity attacks or other third-party attacks. Errors, failures, vulnerabilities or bugs have been found in the past, and
may in the future be found. Our platform also relies on third-party technology and systems to perform properly, and our platform is often used in
connection with computing environments utilizing different operating systems, system management software, equipment and networking
configurations, which may cause errors in, or failures of, our platform or such other computing environments. Operational and performance
issues with our platform could include the failure of our user interface, outages, errors during upgrades or patches, unanticipated volume
overwhelming our systems, server failure or catastrophic events affecting one or more server farms. While we have built redundancies in our
systems, full redundancies do not exist, and some failures could shut our platform down completely. As our user community grows and their
usage of our services increases, we will be required to make additional investments in network capacity to maintain adequate data transmission
speeds, the availability of which may be limited, and the cost of which may be on terms unacceptable to us. If adequate capacity is not available
to us as our users’ usage increases, our network may be unable to achieve or maintain sufficiently high reliability or performance. In the event
that our users are unable to access our platform or suffer operational issues with our platform, it could negatively affect their experience with our
products and platform and harm our reputation.

In addition, any unexpected technological interruptions to our systems, internal servers or websites could disrupt our operations, including
our ability to process orders, timely ship and track product orders, project inventory requirements, manage our supply chain, sell our products
online, provide Cricut Member Care and otherwise adequately serve our community. Specifically, a portion of our online sales comes directly from
cricut.com, and any system interruptions or delays could prevent potential customers from purchasing our products directly from us. If users or
potential customers fail to purchase our products directly from us, or if we are otherwise unable to maintain an efficient and uninterrupted
operation of online order-taking and fulfillment operations, our revenue will be negatively impacted. In the event we experience significant
disruptions or are unable to repair our systems in an efficient and timely manner, it could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners can be subject to lower gross margins, heightened product or packaging
requirements or long ramp up times.

Our top seven brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, measured by the product revenue we derive from them, accounted for 52% of
product revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021. Gross margins from sales to retailers may decline as a result of a number of factors
outside our control, including tariffs as a result of trade wars and our reliance on a primary contract manufacturer which holds influence over the
supply chain. This may magnify the impact of variations in revenue and operating costs on our results of operations, which in turn could adversely
affect our overall margins and profitability. We had in 2019, 2020 and 2021, and may continue to have in the future, low gross margins in the early
stages of our relationships with certain brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, particularly international brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners that often require significant ramp-up periods, which has and may in the future adversely affect our total revenue. To compete effectively,
we have been, and may in the future decide to offer significant discounts to large brick-and-mortar and online retail partners at lower margins or
reduce or withdraw from existing relationships with smaller brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, which could negatively impact our revenue
and could adversely affect our gross margins and overall profitability.

We rely on a limited number of distributors to generate a portion of our sales, particularly in our international target markets. The loss
of, or a substantial decline in, volume of sales from any of our key distributors could adversely affect our financial performance.

We rely on a limited number of distributors for certain domestic sales, including to help establish relationships with certain retailers, and
primarily sell through distributors internationally. If we lose any of our key distributors, particularly in our international target markets, if we are
unable to meet our key distributors’ demand requirements or if our key distributors sell competing products, our business and results of
operations could be adversely affected. Moreover, because certain of our key distributors may have dominant positions in their markets, such key
distributors may not be easy to replace and the loss of a key distributor could also impact our relationships with certain retailers. Any loss of
market share or financial difficulties faced by our key distributors, including bankruptcy and financial restructuring, could adversely affect our
financial performance.

We also continue to pursue direct to retailer sales, which may impact our relationships with existing distributors. In the future, we may
choose to temporarily or permanently stop shipping product to distributors who do not follow the policies and guidelines in our sales agreements,
which could adversely affect our revenue and results of operations.
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Additionally, our international distributors generally buy from us in U.S. dollars and generally sell to retailers in local currency, so significant
currency fluctuations could affect their profitability, and in turn, affect their ability to buy products from us in the future. For example, the COVID-
19 pandemic has created significant short-term volatility in global stock markets and has caused currency exchange rate fluctuations that make it
more expensive for international distributors to purchase our products. Any reduction in sales by our international retailers could harm our
international expansion and adversely affect our future growth.

Our future success depends on the continuing efforts of our key employees and our ability to attract and retain highly skilled
personnel and senior management.

Our future success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to identify, attract, develop, integrate and retain qualified and highly skilled
personnel, including senior management, engineers, designers, product managers, logistics and supply chain personnel, retail managers and
Cricut Member Care personnel. In particular, we are highly dependent on the services of Ashish Arora, our Chief Executive Officer and the
founder of our current product family and business model, who is critical to the development of, future vision for and strategic direction of our
business. We also heavily rely on the continued service and performance of our senior management team, which provides leadership, contributes
to the core areas of our business and helps us to efficiently execute our strategic direction. If our senior management team, including any new
hires that we make, fails to work together effectively and to execute our plans and strategies on a timely basis, then our business and future
growth prospects could be harmed.

Additionally, the loss of any key personnel could make it more difficult to manage our operations and research and development activities,
reduce our employee retention and revenue and impair our ability to compete. For example, on January 3, 2022, Martin Petersen, Cricut’s Chief
Financial Officer, informed Cricut of his intention to step down from his position as Chief Financial Officer, effective March 31, 2022, and to retire
from Cricut effective September 30, 2022, serving as Executive Vice President and Senior Advisor from April 1, 2022 until his retirement. In
connection with our initial public offering, we entered into employment letters with our key personnel. These letters have no specific duration and
constitute at-will employment. We do not maintain key person life insurance policies on any of our employees.

Competition for highly skilled personnel in our industry is often intense. We may not be successful in attracting, integrating or retaining
qualified personnel to fulfill our current or future needs. We have from time to time experienced, and we expect to continue to experience,
difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. In addition, job candidates and existing employees often
consider the value of the equity awards they receive in connection with their employment. If the perceived value of our Class A common stock
declines, it may adversely affect our ability to hire or retain highly skilled employees. In addition, we may periodically change our equity
compensation practices, which may include reducing the number of employees eligible for equity awards or reducing the size of equity awards
granted per employee. If we are unable to attract, integrate or retain the qualified and highly skilled personnel required to fulfill our current or
future needs, our business and future growth prospects could be harmed.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain the value and reputation of the Cricut brand.

We believe that our brand is important to our large and loyal community of users, many of whom become deeply engaged with our brand.
Maintaining, protecting and enhancing our brand depends largely on the success of our marketing efforts, our ability to provide consistent, high-
quality products, services, features, content and support and our ability to successfully secure, maintain and defend our rights to use the Cricut,
Cricut Access, Cricut EasyPress, Cricut Explore, Cricut Maker and Design Space marks and other trademarks important to our brand or that we
develop in the future. Our brand value also depends on our ability to maintain a positive user perception of our corporate integrity and culture. We
believe that the importance of our brand will increase as competition further intensifies and brand promotion activities may require substantial
expenditures. Our brand could be harmed if we fail to achieve these objectives or if our public image were to be tarnished by negative publicity,
including through social media or other communications from our community. Unfavorable publicity about us, including our products, technology,
Cricut Member Care, content, and personnel could diminish confidence in, and the use of, our products. In addition, negative publicity about our
suppliers, including as a result of actual or perceived unfair labor practices, labor disputes or violations of laws or other obligations or issues
unknown to us, could also have a negative impact on our reputation. Such negative publicity also could adversely affect the size, engagement
and loyalty of our user base or the effectiveness of word-of-mouth marketing, and result in decreased revenue, or require us to expend additional
funds for marketing efforts, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We rely on Amazon Web Services for a substantial portion of our computing, storage, data processing, networking and other services.
Any disruption of or interference with our use of Amazon Web Services or other third-party services could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on Amazon Web Services for a substantial portion of our computing, storage, data processing, networking and other services. Any
significant disruption of, or interference with, our use of Amazon Web Services could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Amazon Web Services has broad discretion to change and interpret the terms of service and other policies with respect to us, and
those actions may be unfavorable to our business operations. Amazon Web Services may also take actions beyond our control that could
seriously harm our business, including discontinuing or limiting our access to one or more services, increasing pricing terms, terminating or
seeking to terminate our contractual relationship altogether or altering how we are able to process data in a way that is unfavorable or costly to
us. Although we expect that we could obtain similar services from other third parties, if our arrangements with Amazon Web Services were
terminated, we could experience interruptions on our platform and in our ability to make our content available to users, as well as delays and
additional expenses in arranging for alternative cloud infrastructure services. Any transition of the cloud services currently provided by Amazon
Web Services to another cloud provider would be difficult to implement and will cause us to incur significant time and expense.

Additionally, we are vulnerable to service interruptions experienced by Amazon Web Services and other providers, and we expect to
experience interruptions, delays or outages in service availability in the future due to a variety of factors, including infrastructure changes, human,
hardware or software errors, hosting disruptions and capacity constraints. Outages and capacity constraints could arise from a number of causes
such as technical failures, natural disasters, fraud or security attacks. The level of service provided by these providers, or regular or prolonged
interruptions in that service, could also affect the use of, and our users’ satisfaction with, our products and services and could harm our business
and reputation. In addition, hosting costs will increase as user engagement grows, which could harm our business if we are unable to grow our
revenue faster than the cost of using these services or the services of other providers. Any of these factors could further reduce our revenue or
subject us to liability, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we fail to offer high-quality customer support, our business and reputation will suffer.

Once users purchase our products, they depend on Cricut Member Care to resolve technical and operational issues relating to our
products. Our ability to provide effective customer support is largely dependent on our ability to attract, train and retain qualified personnel with
experience in supporting customers using complex products and software such as ours. We spend significant time and resources in training our
Cricut Member Care team to effectively use our software and to resolve any issues that may arise with Design Space, Cricut Access and Cricut
Access Premium. A variety of factors including an increase in sales or fluctuation in demand for support due to seasonality or other factors, have
and will continue to put additional pressure on our customer support team. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic-related closure of our offices
has largely forced our Cricut Member Care staff to work from home, which has and may continue to result in work-productivity issues or a
decrease in efficiencies, particularly during times of high call volume as we have seen when delivery lead times get longer. We may be unable to
respond quickly enough to accommodate short-term increases in demand for technical support. In addition, as we continue to grow our
operations and expand internationally, our Cricut Member Care team will face additional challenges, including those associated with delivering
support, training and documentation in languages other than English and across various time zones globally. If we are unable to provide efficient
customer support globally at scale, our ability to grow our operations may be harmed, and we may need to hire additional support personnel,
which could negatively impact our results of operations, particularly if it is not accompanied by a corresponding increase in revenue. We also rely
on third-party business process outsourcing providers to provide international local language support as well as incremental temporary staffing. If
our third-party business process outsourcing partners do not perform their obligations or meet our expectations, our business could be negatively
impacted. In addition, we provide self-service support resources to our users, some of which rely on engagement and collaboration by and with
other users. If we are unable to continue to develop self-service support resources that are easy to use and allow our users to resolve their
technical issues, or if our users choose not to collaborate or engage with other users on technical support issues, our self-service support
resources may not be effective, and our users’ experience with our platform may be negatively impacted. Any failure to, or market perception that
we do not, maintain high-quality support, including through social media or other communications from our community, could harm our reputation,
our ability to attract new users, the engagement of our existing users with our platform and our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
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Our business depends on the integration of our software across a wide range of desktop and mobile devices and operating systems
that are outside of our control.

Users engage with our software across a wide range of desktop and mobile devices and from a number of operating systems that are
outside of our control. We are dependent on the interoperability of our software, as well as Cricut Access, Cricut Access Premium, Cricut Joy
App, Design Space and other design apps, with popular desktop and mobile operating systems, such as Android and iOS. Any changes in such
systems that degrade the functionality of our software or design apps or give preferential treatment to competitors could adversely affect our
software’s usage on desktop and mobile devices. To deliver high-quality images and projects, it is important that our software is designed
effectively and works well with a range of third-party desktop and mobile systems, networks and standards. We may not be successful in
developing relationships with key participants with original equipment manufacturing or mobile industry or in developing software that operate
effectively with these technologies, systems, networks or standards. For example, mobile network operators or operating system providers could
block or place onerous restrictions on the ability to download and use our software.

Outside of the United States, it is possible that governments of one or more countries may seek to censor images or projects available on
our software or website or even attempt to block access to our website or design apps. If we are restricted from operating in one or more
countries, our ability to attract and engage users in those regions may be adversely affected, and we may not be able to grow our business as we
anticipate.

Failures in Internet infrastructure or interference with broadband access, including regulatory actions, could cause current or potential
users to believe that our platform system or design apps are unreliable, possibly leading our users to switch to our competitors or to
avoid using our products and subscriptions.

Many of our products and our subscriptions depend on our users’ high-speed broadband access to the Internet. Increasing numbers of
users and increasing bandwidth requirements may degrade the performance of our users’ Internet access and therefore their access to or
experience with our services and design apps. If Internet access service providers have outages or deteriorations in their quality of service, our
users will not have access to our platform or may experience a decrease in the quality of our services. Frequent or persistent interruptions, even
if resulting from users’ personal Internet access rather than our systems, could cause current or potential users to believe that our systems or
services are unreliable, leading them to switch to our competitors or avoid using our products and subscriptions, and could permanently harm our
reputation and brands.

In addition, users who access our subscriptions and design apps through mobile devices, such as smartphones and tablets, should utilize a
high-speed connection, such as Wi-Fi, 4G, 5G or LTE, to ensure the best experience with our services and design apps. Currently, this access is
provided by companies that have significant and increasing market power in the broadband and Internet access marketplace, including
incumbent phone companies, cable companies and wireless companies. These providers could take measures that degrade, disrupt or increase
the cost of user access to high-speed Internet connections, any of which would make our design apps and subscriptions less attractive to users,
and reduce our revenue. Failures of Internet infrastructure or interference with broadband access may also impact our international expansion in
countries that lack widespread high-speed Internet.

Further, in January 2018, the Federal Communications Commission, or the FCC, released an order reclassifying broadband Internet
access as an information service, subject to certain provisions of Title I of the Communications Act of 1934. Among other things, the order
eliminates rules adopted in 2015 that prohibited broadband providers from blocking, impairing or degrading access to legal content, applications,
services or non-harmful devices or engaging in the practice of paid prioritization, e.g., the favoring of some lawful Internet traffic over other traffic
in exchange for higher payments. The order was contested in federal court; it was largely affirmed by a three-judge panel but the panel did order
the FCC to reconsider certain elements of the repeal. The request for rehearing was denied and the parties declined to appeal the decision to the
U.S. Supreme Court. In October 2020, the FCC adopted an order concluding that the issues remanded by the court did not provide a basis to
alter its conclusions in the 2018 order. The 2020 order could be subject to further petitions for reconsideration or court appeals. A number of
states have enacted or are considering legislation or executive actions that would regulate the conduct of broadband providers. Democratic
control of the Executive Branch, Congress and the FCC following the 2020 elections may increase the likelihood of legislative or FCC action to
reverse the 2018 order or adopt new national network neutrality rules. We cannot predict whether the FCC order or state initiatives will be
modified, overturned or vacated by legal action of the court, federal or state legislation or the FCC. Under the new FCC rules, broadband Internet
access providers may be able to charge web-based services such as ours for priority access to customers, which could result in increased costs
to us and a loss of existing users, impair our ability to attract new users and materially and adversely affect our business and opportunities for
growth.
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We may be subject to warranty claims and brick-and-mortar and online retail partner return policies that could result in significant
direct or indirect costs, or we could experience greater product returns than expected, either of which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We generally provide a one-year limited warranty on our connected machines and customer satisfaction guarantees on certain other
products, and we permit returns of certain products for a full refund within 15 days of receipt of order. Additionally, our brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners and distributors provide users with their own respective warranty and/or return policies relative to our connected machines,
accessories and materials and other Cricut products they sell, which in turn flow down to us as a contractual obligation and/or allowance that we
must honor. The occurrence of any material defects in our connected machines or certain other products, or the flow-down obligations for brick-
and-mortar and online retail partner and distributor returns, could result in an increase in product returns or make us liable for damages and
warranty claims and/or returns in excess of our current reserves, which could result in an adverse effect on our business prospects, liquidity,
financial condition and cash flows if warranty claims were to materially exceed anticipated levels. In addition, we could incur significant costs to
correct any defects, warranty claims or other problems, including costs related to product recalls. We have experienced negative publicity related
to the perceived quality and safety of our products, including social media or other communications from our community, and we may experience
such negative publicity in the future. Such negative publicity could increase the number of warranty claims made, affect our brand image,
decrease user confidence and demand and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Also, while our warranty is limited to
repairs and returns, warranty claims may result in litigation, the occurrence of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

In addition to warranties supplied by us, our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may offer the option for users to purchase third-
party extended warranty and services contracts in some markets, which creates an ongoing performance obligation beyond the warranty period.
Extended warranties are regulated in the United States on a state level and are treated differently by each state. Outside the United States,
regulations for extended warranties vary from country to country. Changes in interpretation of the insurance regulations or other laws and
regulations concerning extended warranties on a federal, state, local or international level may cause us to incur costs or have additional
regulatory requirements to meet in the future. Our failure to comply with past, present and future similar laws could result in reduced sales of our
products, reputational damage, penalties and other sanctions, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Product recalls and/or product liability, as well as changes in product safety and other consumer protection laws, may adversely affect
our operations, merchandise offerings, reputation, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.

We are subject to regulations by a variety of federal, state and international regulatory authorities, including the Consumer Product Safety
Act, amended by the Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act of 2008, California Proposition 65 (officially known as the Safe Drinking Water
and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986), the European Union’s, or EU’s, European Regulation on Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals and Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive. While our contracts with our suppliers and manufacturers require
them to comply with product safety requirements and quality control standards, one or more of our suppliers or contract manufacturers may fail to
adhere to such requirements or standards, and we may not identify the deficiency before merchandise ships to brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners or users. These issues may be exacerbated in the case of products like ours that are manufactured outside the United States, as the
product safety regimes in some countries may be less robust than in the United States. Any issues of product safety, including but not limited to
those manufactured in foreign countries, could cause us to recall some of those products. Furthermore, to the extent we are unable to replace
any recalled products, we may have to reduce our product offerings, resulting in a decrease in sales, especially if a recall occurs near or during a
period of seasonally higher demand. If our suppliers or manufacturers are unable or unwilling to recall products failing to meet our quality
standards, we may be required to recall those products at a substantial cost to us. Moreover, changes in product safety or other consumer
protection laws could lead to increased costs to us for certain merchandise, or additional labor costs associated with readying merchandise for
sale. Long lead times on merchandise ordering cycles increase the difficulty for us to plan and prepare for potential changes to applicable laws.
The Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act of 2008 imposes significant requirements on manufacturing, importing, testing and labeling
requirements for our products. In the event that we are unable to timely comply with regulatory changes or regulators do not believe we are
complying with current regulations applicable to us, significant fines or penalties could result and could adversely affect our reputation, results of
operations, cash flow and financial condition.
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Furthermore, any product defects could make our products and services unsafe, create a risk of property damage and personal injury,
harm our reputation and subject us to the hazards and uncertainties of product liability claims and related litigation. For example, we are aware of
several situations in which our products were investigated as the potential cause of a fire. While we believe that in each of those cases, the
investigations determined a different cause of the fire, any perception that our products are unsafe could harm our reputation and sales and use
of our products. We maintain general liability insurance; however, design and manufacturing defects, and claims related thereto, may subject us
to judgments or settlements that result in damages materially in excess of the limits of our insurance coverage. In addition, we may be exposed
to write-offs of inventory or intangible assets or other expenses such as litigation costs and regulatory fines. If we cannot successfully defend any
large claim, maintain our general liability insurance on acceptable terms or maintain adequate coverage against potential claims, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely impacted.

Changes in how we market our products could adversely affect our marketing expenses and revenue.

We use a broad mix of marketing and other brand-building measures to attract potential customers. Traditionally, our users have been our
most effective marketing tools, helping to generate robust word-of-mouth referrals, which have been significant drivers of our growth. However,
we also employ traditional online advertising as marketing tools or market through third-party social media. As online and social media continue
to rapidly evolve and grow more competitive, we must increase our efforts to maintain an advertising presence on these platforms and establish a
presence on new or emerging popular social media and advertising and marketing platforms.

If our community of users does not continue to promote our products through word-of-mouth referrals at the same or increasing rates or we
otherwise experience a decline in our ability to acquire new users organically, we will need to expend additional resources on advertising and
increase our marketing expenses. Moreover, we expect our efforts to attract new users outside of the United States and Canada will require us to
spend additional resources, particularly in marketing. If we cannot use marketing tools in a cost-effective manner or if we fail to promote our
products efficiently and effectively, our ability to acquire new users and our financial condition may suffer. In addition, an increase in the use of
online and social media for product promotion and marketing may increase the burden on us to monitor compliance of such materials and
increase the risk that such materials could contain problematic product or marketing claims in violation of applicable regulations.

User metrics and other estimates are subject to inherent challenges in measurement, and real or perceived inaccuracies in those
metrics could harm our business, revenue and financial results.

We regularly review metrics, including the number of our users, whether a user created on their connected machines in the last 90 days,
the number of Paid Subscribers and other measures to evaluate engagement and growth trends, to measure our performance and to make
strategic decisions. These metrics are calculated using internal company data, and in some cases third-party data, and have not been validated
by an independent third party. While these numbers are based on what we currently believe to be reasonable estimates for the applicable period
of measurement, there are inherent challenges in measuring how our products are used across our user population. In addition, we have no
control over the third-party data we rely upon to calculate certain metrics, and the third-party may change the data, the way they calculate the
data or the way they report the data, which could create inaccuracies or challenges in the reporting of our metrics. If we fail to maintain effective
analytics capabilities, our metrics calculations may be inaccurate, and we may not be able to identify those inaccuracies.
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An economic downturn or economic uncertainty may adversely affect consumer discretionary spending and demand for our products.

Our products and subscriptions may be considered discretionary items for consumers. Factors affecting the level of consumer spending for
such discretionary items include general economic conditions, consumer confidence in future economic conditions, fears of recession, the
availability and cost of consumer credit, inflationary pressures, consumers’ individual savings-to-spend ratio, levels of unemployment,
discretionary time available, tax rates and political factors, including war or other armed conflicts, including the current conflict between Russia
and Ukraine. While we have seen an increase in demand for our products and subscriptions during the COVID-19 pandemic, there is no
guarantee that such trends will continue at the same rate in the future or at all, particularly once the rollout of COVID-19 vaccines reaches critical
mass, restrictions on movement are lifted and full-time return to work trends normalize. To date, our business has operated almost exclusively in
a relatively strong economic environment and, therefore, we cannot be sure the extent to which we may be affected by recessionary conditions.
Unfavorable economic conditions or other related factors may lead consumers to delay or reduce purchases of our products and subscriptions,
and consumer demand for our products and subscriptions may not grow as we expect. Our sensitivity to economic cycles and any related
fluctuation in consumer demand for our products and subscriptions could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Covenants in the Credit Agreement governing our secured revolving credit facility may restrict our ability to grow our business, and if
we do not effectively manage our business to comply with these covenants, our financial condition could be adversely affected.

In September 2020, we entered into a credit agreement, or the Credit Agreement, with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A. and
Origin Bank, providing for a three-year secured revolving credit facility with aggregate lender commitments of $150 million. We have the option to
increase the lender commitments by up to $200 million (for maximum aggregate lender commitments of up to $350 million), subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions under the Credit Agreement, including obtaining the consent of the administrative agent and each lender being
added or increasing its commitment. The credit facility is a standard asset-based lending facility, meaning that notwithstanding the aggregate
lender commitments, we can only borrow up to an amount equal to our borrowing base at any given time. As of December 31, 2021, we were
able to borrow up to $150.0 million. Our borrowing base is determined according to certain percentages of eligible accounts receivable and
eligible inventory (which may be valued at average cost, market value or net orderly liquidation value), subject to reserves determined by the
administrative agent. At any time that our borrowing base is less than the aggregate lender commitments, we can only borrow revolving loans up
to the amount of our borrowing base and not in the full amount of the aggregate lender commitments.

The Credit Agreement and related loan documents contain various restrictive covenants, including, among other things, a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio, restrictions on our ability to dispose of assets, make acquisitions or investments, incur debt or liens, make distributions to
our stockholders or enter into certain types of related party transactions. These restrictions may restrict our current and future operations,
particularly our ability to respond to certain changes in our business or industry or take future actions. Pursuant to the Credit Agreement and
related loan documents, we granted a security interest in substantially all of our assets. See the section titled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Credit Agreement” for additional information.

Our ability to comply with these restrictive covenants and limitations on our ability to grow our business can be impacted by events beyond
our control and we may be unable to do so. The Credit Agreement provides that our breach or failure to satisfy certain covenants constitutes an
event of default. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, our lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding under the Credit
Agreement to be immediately due and payable or proceed against the assets we provided as collateral. If the debt under the Credit Agreement
was to be accelerated, we may not have sufficient cash on hand or be able to sell sufficient collateral to repay it, which would have an immediate
adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
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We may require additional capital to support business growth and objectives, and this capital may not be available to us on reasonable
terms, if at all, and could result in stockholder dilution.

We expect that our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for the foreseeable future.
However, we intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional capital to fund our business and
to respond to competitive challenges, including the need to promote our products, develop new products, enhance our existing products and
operating infrastructure and potentially to acquire complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or
debt financings to secure additional funds. There can be no assurance that such additional funding will be available on terms attractive to us, or
at all. Our inability to obtain additional funding when needed could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If
additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, holders of our Class A common stock could suffer
significant dilution, and any new shares we issue could have rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of our Class A common stock.
Any debt financing secured by us in the future could involve restrictive covenants relating to our capital-raising activities and other financial and
operational matters, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential
acquisitions.

If we cannot maintain our culture as we grow, we could lose the innovation and teamwork that we believe contribute to our success
and our business may be harmed.

We believe that a critical component of our success has been our corporate culture. As we continue to grow, including by expanding our
presence internationally, and develop the infrastructure associated with being a public company, we will need to maintain our culture among a
larger number of employees, dispersed across various geographic regions. The widespread stay-at-home orders resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic have required us to make substantial changes to the way that the vast majority of our employee population does their work, and we
have faced new and unforeseen challenges arising from the management of remote, geographically-dispersed teams. Any failure to preserve our
culture could adversely affect our future success, including our ability to retain and recruit personnel and to effectively focus on and pursue our
corporate objectives.

Our management team has limited experience managing a public company.

Most members of our management team have limited experience managing a publicly traded company, interacting with public company
investors and complying with the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies. Specifically, Ashish Arora, our Chief Executive
Officer, has not previously been the chief executive officer of a publicly traded company, and Kimball Shill, our next chief financial officer, will be
serving in that role for the first time. Our management team may not successfully or efficiently manage our transition to being a public company
subject to significant regulatory oversight and reporting obligations under the federal securities laws and the continuous scrutiny of securities
analysts and investors. These new obligations and constituents will require significant attention from our senior management and could divert
their attention away from the day-to-day management of our business, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

We may experience fluctuations in our tax obligations and effective tax rate.

We are subject to a variety of taxes and tax collection obligations in the United States and in numerous other foreign jurisdictions. We
record tax expense, including indirect taxes, based on current tax payments and our estimates of future tax payments, which may include
reserves for estimates of probable or likely settlements of tax audits. Fluctuations in our tax obligations and effective tax rate could adversely
affect our business.

In the ordinary course of our business, there are numerous transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. For example, our effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have
lower statutory rates and higher than anticipated in countries where we have higher statutory rates, by changes in foreign currency exchange
rates or by changes in the relevant tax, accounting and other laws, regulations, principles and interpretations. As we operate in numerous taxing
jurisdictions, the application of tax laws can be subject to diverging and sometimes conflicting interpretations by tax authorities of these
jurisdictions. It is not uncommon for taxing authorities in different countries to have conflicting views with respect to, among other things, the
manner in which the arm’s-length standard is applied for transfer pricing purposes, or with respect to the valuation of intellectual property.
Although we believe that our tax positions and related provisions reflected in the financial statements are fully supportable, we recognize that
these tax positions and related provisions have been challenged and may be challenged in the future by various tax authorities. These tax
positions and related provisions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are adjusted as additional facts and information become available,
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including progress on tax audits, changes in interpretation of tax laws, developments in case law and closing of statute of limitations. To the
extent that the ultimate results differ from our original or adjusted estimates, our effective tax rate can be adversely affected.

Projected levels of taxable income and tax planning could change the effective tax rate and tax balances recorded by us. In addition, tax
authorities periodically review income tax returns filed by us and can raise issues regarding our filing positions, timing and amount of income and
deductions and the allocation of income among the jurisdictions in which we operate. A significant period of time may elapse between the filing of
an income tax return and the ultimate resolution of an issue raised by a tax authority with respect to that return. Any adjustments as a result of
any examination may result in additional taxes or penalties being assessed on or imposed against us. If the ultimate result of any audit differs
from original or adjusted estimates, it could have a material impact our effective tax rate and tax liabilities.

At any one time, multiple tax years could be subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. As a result, we could be subject to higher than
anticipated tax liabilities as well as ongoing variability in our quarterly tax rates as audits close and exposures are re-evaluated.

We continue to analyze our exposure for taxes and related liabilities and have accrued $4.0 million and $3.3 million as of December 31,
2019 and 2020, respectively, and $2.5 million as of December 31, 2021 for uncertain tax positions.

We may incur significant losses from fraud.

We have incurred and may in the future incur losses from various types of fraud, including stolen credit card numbers, claims that a user
did not authorize a purchase, merchant fraud and users who have closed bank accounts or have insufficient funds in open bank accounts to
satisfy payments. In addition to the direct costs of such losses, if the fraud is related to credit card transactions and becomes excessive, it could
result in us paying higher fees or losing the right to accept credit cards for payment. In addition, under current credit card practices, we are
typically liable for fraudulent credit card transactions. Our failure to adequately prevent fraudulent transactions could damage our reputation,
result in litigation or regulatory action and lead to expenses that could substantially impact our results of operations.

Risks Related to Manufacturing, Supply Chain and Fulfillment

We primarily depend upon a single contract manufacturer, and our operations would be disrupted if we encountered problems with the
contract manufacturer.

We depend on third-party contract manufacturers to produce all of our products, and primarily rely upon one contract manufacturer,
Intretech, to build most of our connected machines in Malaysia and China. The agreements with our top vendors in 2019, 2020 and 2021,
including Intretech, each have an initial term of five years from 2018 and automatically renew for subsequent periods of one year unless either
party provides notice of non-renewal at least 60 days prior to the expiration of the initial term. Such agreements may be terminated by the
vendors only for cause, such as (i) a breach of our payment obligation for accepted products that is not cured within ten days after notice from the
vendor or (ii) certain events relating to our insolvency or filing a petition for bankruptcy. Such agreements may be terminated by us for cause,
such as (i) failure to deliver products pursuant to the terms of the agreement, (ii) breaches of product warranty, indemnity or insurance;
intellectual property; property and representations and covenants contained in the agreements; (iii) breaches of any other representations and
warranties that are not cured within five days after notice or (iv) certain events relating to our top vendors’ insolvency or their filing a petition for
bankruptcy. We may also terminate the agreements for convenience for any reason by giving 60 days’ prior written notice to the vendor.
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As is the case generally with contract manufacturers, Intretech may be vulnerable to capacity constraints and reduced component
availability, and our control over delivery schedules, manufacturing yields and costs, particularly when components are in short supply or when
we introduce new products or features, is limited. In addition, we must rely on Intretech to manufacture our connected machines and other
accessories and materials to our quality and performance standards and specifications. Delays, component shortages and other manufacturing
and supply problems could impair the distribution of our connected machines and ultimately our brand, or could negatively affect our gross
margins. Furthermore, any adverse change in Intretech’s or our other contract manufacturers’ financial or business conditions could disrupt our
ability to supply our products to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales channels. In addition, Intretech
primarily manufactures our connected machines at one facility located in Malaysia with some manufacturing conducted in the People’s Republic
of China, or China. Manufacturing in these countries may be subject to political, economic, pandemic-related labor constraints, border closures,
social and legal uncertainties that may harm our relationships with these parties. Our other contract manufacturers are also located in China and
Malaysia, which may increase supply risk, including the risk of supply interruptions.

Our contract with Intretech does not obligate them to supply our connected machines in any specific quantity or at any specific price and
allows us to enter purchase orders with Intretech. Entering into agreements requiring additional purchase orders is a typical part of our business
and is common practice with other vendors that we may use from time to time. If Intretech fails for any reason to continue manufacturing our
connected machines in required volumes, in a timely manner, at high quality levels or at all, we may have to increase connected machine
production at currently qualified contract manufacturers or engage acceptable alternative contract manufacturers, either of which would be time
consuming, particularly given the complexity of our connected machines. Identifying, selecting and onboarding acceptable alternative contract
manufacturers could also be costly. Alternative contract manufacturers may not be available to us when needed or may not be in a position to
satisfy our production requirements at commercially reasonable prices or to our quality and performance standards. Any significant interruption in
manufacturing at Intretech would reduce our supply of connected machines, which could cause us to delay our orders or breach our purchase
orders with our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales channels, which in turn would reduce our revenue and
user growth.

If our third-party contract manufacturers are unable to meet our needs, as a result of operational issues or other factors, our business
would be harmed. The location of our third-party manufacturers in Malaysia and China may exacerbate some of these risks.

We believe that we must continue to upgrade and expand our current third-party contract manufacturer production capability to meet our
projected revenue targets and quality control requirements. Operational difficulties, such as a significant interruption in the operations of or
equipment breakdowns in production facilities operated by third parties, could delay production or shipment of our products. In addition, events
such as inclement weather, natural disasters, government shut-downs as a result of air quality, power grid limitations, pandemics, civil unrest or
other reasons, labor strikes or shortages, transportation security vulnerabilities or cyberattacks could impair third-party production capabilities.
The inability of our third-party contract manufacturers to meet our production requirements, particularly in our peak season, could lead to
customer dissatisfaction, impact sales and damage our reputation and brand, which would result in reduced revenue. Moreover, if the costs of
meeting production requirements, including capital expenditures, were to exceed our expectations, our results of operations would be harmed.

Our third-party manufacturers, including Intretech, are largely based in Malaysia and China. As a result, our manufacturing, and therefore
our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by social, political, regulatory and economic developments
in Malaysia and China. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused, and will likely continue to cause, interruptions in the development,
manufacturing (including the procurement of key components) and shipment of our connected machines, which could adversely impact our
revenue, gross margins and results of operations. Such interruptions may be due to, among other things, industry-wide capacity limitations,
temporary closures of our facilities or those of our contract manufacturers or other vendors in our supply chain, restrictions on travel or the import
and export of goods and services from certain ports that we use and local quarantines.
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Any adverse change in the operations of our manufacturers, including as a result of political, social, economic or transportation conditions
in Malaysia or China, or issues such as actual or perceived unfair labor practices, labor disputes or violations of laws or other obligations or
issues unknown to us, could affect deliveries of our products to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users, possibly resulting in
business interruptions, substantially delayed or lost sales, loss of inventory or increased expenses that cannot be passed on to brick-and-mortar
and online retail partners or users, any of which could ultimately adversely affect our business and financial results.

We rely on a limited number of third-party suppliers, some of which are sole-source suppliers, and many of which are located
internationally, to provide components to our manufacturers, as well as to source our accessories and materials, which may lead to
supply shortages, long lead times for components and supply changes, any of which could disrupt our supply chain and may
negatively affect our business.

All of the components that go into the manufacturing of our products, as well as our accessories and materials, are sourced from a limited
number of third-party suppliers, many of which are located internationally. Some of the key components our manufacturers use in the production
of our products come from a limited or single source of supply. We are subject to the risk of shortages and long lead times in the supply of these
components or accessories and materials, and the risk that our suppliers discontinue or modify components used in our products. In addition, the
lead times associated with procuring certain components or accessories and materials are lengthy and preclude rapid changes in quantities and
delivery schedules and could increase for a number of reasons outside our control, including natural disaster, a pandemic, social or political
unrest or other interruptions. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused, and will likely continue to cause, interruptions in the
development, manufacturing, sourcing and shipment of our products, which could adversely affect our revenue, gross margins and results of
operations. During the COVID-19 pandemic, we have secured long-lead-time component supply directly from suppliers on a purchase order
basis. Our contract manufacturers then procure these components from our suppliers within the lead times provided by our finished goods
purchase orders based on component allocations that we control. To the extent that we do not accurately forecast the components we purchase,
we may be left paying for components that our contract manufacturers do not need. Furthermore, most of our contract manufacturers’ primary
facilities are located in Malaysia and China, which exposes us to certain additional risks in addition to the above that could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. For example, we have experienced issues with the import of goods and services from
certain ports. If we or our contract manufacturers lose access to components or accessories and materials from a particular supplier or
experience a significant disruption in the supply of products and components from a current supplier, we may be unable to locate alternative
suppliers of comparable quality on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all, which may undermine our ability to deliver our products to brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners or users in a timely manner and our business could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if we
experience an increase in demand for our products, our suppliers may not have the capacity or may elect not to meet our needs as they allocate
components or accessories and materials to their other customers. Identifying suitable alternate sources of supply for these components or
accessories and materials is an extensive process that requires us to become satisfied with their quality control, technical capabilities,
responsiveness and service, financial stability, regulatory compliance and labor and other ethical practices. Accordingly, a loss of any of our
component or accessories and materials suppliers could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our reliance on single source, or a small number of suppliers involves a number of additional risks, including risks related to supplier
capacity constraints, price increases, timely delivery, component quality, electronic component availability, failure of a key supplier to remain in
business and adjust to market conditions, delays in or the ability to execute on a supplier roadmap, and natural disasters. Acquiring additional
suppliers could be time consuming and expensive, particularly given the complexity of our connected machines and their components.

In particular, our connected machines incorporate certain alloys, resins, sheet metals, and electronic components that are critical to the
performance of our connected machines. The global availability of these components remains constrained. These components have unique
performance profiles, and, as a result, it is not commercially practical to support multiple sources for these components for our products. We do
not currently have alternative suppliers for several key components. In particular, there are currently shortages in global electronic component
supply, and we may not be able to obtain the electronic components necessary for the performance of our connected machines in a timely
manner or at all. In the event that any of our key or sole suppliers for any of our components are unable to supply the components that our
manufacturers need to meet anticipated consumer demand, our business would be materially and adversely affected. To mitigate electronic
component shortages we have or may experience, we have identified and qualified and continue to seek out and qualify new component
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suppliers to promote continuity of supply. Doing so on a large scale and at a fast pace and the novelty of certain component suppliers to us and
our products carries inherent risk that may impact the quality of our products.

Managing our inventory supply chain, including manufacturing and component lead time, is complex and exposes us to risk.

To ensure adequate inventory supply, we must forecast inventory needs and expenses and place orders with our contract manufacturers
and component suppliers sufficiently in advance, based on our estimates of future demand for particular products. Failure to accurately forecast
our needs may result in manufacturing delays, increased costs or excess inventory. Because we bear supply risk under our contract
manufacturing arrangements, any such delays, increased costs or excess inventory could negatively impact our business. Failure to forecast
appropriate demand, lead times, significant price fluctuations or shortages in materials or components, including the costs to transport such
materials or components, the uncertainty of currency fluctuations against the U.S. dollar, increases in labor rates, trade duties or tariffs and/or the
introduction of new and expensive raw materials could adversely affect our contract manufacturers’ ability to manufacture our products in
sufficient quantity and within sufficient time to meet our consumer demand, which would adversely affect our business, financial condition and
operational results.

If we overestimate our production requirements, we or our contract manufacturers may purchase excess components and build excess
inventory. If we, or our contract manufacturers at our request, purchase excess components that are unique to our products or build excess
products, we could be required to pay for these excess components or products. In limited circumstances, we have agreed to reimburse our
manufacturers for purchased components that were not used as a result of our decision to discontinue products or the use of particular
components. If we incur costs to cover excess supply commitments, this would harm our business. If we underestimate our product
requirements, our contract manufacturers may have inadequate component inventory, which could interrupt the manufacturing of our products
and result in delays or cancellation of orders from brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales channels. We may be
required to incur higher costs to secure the necessary production capacity and components to meet unanticipated demand, which could result in
lower margins. We currently intend to carry higher inventory levels into the future until we are comfortable current supply chain risks have
improved. These dynamics, along with an increased level of promotions in the fourth quarter of 2021, decreased our margins in the fourth quarter
of 2021. We expect these inventory and supply chain dynamics to continue to put some pressure on our margins in 2022.

The failure of our third-party logistics partners to adequately and effectively staff could adversely affect our brick-and-mortar and
online retail partner and user experience and results of operations.

We currently receive and distribute merchandise through five third-party logistics partners, two of which are located in the United States
and one of which is located in each of China, Europe, and Singapore. The majority of our products are received and distributed through one of
our third-party logistics partners in California. These third-party logistics partners assist with online logistics, inventory management, warehousing
and fulfillment for both business-to-business (to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors) and business-to-consumer (drop-ship
via retail partners and direct-to-consumer). If our third-party logistics partners are unable to adequately staff their third-party logistics facilities to
meet demand, or if the cost of such staffing is higher than historical or projected costs due to mandated wage increases, regulatory changes,
international expansion or other factors, these effects could be exacerbated and our results of operations could be further harmed. In addition,
operating third-party logistics partner facilities comes with potential risks, such as workplace safety issues and employment claims for the failure
or alleged failure to comply with labor laws or laws respecting union organizing activities. Any such issues may result in delays in shipping times,
reduced packing quality or costly litigation, and our reputation and results of operations may be harmed.

By using third-party operators for our inventory management, warehousing and fulfillment, we also face additional risks associated with not
having complete control over operations at those facilities. Any deterioration in the financial condition or operations of the third parties, or the loss
of the relationship with any third party, would have significant impact on our operations.

We also rely on our third-party logistics partners, including last mile warehouse and delivery partners, to complete a substantial percentage
of our deliveries to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales channels. If our third-party logistics partners do not
perform their obligations or meet our expectations, or those of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors or our online sales
channels, our reputation and business could suffer.
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A disruption in the service, a significant increase in the cost of our primary delivery and shipping services for our products or a
significant disruption at shipping ports could adversely affect our business.

We use a variety of shipping services for delivery of our products to users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, including air
carriers and ocean shipping services. All of our contract manufacturers are based in Asia, so our products are shipped to our third-party logistics
partner facilities primarily via ocean shipping services. We have experienced and could continue to experience increased congestion and new
import and export restrictions implemented at ports on which we rely for our business. In many cases, we have had to secure alternative
transportation, such as air freight, or use alternative routes, at increased costs, to run our supply chain.

In the event of any significant interruption in service by shipping providers or at airports or shipping ports, we may be unable to engage
alternative suppliers or to receive or ship goods through alternate sites in order to deliver our products in a timely and cost-efficient manner. As a
result, we could experience delays, increased shipping costs and lost sales as a result of missed delivery deadlines and product demand cycles.
For example, at times during the COVID-19 pandemic, shipping of our products has been delayed, which has inconvenienced our users and
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. We could experience shipping delays in the future as a result of shortages of containers and ships,
local port challenges or for other reasons. Furthermore, if the cost of delivery or shipping services were to increase significantly and the additional
costs could not be covered by product pricing, our results of operations could be adversely affected.

In particular, we are dependent upon major shipping companies, including FedEx and UPS, for the shipment of our products to and from
our third-party logistics partner facilities. Changes in shipping terms, or the inability of these third-party shippers to perform effectively, could affect
our responsiveness to our users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. Increases in our shipping costs may adversely affect our
financial results if we are unable to pass on these higher costs to our users or brick-and-mortar and online retail partners.

We have limited control over our contract manufacturers, component suppliers and third-party logistics partners, which may subject
us to significant risks, including the potential inability to produce or obtain quality products on a timely basis or in sufficient quantity,
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have limited control over our contract manufacturers, component suppliers and third-party logistics partners, which subjects us to
additional risks, including, but not limited to:

• inability to satisfy demand for our products;

• reduced control over delivery timing and product reliability;

• reduced ability to monitor the manufacturing process and components used in our products;

• limited ability to develop comprehensive manufacturing specifications that take into account any materials shortages or substitutions;

• variance in the manufacturing capability of our third-party manufacturers;

• price increases;

• difficulties in establishing additional supplier, manufacturer or third-party logistics partner relationships if we experience difficulties with
our existing suppliers, manufacturers or third-party logistics partners;

• shortages of materials or components;

• infringement or misappropriation of our intellectual property or cyberattacks;

• exposure to natural catastrophes, political unrest, terrorism, labor strikes or disputes, pandemics and economic instability resulting in
the disruption of trade from foreign countries in which our products are manufactured or the components thereof are sourced;

• changes in local economic conditions in the jurisdictions where our manufacturers, suppliers and third-party logistics partners are
located;

• the imposition of new laws and regulations, including those relating to labor conditions, quality and safety standards, imports, duties,
tariffs, taxes and other charges on imports, as well as trade restrictions and restrictions on currency exchange or the transfer of funds;
and
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• insufficient warranties and indemnities on components supplied to our manufacturers or performance by our partners.

The occurrence of any of these risks, especially during seasons of peak demand, could cause us to experience a significant disruption in
our ability to produce and deliver our products, affect the quality of our products and harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our products may be affected from time to time by design and manufacturing defects, and we may face claims related to such defects,
either of which could adversely affect our business and result in harm to our reputation.

Our connected machines and design apps may be affected by design and manufacturing defects. In addition, sophisticated firmware and
applications, such as those offered by us, may have issues that unexpectedly interfere with the intended operation of hardware or software
products. Defects may also exist in software, components and products that we source from third parties. Any such defects could make our
products unsafe, create a risk of environmental or property damage, personal injury or data privacy, security and data protection harms, and
subject us to the hazards and uncertainties of product liability and other claims and related litigation. As a result, our services may not perform as
anticipated and may not meet expectations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect and fix all issues and defects in the
hardware, software and services we offer.

Failure to timely identify, patch, fix or recall products and services with such defects could result in widespread technical and performance
issues affecting our products and could lead to claims against us. We maintain general liability insurance; however, design and manufacturing
defects, and claims related thereto, may subject us to judgments or settlements that result in damages materially in excess of the limits of our
insurance coverage. In addition, we may be exposed to recalls, product replacements or modifications, write-offs of inventory or intangible assets
and significant warranty and other expenses, such as litigation costs and regulatory fines. If we cannot successfully defend any large claim,
maintain our general liability insurance on acceptable terms or maintain adequate coverage against potential claims, our financial results could be
adversely affected.

In the event that we receive shipments of products that have defects or otherwise fail to comply with our technical specifications or that fail
to conform to our quality control standards, and we are not able to obtain replacement products in a timely manner, we risk revenue losses from
the inability to sell those products, increased administrative and shipping costs and lower profitability. Further, quality problems could adversely
affect the experience for users of our products, and result in harm to our reputation, including through social media or other communications from
our community, loss of competitive advantage, poor market acceptance, reduced demand for our products, delay in new product and service
introductions and lost revenue.

Regulations related to conflict minerals may cause us to incur additional expenses and could limit the supply and increase the costs of
certain metals used in the manufacturing of our products.

We are subject to requirements under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, which will require us to
conduct due diligence on and disclose whether or not our products contain conflict minerals. The implementation of these requirements could
adversely affect the sourcing, availability and pricing of the materials used in the manufacture of components used in our products. In addition,
we will incur additional costs to comply with the potential disclosure requirements, including costs related to conducting diligence procedures to
determine the sources of minerals that may be used or necessary to the production of our products and, if applicable, potential changes to
products, processes or sources of supply as a consequence of such due diligence activities. It is also possible that we may face reputational
harm if we determine that certain of our products contain minerals not determined to be conflict free or if we are unable to alter our products,
processes or sources of supply to avoid such materials.
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Significant increases in inflation, commodity prices or transportation costs may adversely affect the costs of our component suppliers
and contract manufacturers, and we may be unable to pass on these higher costs to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or
users.

Significant future increases in commodity prices, such as base metals (e.g. copper), alloys or plastic resins, or inflation could adversely
affect the costs of our component suppliers and contract manufacturers and result in higher costs to us if we are unable to pass on the increased
costs to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users. Furthermore, transportation costs have fluctuated as a result of a variety of
factors, such as capacity shortages, higher fuel prices and labor shortages, and we may not be able to pass such costs on to our brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners or users. Our results of operations may be adversely affected if we are unable to secure, or are able to secure
only at significantly higher costs, components for our products or adequate transportation resources.

Key third-party manufacturers are located in China and may be affected by recent and possible future political, social and economic
conditions.

We rely on third-party manufacturers in China and Chinese-owned manufacturers in Malaysia through which the substantial majority of our
finished products are prepared and shipped to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, users or third-party logistics partners. Our business
therefore could be affected by social, political, regulatory or economic developments in China. In 2018, the Office of the U.S. Trade
Representative, or the USTR, enacted a tariff of 10% on imports into the U.S. from China, including communications equipment products and
components manufactured and imported from China. Since then, additional tariffs have been imposed by the USTR on imports into the United
States from China, and China has also imposed tariffs on imports into China from the United States. In addition, due to concerns with the security
of products and services from certain telecommunications and video providers based in China, the United States government has enacted bans
on the use of certain Chinese-origin components or systems either in items sold to the U.S. government or in the internal networks of government
contractors and subcontractors (even if those networks are not used for government-related projects). It is possible that the U.S. government may
take future measures to impose stricter export controls on items destined for China or additional duties on shipments made from China. In
addition, the U.S. government may add additional parties to the Entity List, which could harm our business, increase the cost of conducting our
operations in China or result in retaliatory actions against U.S. interests. We also depend on semiconductors made in Taiwan, and a worsening of
the geopolitical situation between China and Taiwan could affect our ability to procure these semiconductors. Continued deterioration in trade
relations or adverse developments in political, social or economic conditions in China or future unforeseen problems, including health pandemics
or regulatory changes, could affect deliveries of our products to our retail partners or users, possibly resulting in business interruptions,
substantially delayed or lost sales, loss of inventory or increased expenses that cannot be passed on to brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners or users, any of which could ultimately have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results. In such an eventuality, we
could be forced to relocate our manufacturing, either temporarily or permanently, to another potentially costlier location or find alternative
potentially costlier methods of shipping our finished products to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and users. While we are taking
measures to attempt to maintain the continuity of our product delivery operations notwithstanding the impact on the use of our international
facilities, the continued or deteriorating conditions in China or other future unforeseen problems in China, we cannot ensure that these measures
will be successful in eliminating disruptions in our business.

Developments in the social, political, regulatory and economic environment in Malaysia may have a material adverse impact on us.

We have shifted the majority of our contract manufacturing presence to Malaysia. As a result, our business, financial condition and results
of operations may be adversely affected by social, political, regulatory, labor and economic developments in Malaysia. Such political and
economic uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the risks of war, terrorism, nationalism, nullification of contract, changes in interest rates,
imposition of capital controls and methods of taxation. In addition, our contract manufacturers in Malaysia are subject to risks of theft, fire,
earthquake, flooding and other similar casualty risks.

Negative developments in Malaysia’s socio-political environment may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Although the overall Malaysian economic environment appears to be positive, there can be no assurance that this will
continue to prevail in the future. Economic growth is determined by countless factors, and it is extremely difficult to predict with any level of
certainty.

40



Table of Contents

Changes in U.S. tax, tariff or other trade policy regarding products produced in other countries could adversely affect our business.

A predominant portion of the products we sell is originally manufactured in countries other than the United States. International trade
disputes that result in tariffs and other protectionist measures could adversely affect our business, including disruption in and cost increases for
sourcing our merchandise and increased uncertainties in planning our sourcing strategies and forecasting our margins. Importing and exporting
has involved more risk since the beginning of 2018, as there has been increasing rhetoric, in some cases coupled with legislative or executive
action, from several United States and foreign leaders regarding tariffs against foreign imports of certain materials. For example, the U.S.
government imposed significant new tariffs on China related to the importation of certain product categories following the U.S. Trade
Representative’s Section 301 investigation. It is possible that the U.S. government may take further measures in the future to impose stricter
export controls on items destined for China or additional duties on shipments made from China. During fiscal 2019, the Bureau of Industry and
Security, or BIS, of the U.S. Department of Commerce placed certain Chinese entities on the Entity List, limiting the ability of U.S. companies to
do business with those entities. The U.S. government may add additional parties to the Entity List, which could harm our business, increase the
cost of conducting our operations in China or result in retaliatory actions against U.S. interests. In addition, the U.S. government has exercised
additional trade-related powers in a manner that could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition or results of
operations. For example, on May 15, 2019, then-President Trump issued an executive order that invoked national emergency economic powers
to implement a framework to regulate the acquisition or transfer of information communications technology in transactions that imposed undue
national security risks. The executive order was subject to implementation by the Secretary of Commerce and purports to apply to contracts
entered into prior to the effective date of the order. On January 19, 2021, the U.S. Department of Commerce published interim final rules in the
Federal Register, subject to public notice and comment, which purport to permit the Department of Commerce to investigate transactions
involving the use of information communications technology products or services provided by persons owned or controlled by certain nations,
including China, and potentially to modify or prohibit those transactions. In addition, the White House, the Department of Commerce and other
executive branch agencies have implemented additional restrictions and may implement still further restrictions that would affect conducting
business with certain Chinese companies. We cannot predict whether these recent rules and restrictions will be implemented and acted upon by
the Biden administration, modified, overturned or vacated by legal action. A substantial portion of our products are manufactured in China. As a
result of tariffs, our cost of goods imported from China increased substantially, and could increase further depending on the outcome of the
current trade negotiations, which have been protracted and resulted in increases in U.S. tariff rates on specified products from China. Although
we continue to work with our vendors to mitigate our exposure to current or potential tariffs, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
offset any increased costs. Other changes in U.S. tariffs, quotas, trade relationships or tax provisions could also reduce the supply of goods
available to us or increase our cost of goods. We may fail to effectively adapt to and manage the adjustments in strategy that would be necessary
in response to those changes. In addition to the general uncertainty and overall risk from potential changes in U.S. laws and policies, as we make
business decisions in the face of such uncertainty, we may incorrectly anticipate the outcomes, miss out on business opportunities or fail to
effectively adapt our business strategies and manage the adjustments that are necessary in response to those changes. These risks could
adversely affect our revenue, reduce our profitability and negatively impact our business.

Risks Related to Privacy, Data Protection and Cybersecurity

Our actual or perceived failure to comply with privacy, data protection and information security laws, regulations and obligations could
harm our business.

We are subject to numerous federal, state, local and international laws and regulations regarding privacy, data protection, information
security and the storing, sharing, use, processing, transfer, disclosure and protection of personal information and other content and data, which
we refer to collectively as privacy laws, the scope of which is changing, subject to differing interpretations and may be inconsistent among
countries, or conflict with other laws, regulations or other obligations. We are also subject to the terms of our privacy policies and obligations to
our users and other third parties related to privacy, data protection and information security. We strive to comply with applicable privacy laws;
however, the regulatory framework for privacy, data protection and information security worldwide is, and is likely to remain for the foreseeable
future, varied, and it is possible that these or other actual obligations may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent from one
jurisdiction to another.
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We also expect that there will continue to be new privacy laws proposed and enacted in various jurisdictions. For example, in May 2018,
the GDPR went into effect in the EU. The GDPR imposed stringent data protection requirements and provides greater penalties for
noncompliance than previous data protection laws, including potential penalties of up to €20 million or 4% of annual global revenue, whichever is
greater. Among other requirements, the GDPR regulates transfers of personal data subject to the GDPR to the United States as well as other
countries that have not been found to provide adequate protection to such personal data. The GDPR also introduced numerous privacy-related
changes for companies operating in the EU, including enhanced disclosures to data subjects about how personal data is processed (including
information about the profiling of individuals and automated individual decision-making), limiting retention periods of personal data, requiring
mandatory data breach notification and requiring additional policies and procedures to comply with the accountability principle under the GDPR.
In addition, data subjects have more robust rights with regard to their personal data.

Although legal mechanisms have been designed to allow for the transfer of personal data from the United Kingdom, the EEA, and
Switzerland to the United States, uncertainty about compliance with such data protection laws remains and such mechanisms may not be
available or applicable with respect to the personal data processing activities necessary to research, develop and market our products and
services. For example, legal challenges in Europe to the mechanisms allowing companies to transfer personal data from the EEA to the United
States could result in further limitations on the ability to transfer personal data across borders, particularly if governments are unable or unwilling
to reach agreement on or maintain existing mechanisms designed to support cross-border data transfers. Specifically, on July 16, 2020, the Court
of Justice of the EU, or CJEU, invalidated the EU-U.S. Privacy Shield Framework. The same decision also imposed additional conditions with
respect to use of the Standard Contractual Clauses, or the SCCs, to lawfully transfer personal data from Europe to the United States and most
other countries. The Swiss Federal Data Protection and Information Commissioner also has stated that it no longer considers the Swiss-U.S.
Privacy Shield adequate for the purposes of personal data transfers from Switzerland to the United States. These developments may result in
European data protection regulators applying differing standards for, and requiring ad hoc verification of, transfers of personal data from Europe
to the United States. We may be required to take additional steps to legitimize any personal data transfers impacted by these developments and
be subject to increased costs of compliance and limitations on our vendors, contractors, consultants and us. On June 4, 2021, the European
Commission published new SCCs. The CJEU’s decision, the revised SCCs, regulatory guidance and opinions and other developments relating to
cross-border data transfer may require us to implement additional contractual and technical safeguards for any personal data transferred out of
the EEA. More generally, we may find it necessary or desirable to modify our data handling practices, and our practices relating to cross-border
transfers of data or other data handling practices, or those of our vendors, contractors and consultants and vendors, may be challenged and our
business, financial condition and operating results may be adversely impacted. We continue to monitor and review the impact of any
developments relating to cross-border data transfers from the EEA that could affect our operations.

Further, the United Kingdom’s exit from the EU, and ongoing developments in the United Kingdom, have created uncertainty with regard to
data protection regulation in the United Kingdom. Data processing in the United Kingdom is now governed by the UK General Data Protection
Regulation and other domestic data protection laws, such as the UK Data Protection Act of 2018, which provide for penalties for noncompliance
of up to the greater of £17.5 million or 4% of worldwide revenues. Although the European Commission adopted an adequacy decision for the
United Kingdom in June 2021 that allows for the continued flow of personal data from the EU to the United Kingdom, this decision may be
revoked or modified and will need to be renewed after four years from the date of adoption. In February 2022, the United Kingdom’s Information
Commissioner’s Office issued new standard contractual clauses, or the UK SCCs, to support personal data transfers out of the United Kingdom.
If approved by the United Kingdom’s Parliament, the UK SCCs will become effective in March 2022. We may, in addition to other impacts,
experience additional costs associated with increased compliance burdens and be required to engage in new contract negotiations with third
parties that aid in processing personal data on our behalf or localize certain data. We cannot fully predict how United Kingdom data protection
laws or regulations may develop in the medium to longer term or how the EU will treat the United Kingdom with respect to data protection issues,
including those relating to data transfers to and from the United Kingdom. We continue to monitor and review the impact of any resulting changes
to EU or United Kingdom law, or related developments, that could affect our operations. We may incur liabilities, expenses, costs and other
operational losses relating to the GDPR and privacy laws of applicable EU Member States and the United Kingdom, including in connection with
any measures we take to comply with them.
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In Brazil, the Lei Geral de Proteção de Dados Pessoais – Law No. 13,709/2018, or LGPD, similar in many respects to the GDPR, was
enacted August 14, 2018 and entered into effect September 18, 2020. Penalties for violation of the LGPD, if and when enforced, may be up to
2% of revenue in Brazil, capped at R$50 million per violation. The LGPD applies to businesses that process the personal data of individuals
located in Brazil and provides consumer rights similar to the GDPR. A Brazilian Data Protection Authority, Brazilian National Data Protection
Authority (Autoridade Nacional de Proteção de Dados, or ANPD), has been established and has begun issuing guidance on how to interpret and
implement the LGPD’s requirements. The ANPD has been tasked with issuing guidance regarding notice of processing, data transfer
requirements and other compliance obligations, such as security measures, recordkeeping, training and governance. Pending such
developments from the ANPD and any emerging caselaw, our LGPD approach may be subject to further change, our compliance measures
when implemented may not be fully adequate, we may expend significant time and cost in developing a privacy governance program and data
transfer mechanisms in an effort to comply with the LGPD and any implementing regulations or guidance, and we may potentially face litigation
prior to the implementation of regulations and guidance regarding the LGPD or before we have had a reasonable opportunity to fully implement
measures designed to comply with such regulations and applicable guidance.

Vietnam’s cybersecurity law went into effect on January 1, 2019 and includes stringent requirements regarding data localization and data
transfers. A draft Decree on Personal Data Protection, with sub-legislation introduced December 27, 2019, elaborates requirements relating to
data protection; however, further notice and comment is anticipated before its requirements enter into effect. As proposed, the draft decree would
require us to further invest in potentially duplicative infrastructure and personnel in Vietnam, establish and maintain a local data protection
program, incur other costs and expenses related to these new requirements.

California also enacted legislation affording consumers expanded privacy protections, the CCPA, that went into effect as of January 1, 2020
and was subject to enforcement starting July 1, 2020. Additionally, the California Attorney General issued regulations that may add additional
requirements on businesses. The potential effects of this legislation and the related CCPA regulations are far-reaching and may require us to
modify our data processing practices and policies and to incur substantial costs and expenses in an effort to comply. For example, the CCPA
gives California residents expanded rights to access personal information, request deletion of personal information, opt out of certain personal
information sharing and receive detailed information about how their personal information is collected and used. The CCPA also provides for civil
penalties for violations (up to $7,500 per violation), as well as a private right of action for certain data breaches that may increase data breach
litigation. Additionally, a new privacy law, the CPRA, was approved by California voters in November 2020, which will go into effect January 1,
2023. The CPRA creates obligations relating to consumer personal information collected as of January 1, 2022, with implementing regulations
expected in the third or fourth quarter of 2022, and enforcement beginning July 1, 2023. The CPRA significantly modifies the CCPA, potentially
resulting in further uncertainty and requiring us to incur additional costs and expenses in efforts to comply. Other states have also enacted or
proposed similar data privacy laws. For example, in 2021, Virginia passed its Consumer Data Protection Act, and Colorado passed the Colorado
Privacy Act, both of which differ from the CPRA and become effective in 2023. This legislation and other proposed laws at the state and federal
level in the United States, could create the potential for a patchwork of overlapping but different laws, result in further uncertainty, require us to
incur additional costs and expenses in an effort to comply or require changes in business practices and policies.

Further, some countries also are considering or have passed legislation requiring local storage and processing of data, or similar
requirements, which could increase the cost and complexity of operating our products and services and other aspects of our business.
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With laws and regulations such as the GDPR, LGPD, CCPA and CPRA imposing new and relatively burdensome obligations, and with
substantial uncertainty over the interpretation and application of these and other laws and regulations, there is a risk that the requirements of
these or other laws and regulations, or of contractual or other obligations relating to privacy, data protection or information security, are
interpreted or applied in a manner that is, or is alleged to be, inconsistent with our management and processing practices, our policies or
procedures, or the features of our products and services. We may face challenges in addressing their requirements and making any necessary
changes to our policies and practices, and we may find it necessary or appropriate to assume additional burdens with respect to data handling, to
restrict our data processing or otherwise to modify our data handling practices and to incur significant costs and expenses in these efforts. Any
failure or perceived failure by us to comply with our privacy policies, our privacy, data protection or information security-related obligations to
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, users or other third parties, or any of our other legal obligations relating to privacy, data protection or
information security may result in governmental investigations or enforcement actions, litigation, claims or public statements against us by
consumer advocacy groups or others, and could result in significant liability or cause our users to lose trust in us, which could adversely affect our
reputation and business. Furthermore, the costs of compliance with, and other burdens imposed by, the laws, regulations and policies that are
applicable to the businesses of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may limit the adoption and use of, and reduce the overall demand
for, our products and services.

Additionally, if third parties we work with, such as vendors or developers, violate applicable laws or regulations or our contracts and
policies, such violations may also put our users’ content and personal information at risk and could in turn adversely affect our business. Any
significant change to applicable privacy laws or relevant industry practices could increase our costs and require us to modify our platform, design
apps and features, possibly in a material manner, which we may be unable to complete and may limit our ability to store and process user data or
develop new design apps and features.

Cybersecurity risks could adversely affect our business and disrupt our operations.

Information technology helps us operate more efficiently, interface with users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, offer features
for our products and services, maintain financial accuracy and efficiency and accurately produce our financial statements. If we do not allocate
and effectively manage the resources necessary to build, sustain and secure necessary information technology infrastructure, we could be
subject to transaction errors, processing inefficiencies, the loss of brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users, business disruptions or the
loss of or unauthorized access to personal information or personal data or loss or damage to intellectual property through a security breach or
cyberattack. Such security breaches or cyberattacks could expose us to a risk of lost, exposed or corrupted information, unauthorized disclosure
of information, litigation and possible liability to employees, users, brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and regulatory authorities. In
addition, a significant portion of our data and information is hosted in a cloud-computing environment, where design apps and data are hosted,
accessed and processed through a third-party provider over a broadband Internet connection. In a cloud-computing environment, we could be
subject to outages, security breaches and cyberattacks affecting the third-party service provider. In the COVID-19 pandemic, more of our and our
service providers’ personnel are working remotely, which increases the risks of security breaches and cyberattacks.

If our data management systems do not effectively and securely collect, store, process and report relevant data and information for the
operation of our business, whether due to equipment malfunction or constraints, software defects or deficiencies, bugs, vulnerabilities, computer
viruses, malware, ransomware, phishing attacks, distributed denial-of-service attacks, security breaches, cyberattacks, catastrophic events or
human error or malfeasance, our ability to effectively plan, forecast and execute our business plan and comply with applicable laws and
regulations will be impaired, perhaps materially. Any such impairment could materially and adversely affect our financial condition, results of
operations, cash flows and the timeliness with which we internally and externally report our results of operations. As a result, our data
management systems require an ongoing commitment of significant resources to maintain, protect and enhance existing systems and develop
new systems to keep pace with continuing changes in information processing technology, evolving legal and regulatory standards, the increasing
need to protect customer, partner and employee information, including personal data and personal information, and the information technology
needs associated with our changing products and services. We strive to implement reasonable security procedures and practices to help ensure
that our data management systems effectively collect, store, process and report relevant data for the operation of our business, though there are
no assurances that these procedures and practices will be successful or that additional systems issues will not arise in the future.
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In addition, security breaches from errors, malfeasance or misconduct by employees, contractors or others with access to our systems may
pose a risk that sensitive data, including personal data and personal information, may be exposed to unauthorized persons or to the public and
may compromise our security systems. We have been, and may in the future be, subject to compromises and other security breaches impacting
such data. There can be no assurance that any efforts we make to prevent against such breaches will prevent breakdowns in our systems or
security breaches that could adversely affect our business. Third parties may also attempt to fraudulently induce employees or users into
disclosing usernames, passwords or other sensitive information, which may in turn be used to access information technology systems used in our
business. For example, our employees have received and likely will continue to receive “phishing” e-mails attempting to induce them to divulge
sensitive information. In addition, unauthorized persons may attempt to hack into our products or systems to obtain personal data relating to
users or employees, our confidential or proprietary information or confidential information we maintain from third parties, which, if successful,
could pose a risk of loss of data, risk to customer safety and risk of product recall. While we provide security and privacy training to attempt to
protect against these risks, the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to systems and data change frequently and may be difficult to
detect, so we may not be able to anticipate and prevent these intrusions or other security breaches, to identify them promptly or to mitigate them
when they occur.

Moreover, we manufacture and sell hardware and software products that allow our users to store confidential information, including their
original designs, locally or in our cloud infrastructure. We do not have measures to configure, update or secure our users’ desktop or mobile
devices or any information stored in our users’ own systems or at their locations, which is the responsibility of our users. While we have
implemented security measures to protect our hardware and software products from unauthorized access and cyberattacks, these measures may
not be effective in securing these products, particularly since techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or otherwise sabotage systems,
change frequently and may not be recognized until launched against a target. A security breach, cyberattack or other event that causes the loss
or public disclosure of, or unauthorized access by third parties to, sensitive information stored by us or our brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners, or the perception that any of these have occurred, could have serious negative consequences for our business, including loss of
information, indemnity obligations, claims, regulatory investigations, fines, penalties and damages, reduced demand for our products and
services, an unwillingness of our users to use our products or services, harm to our reputation and brand, and time consuming and expensive
litigation, any of which could adversely affect our financial results. We also expect to incur significant costs in an effort to detect and prevent
security breaches and cyberattacks, and we may face increased costs and requirements to expend substantial resources in the event of an
actual or perceived security breach or cyberattack.

Many governments have enacted laws requiring companies to provide notice of security breaches or cyberattacks involving certain types of
personal data or personal information. We are also contractually required to notify certain customers of security breaches or cyberattacks. We
cannot be certain that any limitations of liability provisions in our contracts would be enforceable or adequate or would otherwise protect us from
any liabilities or damages with respect to any particular claim relating to a security breach or cyberattack. We maintain cybersecurity insurance,
subject to applicable deductibles and policy limits; however, our cybersecurity insurance may not cover losses from all types of incidents or may
provide insufficient compensation that does not cover our total losses. We also cannot be sure that our existing insurance coverage will continue
to be available on commercially reasonable terms or at all. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against us that exceed available
insurance coverage, or the occurrence of changes in our insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or
co-insurance requirements, could have an adverse effect on our reputation, brand, business, financial condition, and results of operations.

If the use of “cookie” tracking technologies is further restricted, regulated or blocked, or if changes in technology cause cookies to
become less reliable or acceptable as a means of tracking consumer behavior, the amount or accuracy of Internet user information we
collect would decrease, which could harm our business and results of operations.

Cookies are small data files sent by websites and stored locally on an Internet user’s computer or mobile device. We, and third parties who
work on our behalf, collect data via cookies to track the behavior of visitors to our sites, provide a more personalized and interactive experience
and analyze and increase the effectiveness of our marketing. However, Internet users can easily disable, delete and block cookies directly
through browser settings or through other software, browser extensions or hardware.
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Privacy laws and regulations restrict how we deploy our cookies, and this could potentially increase the number of Internet users that
choose to proactively disable cookies on their systems. Federal, state and foreign governmental authorities continue to evaluate the privacy
implications inherent in the practice of online tracking for behavioral advertising and other purposes. Governments in the United States and
internationally have enacted, have considered or are considering legislation or regulations that could significantly restrict the ability of companies
and individuals to engage in these activities, such as by regulating the level of consumer notice and consent required before a company can
employ electronic tracking tools or the use of data gathered with such tools. For example, the European Commission has proposed a draft
regulation, known as the Regulation of Privacy and Electronic Communications, or the ePrivacy Regulation, which would replace the current
ePrivacy Directive. If adopted, the earliest date for entry into force is in 2023, with broad potential impacts on the use of internet-based services
and tracking technologies, such as cookies. We expect to incur additional costs to comply with the requirements of the ePrivacy Regulation and
national implementation laws once they are enacted. In addition to the EU and United Kingdom, other regulators are increasingly focusing on
compliance with requirements related to the online behavioral advertising ecosystem. For example, the CCPA grants California residents the right
to opt-out of a company’s sharing of personal information for advertising purposes in exchange for money or other valuable consideration.

Additionally, some providers of consumer devices and web browsers have implemented means to make it easier for Internet users to block
tracking technologies or to require new permissions from users for certain activities, which could, if widely adopted, significantly reduce the
effectiveness of such practices and technologies. For example, Apple introduced an iOS update in April 2021 that allowed users to more easily
opt-out of tracking activity across devices, which has impacted and may continue to impact business. In February 2022, Google announced it
planned to adopt similar restrictions to restrict tracking activity across Android devices. In addition, the most commonly used Internet browsers—
Chrome, Firefox, Internet Explorer and Safari—allow Internet users to modify their browser settings to prevent cookies from being accepted by
their browsers, and a number of other software tools allow users to block or otherwise limit the functionality of cookies. Users can decide to opt
out of nearly all cookie data creation, which could negatively impact operations. We may have to develop alternative systems to determine our
users’ behavior, customize their online experience or efficiently market to them if users block cookies or regulations introduce additional barriers
to collecting cookie data.

Risks Related to Foreign Operations

We plan to further expand into international target markets, which will expose us to significant risks.

Our primary international markets include the United Kingdom, Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, and Western Europe. We are also present
in the Middle East, Latin America, South Africa and Asia, and we plan to expand our operations further, which requires significant resources and
management attention and subjects us to regulatory, economic and political risks in addition to those we already face in the United States. There
are significant risks and costs inherent in doing business in international target markets, including:

• difficulty establishing and managing international operations and the increased travel, infrastructure, including establishment of local
delivery service and Cricut Member Care operations, and legal compliance costs associated with locations in different countries or
regions;

• difficulty accessing and maintaining operations with international brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distribution channels
that may be small, fragmented or complex;

• the need to vary pricing and margins to effectively compete in international target markets;

• the need to adapt, translate and localize products for specific countries, comply with country-specific product safety and liability laws,
as well as obtaining rights to third-party intellectual property used in each country;

• increased competition from local providers of competing or imitation products;

• the ability to protect and enforce intellectual property rights abroad;

• the need to offer content and customer support in various languages;

• difficulties in understanding and complying with local laws, regulations and customs in other jurisdictions;

• compliance with anti-bribery laws, such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the United Kingdom Bribery Act 2010,
or U.K. Bribery Act, by us, our employees and our business partners;
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• complexity and other risks associated with current and future legal requirements in other countries, including legal requirements related
to consumer protection, consumer product safety and data privacy frameworks, such as the EU’s GDPR, including data transfer or
localization restrictions, or LGPD;

• varying levels of Internet technology adoption and infrastructure, and increased or varying network and hosting service provider costs;

• tariffs and other non-tariff barriers, such as quotas and local content rules, as well as tax consequences;

• fluctuations in currency exchange rates and the requirements of currency control regulations, which might restrict or prohibit conversion
of other currencies into U.S. dollars; and

• political or social unrest or economic instability in a specific country or region in which we operate, including, for example, recent social
and political unrest in China, which could have an adverse impact on our operations in that location.

These risks can make it more expensive to operate our business outside the United States, meaning that our international business may be
less profitable than our U.S. business.

We have limited experience with international regulatory environments and market practices and may not be able to penetrate or
successfully operate in the markets we choose to enter. In addition, we may incur significant expenses as a result of our international expansion,
and we may not be successful or may not execute our strategy successfully. We currently face limited brand recognition in certain parts of the
world that could lead to non-acceptance or delayed acceptance of our products by consumers in new markets. Our failure to successfully
manage these risks could harm our international operations and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, Brexit, and the ongoing negotiations of the future trading relationship between the United Kingdom and the EU during the
transition period, have yet to provide clarity on what the outcome will be for the United Kingdom or Europe. Changes related to Brexit could
subject us to heightened risks in that region, including disruptions to trade and free movement of goods, services and people to and from the
United Kingdom, disruptions to the workforce of our business partners, increased foreign exchange volatility with respect to the British pound and
additional legal, political and economic uncertainty. If these actions impacting our international distribution and sales channels result in increased
costs for us or our international partners, such changes could result in higher costs to us, adversely affecting our operations, particularly as we
expand our international presence.

We are subject to governmental export and import controls and economic sanctions laws that could subject us to liability and impair
our ability to compete in international target markets.

The United States and various foreign governments have imposed controls, license requirements and restrictions on the import and/or
export of certain technologies, products, software and services. Compliance with applicable regulatory requirements regarding the export of our
products and services may create delays in the introduction of our products and services in some international target markets, prevent our
international users from accessing our products and services, and, in some cases, prevent the export of our products and services to some
countries altogether.

Furthermore, U.S. export control and economic sanctions laws prohibit the provision of products and services to countries, governments
and persons that are the subject of U.S. sanctions. Even though we take precautions to prevent our products from being provided to persons and
jurisdictions in violation of U.S. sanctions laws, our products and services, including our firmware updates, could find their way to such prohibited
parties, which could have negative consequences, including government investigations, penalties and reputational harm. Our failure to obtain any
required import or export approval for our products could harm our international and domestic sales and adversely affect our revenue.

Additionally, our supply chain is very complex and compliance with U.S. import laws and regulations requires that we make determinations
based on the best information that we have available at the time. U.S. Customs and Border Protection may not always agree with those
determinations and, at has times, has requested that we modify the information we have provided to them including that related to country of
origin determinations.

We could be subject to future enforcement action with respect to compliance with governmental export and import controls and economic
sanctions laws that result in penalties, costs and restrictions on export privileges that could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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Failure to comply with anti-corruption and anti-money laundering laws, including the FCPA and similar laws associated with our
activities outside of the United States, could subject us to penalties and other adverse consequences.

We operate a global business and may have direct or indirect interactions with officials and employees of government agencies or state-
owned or affiliated entities. We are subject to the FCPA, the U.S. domestic bribery statute contained in 18 U.S.C. § 201, the U.S. Travel Act, the
USA PATRIOT Act, the U.K. Bribery Act and possibly other anti-bribery and anti-money laundering laws in countries in which we conduct
activities. These laws prohibit companies and their directors, officers, employees and third-party business partners and intermediaries,
representatives, contractors and agents from corruptly promising, authorizing, offering or providing, directly or indirectly, improper payments or
anything of value to foreign government officials, political parties and private-sector recipients for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business,
directing business to any person or securing any improper advantage.

Our global operations expand our compliance obligations. For example, we import and export items to and from several countries. In many
foreign countries, including countries in which we may conduct business, including interacting with governmental officials, it may be a local
custom that businesses engage in practices that are prohibited by the FCPA or other applicable laws and regulations. In addition, we or our third-
party business partners or intermediaries, employees, representatives, contractors, suppliers and agents may have direct or indirect interactions
with officials and employees of government agencies or state-owned or affiliated entities, including as governmental customers. We can be held
liable for the corrupt or other illegal activities of our employees or third-party business partners or intermediaries, representatives, contractors and
agents, even if we do not explicitly authorize such activities.

In addition, U.S. public companies are required to maintain records that accurately and fairly represent their transactions and maintain
internal controls and compliance procedures designed to prevent violations of anti-corruption laws. While we have policies, procedures and
training to foster compliance with these laws, we cannot assure you that our employees or third-party business partners or intermediaries,
contractors, representatives and agents will not take actions in violation of our policies or applicable law for which we may ultimately be held
responsible.

Any violation of the FCPA, other applicable anti-corruption laws or anti-money laundering laws could result in whistleblower complaints,
adverse media coverage, investigations, loss of export privileges, fines, damages, severe criminal or civil penalties against us, our officers or our
employees, disgorgement of profits, suspension or debarment from government contracts, any of which could adversely affect our reputation,
business, results of operations, stock price, financial condition and prospects. In addition, detecting, investigating and resolving actual or alleged
violations of anti-corruption laws and responding to any enforcement action may result in a significant diversion of management’s attention and
resources and significant defense costs and other professional fees.

Changes in legislation in U.S. and foreign taxation of international business activities or the adoption of other tax reform policies, as
well as the application of such laws, could adversely impact our financial position and results of operations.

Recent or future changes to U.S., Canada, United Kingdom and other foreign tax laws could impact the tax treatment of our foreign
earnings. We generally conduct our international operations through wholly owned subsidiaries and report our taxable income in various
jurisdictions worldwide based upon our business operations in those jurisdictions. The intercompany relationships between our legal entities are
subject to complex transfer pricing regulations administered by taxing authorities in various jurisdictions. Although we believe we are compliant
with applicable transfer pricing and other tax laws in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom and other relevant countries, due to
changes in such laws and rules, we may have to modify our international structure in the future, which will incur costs, may increase our
worldwide effective tax rate and may adversely affect our financial position and results of operations. In addition, significant judgment is required
in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes.

If U.S., Canadian, United Kingdom or other foreign tax laws further change, if our current or future structures and arrangements are
challenged by a taxing authority, or if we are unable to appropriately adapt the manner in which we operate our business, we may have to
undertake further costly modifications to our international structure and our tax liabilities and results of operations may be adversely affected. In
addition, increases in corporate tax rates, such as have been proposed by the current U.S. administration, could increase our effective tax rate
and have an adverse effect on our results of operations.
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We may face exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

While we have historically transacted the majority of our business in U.S. dollars, we also transact in some foreign currencies, such as the
Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Chinese Yuan, Euro, British Pound Sterling and Malaysian Ringgit, and we may transact in more foreign
currencies in the future. Accordingly, changes in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar can affect our revenue and results of
operations. As a result of such foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, it could be more difficult to detect underlying trends in our business
and results of operations. In addition, to the extent that fluctuations in currency exchange rates cause our results of operations to differ from our
expectations or the expectations of our investors, the trading price of our Class A common stock could be lowered. We do not currently maintain
a program to hedge transactional exposures in foreign currencies. However, in the future, we may use derivative instruments, such as foreign
currency forward and option contracts, to hedge certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The use of such hedging
activities may not offset any or more than a portion of the adverse financial effects of unfavorable movements in foreign exchange rates over the
limited time the hedges are in place and may introduce additional risks if we are unable to structure effective hedges with such instruments.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights are valuable, and any inability to protect them could reduce the value of our products, services and
brand.

Our success depends in large part on our proprietary technology and our patents, trade secrets, trademarks and other intellectual property
rights. We rely on, and expect to continue to rely on, a combination of trademark, trade dress, domain name, copyright, trade secret and patent
laws, as well as confidentiality and license agreements with our employees, contractors, consultants and third parties with whom we have
relationships, to establish and protect our brand and other intellectual property rights. However, our efforts to protect our intellectual property
rights may not be sufficient or effective, and any of our intellectual property rights may be challenged, which could result in them being narrowed
in scope or declared invalid or unenforceable. There can be no assurance that our intellectual property rights will be sufficient to protect against
others offering products, services or technologies that are substantially similar to ours and that compete with our business.

Effective protection of patents, trademarks and domain names is expensive and difficult to maintain, both in terms of application and
registration costs as well as the costs of defending and enforcing those rights. As we have grown, we have sought to obtain and protect our
intellectual property rights in an increasing number of countries, a process that can be expensive and may not always be successful. For
example, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of
procedural requirements to complete the patent application process and to maintain issued patents, and noncompliance or non-payment could
result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in a relevant jurisdiction.
Further, intellectual property protection may not be available to us in every country in which our products are available. For example, the
existence of prior art – or information that is already in the public domain – may limit our ability to obtain additional patents in the U.S. and foreign
jurisdictions. Some foreign countries also have compulsory licensing laws under which a patent owner must grant licenses to third parties. In
addition, many countries limit the enforceability of patents against certain third parties, including government agencies or government contractors.
In these countries, patents may provide limited or no benefit.

We have an active program of monitoring, investigating and enforcing our proprietary rights against companies and individuals who attempt
to reverse engineer, market or manufacture counterfeits and “knockoff” products, particularly ancillary and/or specialized products used with our
connected machines. We assert our rights against infringers of our copyrights, patents, trademarks and trade dress. However, these efforts may
not be successful in reducing sales of imitation products by these infringers. Additionally, other manufacturers may be able to produce successful
personal desktop manufacturing devices which imitate our designs without infringing any of our copyrights, patents, trademarks or trade dress.
Particularly with respect to the accessories and materials we sell to users for use with their machines, counterfeits, knockoffs or imitations are
known to exist in the industry. The failure to prevent or limit such infringers or imitators could adversely affect our reputation and sales.
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In order to protect our brand and intellectual property rights, we may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and protect
these rights. Litigation brought to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could be costly, time-consuming and distracting to
management and could result in the impairment or loss of portions of our intellectual property. Furthermore, our efforts to enforce our intellectual
property rights may be met with defenses, counterclaims and countersuits attacking the validity and enforceability of our intellectual property
rights. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent third parties from infringing upon or misappropriating our intellectual property. Our failure to
secure, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could seriously damage our brand and our business.

We have faced threats, and in the future may be threatened, by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights.

There is considerable patent and other intellectual property development activity in the technology industry, and litigation, based on
allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property, is frequent in the technology industry. Furthermore, it is common for
individuals and groups to purchase patents and other intellectual property assets for the purpose of making claims of infringement to extract
settlements from companies like ours. Our use of third-party content, including images, software and other intellectual property may be subject to
claims of infringement or misappropriation. We cannot guarantee that our internally-developed or acquired technologies and content do not or will
not infringe the intellectual property rights of others. From time to time, our competitors or other third parties may claim that we are infringing
upon or misappropriating their intellectual property rights, and we may be found to be infringing upon such rights. Any claims or litigation could
cause us to incur significant expenses and, if successfully asserted against us, could require that we pay substantial damages or ongoing royalty
payments, prevent us from offering our products or services or using certain technologies, force us to implement expensive work-arounds or
impose other unfavorable terms. We expect that the occurrence of infringement claims is likely to grow as the market for our products and
services grows and as we introduce new and updated products and services. Accordingly, our exposure to damages resulting from infringement
claims could increase and this could further exhaust our financial and management resources. Further, during the course of any litigation, we
may make announcements regarding the results of hearings and motions, and other interim developments. If securities analysts and investors
regard these announcements as negative, the market price of our Class A common stock may decline. Even if intellectual property claims do not
result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of
our management and require significant expenditures. Any of the foregoing could prevent us from competing effectively and could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We depend upon third-party licenses and the purchase of third-party works for the use of digital content. An adverse change to, loss of
or claim that we do not hold necessary licenses or rights may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Digital content is an important element of the overall content that we make available to our users. To secure the rights to use certain fonts,
images, ready-to-make projects, patterns and other digital contents that are used on or with our products and services, we enter into agreements
to obtain licenses from rights holders such as copyright owners or their agents. We pay royalties to such parties or their agents around the world.
In other instances, we enter into agreements with various third parties to purchase their pre-existing works or engage on a “works for hire” basis
to procure desired content.

The process of obtaining licenses, purchasing pre-existing works and new engagement involves identifying and negotiating with many
rights holders, some of whom are unknown or difficult to identify, and implicates a myriad of complex and evolving legal issues across many
jurisdictions, including open questions of law as to when and whether particular licenses are needed. Rights holders also may attempt to take
advantage of their market power to seek onerous financial terms from us. Our relationship with certain rights holders may deteriorate.
Additionally, there is a risk that aspiring rights holders, their agents or legislative or regulatory bodies will create or attempt to create new rights
that could require us to enter into new license agreements with, and pay royalties to, newly defined groups of rights holders, some of which may
be difficult or impossible to identify.

Although we expend significant resources to seek to comply with the statutory, regulatory and judicial frameworks, we cannot guarantee
that we currently hold, or will always hold, every necessary right to use all of the digital content that is used with our products and services, and
we cannot assure you that we are not infringing or violating any third-party intellectual property rights, or that we will not do so in the future.
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These challenges, and others concerning the use of licensed content with our products, may subject us to significant liability for copyright
infringement, breach of contract or other claims. For additional information, see the section titled “Business—Legal Proceedings.”

Legislation regarding copyright protection or content review could impose complex and costly constraints on our business model.

Although our agreements with users submitting designs or other content to our websites and mobile apps specifically require users to
represent that they have the right and authority to provide and license the designs and other content they submit for the purposes used by us,
that the content does not and will not violate any law, statute, ordinance or regulation, and that the content (and our use of it) does not and will
not infringe on any rights of any third party, we do not currently have the ability to determine the accuracy of these representations on a case-by-
case basis. There is a risk that a user may supply an image or other content that is the property of another party used without permission, that
infringes the copyright or trademark of another party or another party’s right of privacy or right of publicity or that would be considered to be
defamatory, pornographic, hateful, racist, scandalous, obscene or otherwise offensive, objectionable or illegal under the laws or court decisions of
the jurisdiction where that user lives. There is, therefore, a risk that users may intentionally or inadvertently order and receive products from us
that are in violation of the rights of another party or a law or regulation of a particular jurisdiction.

The EU has also enacted a new law that will require us to use best efforts in accordance with the high industry standards of professional
diligence to exclude infringing content from our platform that may be uploaded by our users. To comply with this new law, we will likely have to
devote significant time and resources to develop technologies to prevent infringing content from being uploaded to our platform and, to the extent
infringing content makes it onto our platform, to expeditiously remove such content and implement measures to prevent re-uploads of such
content. Although the new law does not mandate monitoring, there may be no practical way for us to comply with the law’s stringent new
requirements without adopting some form of robust content identification systems. We may also be required to enter into license agreements with
various rights holders to obtain licenses that authorize the storage and use of content uploaded by our users. We may not be able to develop
technological solutions to comply with applicable law on economically reasonable terms and there is no guarantee that we will be able to enter
into agreements with all relevant rights holders on terms that we deem reasonable. Compliance may therefore cause us to encounter increased
costs which could substantially harm our business and results of operations.

Some of our products contain open source software, which may pose particular risks to our proprietary software, technologies,
products and services in a manner that could harm our business.

We use open source software in our products and anticipate using open source software in the future. Some open source software licenses
require those who distribute open source software as part of their own software product to publicly disclose all or part of the source code to such
software product or to make available any derivative works of the open source code on unfavorable terms or at no cost. The terms of many open
source licenses to which we are subject have not been interpreted by U.S. or foreign courts, and there is a risk that open source software
licenses could be construed in a manner that imposes unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to provide or distribute our products or
services. Additionally, we could face claims from third parties claiming ownership of, or demanding release of, the open source software or
derivative works that we developed using such software, which could include proprietary source code, or otherwise seeking to enforce the terms
of the applicable open source license. These claims could result in litigation and could require us to make our software source code freely
available, purchase a costly license or cease offering the implicated products or services unless and until we can re-engineer them to avoid
infringement. This re-engineering process could require us to expend significant additional research and development resources, and we cannot
guarantee that we will be successful.

Additionally, the use of certain open source software can lead to greater risks than use of third-party commercial software, as open source
licensors generally do not provide warranties or controls on the origin of software. There is typically no support available for open source
software, and we cannot ensure that the authors of such open source software will implement or push updates to address security risks or will not
abandon further development and maintenance. Many of the risks associated with the use of open source software, such as the lack of
warranties or assurances of title or performance, cannot be eliminated, and could, if not properly addressed, negatively affect our business. We
have processes to help alleviate these risks, including a review process for screening requests from our developers for the use of open source
software, but we cannot be sure that all open source software is identified or submitted for approval prior to use in our products. Any of these
risks could be difficult to eliminate or manage, and, if not addressed, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Class A Common Stock

The dual class structure of our common stock has the effect of concentrating voting power with our pre-initial public offering
stockholders, which limits their ability to influence the outcome of matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including the
election of our board of directors, the adoption of amendments to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, and the approval of any
merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of our assets or other major corporate transaction.

Our Class A common stock has one vote per share and our Class B common stock has five votes per share, except as otherwise required
by law. As of December 31, 2021, Petrus and affiliates hold 128,486,824 shares of issued and outstanding Class B common stock. Accordingly,
Petrus and affiliates hold approximately 67% of the voting power of our outstanding capital stock in the aggregate. Petrus is able to determine or
significantly influence any action requiring the approval of our stockholders, including the election of our board of directors, the adoption of
amendments to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and the approval of any merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of our
assets or other major corporate transaction. Petrus may have interests that differ from yours and may vote in a way with which you disagree and
which may be adverse to your interests. This concentrated control may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of
our company, could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their capital stock as part of a sale of our company and
might ultimately affect the market price of our Class A common stock. Further, the separation between voting power and economic interests could
cause conflicts of interest between Petrus and our other stockholders, which may result in Petrus undertaking, or causing us to undertake,
actions that would be desirable for Petrus but would not be desirable for our other stockholders.

Future transfers by the holders of Class B common stock will generally result in those shares automatically converting into shares of Class
A common stock, subject to limited exceptions, such as certain transfers effected for estate planning or other transfers by Petrus. In addition,
each share of Class B common stock will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock upon (i) the date following the
Effectiveness Date on which the number of shares of our capital stock, including Class A common stock and Class B common stock, and any
shares of capital stock underlying any securities, including restricted stock units, options or other convertible instruments, held by “Petrus
Affiliates,” as defined in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, and their permitted entities is less than 50% of the number of
shares of Class B common stock held by Petrus Affiliates and their permitted entities as of 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the Effectiveness Date,
which we refer to herein as the 50% Ownership Threshold, (ii) the first date after the Effectiveness Date when the outstanding shares of Class B
common stock represent less than a majority of the total voting power of the then outstanding shares of our capital stock entitled to vote generally
in the election of directors or (iii) the time following the Effectiveness Date specified by affirmative vote or written election of the holders of at least
two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock. We refer to the date on which such final conversion of all outstanding shares of
Class B common stock pursuant to the terms of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation occurs as the Final Conversion Date.
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We cannot predict the effect our dual class structure may have on the market price of our Class A common stock.

We cannot predict whether our dual class structure will result in a lower or more volatile market price of our Class A common stock or in
adverse publicity or other negative consequences. For example, certain index providers have announced restrictions on including companies with
multiple-class share structures in certain of their indices. In July 2017, FTSE Russell and S&P Dow Jones announced that they would cease to
allow most newly public companies utilizing dual or multi-class capital structures to be included in their indices. Affected indices include the
Russell 2000 and the S&P 500, S&P MidCap 400 and S&P SmallCap 600, which together make up the S&P Composite 1500. Beginning in 2017,
MSCI, a leading stock index provider, opened public consultations on their treatment of no-vote and multi-class structures and temporarily barred
new multi-class listings from certain of its indices; however, in October 2018, MSCI announced its decision to include equity securities “with
unequal voting structures” in its indices and to launch a new index that specifically includes voting rights in its eligibility criteria. Under the
announced policies, our dual class capital structure would make us ineligible for inclusion in certain indices, and as a result, mutual funds,
exchange-traded funds and other investment vehicles that attempt to passively track those indices will not be investing in our stock. These
policies are still fairly new and it is currently unclear what effect, if any, they will have on the valuations of publicly traded companies excluded
from the indices, but it is possible that they may depress their valuations compared to the valuations of other similar companies that are included.
Because of our dual class structure, we will likely be excluded from certain of these indices and we cannot assure you that other stock indices will
not take similar actions. Given the sustained flow of investment funds into passive strategies that seek to track certain indices, exclusion from
stock indices would likely preclude investment by many of these funds and could make our Class A common stock less attractive to other
investors. As a result, the market price of our Class A common stock could be adversely affected.

The stock price of our Class A common stock may be volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance

The market prices of the securities of newly public companies such as us have historically been highly volatile. The market price of our
Class A common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:

• overall performance of the equity markets and the performance of technology companies in particular;

• variations in our results of operations, cash flows and other financial metrics and non-financial metrics and how those results compare
to analyst expectations;

• changes in the financial projections or business guidance we may provide to the public, or our failure to meet these projections;

• failure of securities analysts to maintain coverage of us, changes in financial estimates by any securities analysts who follow our
company or our failure to meet these estimates or the expectations of investors;

• recruitment or departure of key personnel;

• the economy as a whole and market conditions in our industry;

• negative publicity related to problems in our manufacturing or the real or perceived quality of our products, as well as the failure to
timely launch new products or services that gain market acceptance;

• rumors and market speculation involving us or other companies in our industry;

• announcements by us or our competitors of new products, accessories, features and content, significant technical innovations,
acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;

• actual or perceived privacy or data security incidents;

• new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws or regulations applicable to our business;

• lawsuits threatened or filed against us, litigation involving our industry, or both;

• developments or disputes concerning our or other parties’ products, services or intellectual property rights;

• the inclusion or exclusion of our Class A common stock from any trading indices, such as the S&P 500 Index;
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• other events or factors, including those resulting from war, including the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine, incidents of
terrorism, man-made or natural disasters, pandemics or responses to these events;

• the size of our public float; and

• purchases or sales of shares of our Class A common stock by us or our stockholders or public announcements of such activities.

In addition, the stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market
prices of equity securities of many companies. Stock prices of many companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or disproportionate to the
operating performance of those companies. In the past, stockholders have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market
volatility. If we were to become involved in securities litigation, it could subject us to substantial costs, divert resources and the attention of
management from our business and adversely affect our business.

Our directors, executive officers and holders of 5% or more of our common stock hold approximately 86% of the total voting power of
our common stock and are able to exert significant control over us, which will limit your ability to influence the outcome of important
transactions, including a change of control.

Our directors, executive officers and holders of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock, and their respective affiliates, hold, in the
aggregate, approximately 86% of the total voting power of shares of our outstanding common stock, based on the number of shares outstanding
as of December 31, 2021. Further, Petrus and affiliates, collectively, are currently our largest stockholder. Petrus and affiliates hold
approximately 67% of the total voting power of our common stock-based on the number of shares outstanding as of December 31, 2021. As a
result, our directors, executive officers and holders of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock, and their respective affiliates, if acting
together, are able to determine or significantly influence all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the elections of directors,
amendments of our organizational documents and approval of any merger, sale of assets or other major corporate transaction. These
stockholders may have interests that differ from yours and may vote in a way with which you disagree and which may be adverse to your
interests. This concentration of ownership may delay, prevent or discourage acquisition proposals or other offers for our Class A common stock
that you may feel are in your best interest as a stockholder and ultimately could deprive you of an opportunity to receive a premium for your Class
A common stock as part of a sale of our company, which in turn might adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock.

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the Exchange rules and, as a result, are entitled to rely on exemptions from
certain corporate governance requirements that are designed to provide protection to stockholders of companies that are not
“controlled companies.”

Because Petrus and affiliates own more than 50% of the total voting power of our common shares, we are a “controlled company” within
the meaning of the Exchange’s corporate governance standards. As a controlled company, we are exempt under the Exchange’s standards from
the obligation to comply with certain corporate governance requirements, including the requirements:

• that a majority of our board of directors consists of independent directors;

• that we have a nominating committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the
committee’s purpose and responsibilities; and

• that we have a compensation committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the
committee’s purpose and responsibilities.

As a result of relying on the controlled company exemptions, the procedures for approving significant corporate decisions could be
determined by directors who have a direct or indirect interest in such decisions, and our stockholders do not have the same protections afforded
to stockholders of other companies that are required to comply with all of the independence rules of the Exchange.
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If securities or industry analysts do not publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, about our business, the price
of our Class A common stock and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts
publish about us or our business, our market and our competitors. We do not have any control over these analysts. If securities analysts fail to
publish reports on us regularly, or if industry analysts cease coverage of us, demand for our Class A common stock could decrease, which might
cause our Class A common stock price and trading volume to decline. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our Class A
common stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our Class A common stock price would likely decline.

Future sales of our Class A common stock, or the perception in the public markets that these sales may occur, may depress our stock
price.

The market price of our Class A common stock could decline significantly as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our Class A
common stock in the market. These sales, or the perception that these sales might occur, could depress the market price of our Class A common
stock. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a
time and at a price that we deem appropriate.

Also, in the future, we may issue shares of our Class A common stock in connection with investments or acquisitions. The amount of
shares of our Class A common stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could constitute a material portion of then-
outstanding shares of our common stock.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

In September 2020, we paid a cash dividend to Cricut Holdings, our sole stockholder at the time. We currently do not intend to pay any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Additionally, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is limited by the restrictions under the
terms of our Credit Agreement. We anticipate that for the foreseeable future we will retain all of our future earnings for use in the development of
our business and for general corporate purposes. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of
directors. Accordingly, investors must rely on sales of their Class A common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only
way to realize any future gains on their investments.

Provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us difficult, limit attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the market price of our Class A common stock.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws may have the effect of delaying or
preventing transactions involving an actual or potential change in our control or change in our management, including transactions in which
stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares, or transactions that our stockholders might otherwise deem to be in their best
interests. Therefore, these provisions could adversely affect the price of our Class A common stock.

Our charter documents also contain other provisions that could have an anti-takeover effect, such as:

• subject to the rights of the holders of preferred stock, permitting the board of directors to establish the number of directors and fill any
vacancies and newly created directorships;

• prohibiting cumulative voting for directors;

• requiring super-majority voting to amend some provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws;

• authorizing the issuance of undesignated preferred stock that our board of directors could use to implement a stockholder rights plan;

• eliminating the ability of stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;
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• prohibiting stockholder action by written consent prior to the Final Conversion Date unless the action is first recommended or approved
by the board, and prohibiting stockholder action by written consent from and after the Final Conversion Date, which requires
stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our stockholders;

• certain litigation against us can only be brought in Delaware; and

• our dual class common stock structure as described above.

Our charter documents provide that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and the federal district courts of the United States
will be the exclusive forums for substantially all disputes between us and our stockholders, which could limit our stockholders’ ability
to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws provide that the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware, to the fullest extent permitted by law, will be the exclusive forum for any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf,
any action asserting a breach of fiduciary duty, any action asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation
Law, or DGCL, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws, or any action asserting a claim
against us that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine. This choice of forum provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a
judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or any of our directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage lawsuits
against us and our directors, officers and other employees. This exclusive forum provision will not apply to claims that are vested in the exclusive
jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, or for which the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware does not have subject matter jurisdiction.

Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for U.S. federal and state courts over causes of action arising under the
Securities Act. Accordingly, both U.S. state and federal courts have jurisdiction to entertain such claims. To prevent having to litigate claims in
multiple jurisdictions and the threat of inconsistent or contrary rulings by different courts, among other considerations, our amended and restated
bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States shall be
the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act. This exclusive forum provision
will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Exchange Act. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring
any interest in any of our securities shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the foregoing provision of our amended and restated
bylaws.

Although we believe this exclusive forum provision benefits us by providing increased consistency in the application of U.S. federal
securities laws in the types of lawsuits to which they apply, the exclusive forum provision may limit a shareholder’s ability to bring a claim in a
judicial forum of its choosing for disputes with us or any of our directors, shareholders, officers or other employees, which may discourage
lawsuits with respect to such claims against us and our current and former directors, shareholders, officers or other employees. Our stockholders
will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder as a result of
our exclusive forum provision. Further, in the event a court finds the exclusive forum provision contained in our amended and restated bylaws to
be unenforceable or inapplicable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which
could harm our results of operations.

General Risk Factors

The COVID-19 pandemic could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant volatility in financial markets. Public health problems resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic and precautionary measures instituted by governments and businesses to mitigate its spread, have contributed to, and could in the
future contribute to, a general slowdown in the global economy, adversely impact our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, potential
customers, third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers, third-party logistics providers and other business partners, and disrupt our operations.
Changes in our operations in response to the COVID-19 pandemic have resulted, and could continue to result in, inefficiencies or delays,
including in manufacturing, sales, delivery and product development efforts, and additional costs related to business continuity initiatives, that
cannot be fully mitigated through succession and business continuity planning, employees working remotely or teleconferencing technologies.
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During the COVID-19 pandemic we have experienced an increase in demand for our products and subscriptions. For example, from 2018
to 2019 our revenue from connected machines grew 35%, our revenue from subscriptions grew 72% and our revenue from accessories and
materials grew 45%. In comparison, from 2019 to 2020 our revenue from connected machines grew 110%, our revenue from subscriptions grew
107% and our revenue from accessories and materials grew 84%. From 2020 to 2021 our revenue from connected machines grew 32%, our
revenue from subscriptions grew 85% and our revenue from accessories and materials grew 28%. We believe that some portion of our 2020 and
2021 revenue growth was a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, but we are not able to quantify the proportion of the increase in demand that is
attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic as opposed to other factors contributing to our growth in recent periods.

There is no guarantee that such trends will continue at all or at the same rate in the future, particularly once the rollout of COVID-19
vaccines reaches critical mass, restrictions on movement are lifted and full-time return to work trends normalize. To the contrary, the COVID-19
pandemic has had and may lead to a negative impact on our business and results of operations due to the occurrence of some or all of the
following events or circumstances, among others:

• our inability to manage our business effectively due to key employees becoming ill or infection clusters in worker populations, working
from home inefficiently and being unable to travel to our facilities;

• our third-party suppliers’, contract manufacturers’, third-party logistics providers’ and other business partners’ inability to operate
worksites, including manufacturing facilities, shipping and fulfillment centers and third-party logistics facilities; for example, we have
experienced longer lead times requirements with suppliers and slowdowns with our contract manufacturers during the COVID-19
pandemic;

• prolonged delivery timelines;

• increased return rates or decreased sales of our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials, as applicable, due
to a decrease in consumer discretionary spending;

• inventory shortages caused by a combination of increased demand for our products and longer lead-times in the manufacturing of our
connected machines and certain other products, due to work restrictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic, import and export
conditions, such as port congestion and local government orders;

• interruptions in manufacturing (including the sourcing and procurement of key components) and shipment of our products; for example,
in certain instances, our suppliers, manufacturers and third-party logistic partners have closed and may in the future temporarily close
certain of their facilities for short periods of time;

• government mandated shutdowns or movement control orders in the countries in which our contract manufacturers and suppliers are
located, specifically China and Malaysia, which may disrupt the operations of our contract manufacturers and third-party suppliers,
which could impact our ability to purchase components at efficient prices and in sufficient amounts; and

• incurrence of significant increases to employee health care and benefits costs.

Although recent vaccine rates have raised hopes of a turnaround in the COVID-19 pandemic at some point, renewed waves and new
variants continue to pose concerns for the outlook. Growth may be stymied if virus surges (including from new variants) prove difficult to contain,
infections and deaths mount rapidly before vaccines are widely available, and social distancing or lockdowns are more stringent than anticipated.
Slower-than-anticipated progress on medical interventions could dampen hopes of an exit from the COVID-19 pandemic and weaken confidence.
Specifically, vaccine rollout could suffer delays or be uneven, widespread hesitancy could hamper vaccine take-up, vaccines could deliver
shorter-lived immunity than anticipated and advances on therapies could be limited. Intensifying social unrest, including due to higher inequality
and unequal access to vaccines and therapies, could further complicate the recovery. Moreover, if policy support is withdrawn before full
economic recovery, bankruptcies of viable but illiquid companies could mount, leading to further employment and income losses. The ensuing
tighter financial conditions could increase rollover risks for vulnerable borrowers, add to the already large number of economies in debt distress,
and increase insolvencies among corporations and households.
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In the United States, given the widespread impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, substantial governmental support is still required and the
American Rescue Plan or other relief may be insufficient for long-term economic sustainability should there be a protracted recovery.
Furthermore, investors fleeing the Dollar could elevate inflation expectations and interest rates. Additionally, high unemployment could lead to
mortgage and rental defaults adding losses to the commercial banking industry, resulting in higher loan-loss provision, tighter lending standards
and lending curtailment. If the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic are materially prolonged, it could result in a cascade of additional corporate
filings for bankruptcies, further eroding market confidence and increasing unemployment rates. Together, these uncertainties and risks could
have a material adverse impact not only on our financial condition, business and results of operations in the United States, but also on our
consolidated financial conditions, business and results of operations.

There are no comparable recent events which may provide guidance as to the effect of the spread and the ultimate impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic. Consequently, the total magnitude of impact to our business and duration of impact is uncertain and difficult to reasonably estimate
at this time.

The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and financial results will depend largely on future developments,
including the duration of the spread of the pandemic, the impact on capital and financial markets and the related impact on the financial
circumstances of our customers, all of which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. This situation is changing rapidly, and additional
impacts may arise that we are not aware of currently.

Our business is subject to a large number of U.S. and non-U.S. laws, many of which are evolving, including laws specific to e-
commerce.

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulations in the United States and around the world, including those relating to traditional
businesses, such as employment laws and taxation, as well as laws and regulations focused on e-commerce and online marketplaces, such as
online payments, privacy, anti-spam, data security and protection, online platform liability, intellectual property and consumer protection, the
ability to collect and/or share necessary information that allows us to conduct business on the Internet, marketing communications and
advertising, content protection, electronic contracts or gift cards. In some cases, non-U.S. privacy, data protection, information security, consumer
protection, e-commerce and other laws and regulations are more detailed than those in the United States and, in some countries, are actively
enforced.

These laws and regulations are continuously evolving, and compliance is costly and could require changes to our business practices and
significant management time and effort, or may result in enforcement actions or litigation. For example, California’s Automatic Renewal Law
requires companies to adhere to enhanced disclosure requirements when entering into automatically renewing contracts with consumers. As a
result, a wave of consumer class action lawsuits was brought against companies that offer online products and services on a subscription or
recurring basis. Other laws, like the CCPA and the EU’s GDPR, require us to implement reasonable privacy and security measures, including
applying security requirements by contract to certain service providers and processors acting on our behalf, as well as requiring certain privacy
and security disclosures to consumers and employees. In some jurisdictions, these laws and regulations may be subject to attempts to apply
such domestic rules world-wide against us or our subsidiaries. Additionally, it is not always clear how existing laws apply to online marketplaces
as many of these laws do not address the unique issues raised by online marketplaces or e-commerce. For example, as described elsewhere in
this Risk Factors section, laws relating to privacy, data protection and information security are evolving differently in different jurisdictions.
Federal, state and non-U.S. governmental authorities, as well as courts interpreting relevant laws, continue to evaluate and assess applicable
privacy, data protection and information security requirements.

Existing and future laws and regulations enacted by federal, state or non-U.S. governments or the inconsistent enforcement of such laws
and regulations could impede the growth of e-commerce or online marketplaces, which could have a negative impact on our business and
operations. Examples include data localization requirements, limitations on marketplace scope or ownership, intellectual property intermediary
liability rules, regulation of online speech, limits on network neutrality and rules related to security, privacy, data protection or national security,
which may impede us or our users. We could also face regulatory challenges or be subject to discriminatory or anti-competitive practices that
could impede both our growth prospects, increase our costs and harm our business.
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We strive to comply with all applicable laws, but they may conflict with each other, and by complying with the laws or regulations of one
jurisdiction, we may find that we are in conflict with the laws or regulations of another jurisdiction. Despite our best efforts, we may not have fully
complied with all applicable laws and may not in the future. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with any of these laws or regulations
could result in damage to our reputation, lost business and proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or others, which could
result in significant expenses, fines or penalties. Laws or regulations, or enforcement thereof, could also force us to change the way we operate,
which could require us to incur significant expenses or to discontinue certain services, which could negatively affect our business.

Additionally, if third parties with whom we work violate applicable laws or our policies, those violations could result in other liabilities for us
and could harm our business. Furthermore, the circumstances in which we may be held liable for the acts, omissions or responsibilities of these
parties is uncertain, complex and evolving. If an increasing number of such laws are passed, the resulting compliance costs and potential liability
risk could negatively impact our business.

From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings, regulatory disputes and governmental inquiries that could cause us to
incur significant expenses, divert our management’s attention and materially harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

From time to time, we may be subject to claims, lawsuits, regulatory disputes, government inquiries and other proceedings, including
matters related to intellectual property, commercial, royalties, employment and tax that could adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition. As we have grown, we have seen a rise in the number and significance of these disputes and inquiries. Litigation and
regulatory proceedings, and particularly any intellectual property infringement matters that we may face, could be protracted and expensive, and
the results are difficult to predict. Certain of these matters may include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages
and include claims for injunctive relief. Adverse outcomes with respect to any of these legal proceedings may result in significant settlement costs
or judgments, penalties and fines, or require us to modify our products or services, make content unavailable or require us to stop offering certain
features, all of which could negatively affect our subscription and revenue growth. See the section titled “Business—Legal Proceedings” for
additional information.

The results of claims, lawsuits, regulatory disputes, government inquiries and other proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, and
determining reserves for pending litigation and other legal and regulatory matters requires significant judgment. There can be no assurance that
our expectations will prove correct, and even if these matters are resolved in our favor or without significant cash settlements, these matters, and
the time and resources necessary to litigate or resolve them, could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may engage in merger and acquisition activities, which could require significant management attention, disrupt our business,
dilute stockholder value and adversely affect our results of operations.

As part of our business strategy, we may in the future engage in investment, merger or acquisition activities involving other companies,
products or technologies. We may not be able to find suitable acquisition candidates, and we may not be able to complete acquisitions on
favorable terms, if at all. If we do complete acquisitions, we may not ultimately strengthen our competitive position or achieve our goals, and any
acquisitions we complete could be viewed negatively by our users or investors. Moreover, an acquisition, investment or business relationship
may result in unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures, including disrupting our ongoing operations, diverting management from their
primary responsibilities, subjecting us to additional liabilities, increasing our expenses and adversely affecting our business, financial condition
and results of operations. Moreover, we may be exposed to unknown liabilities, and the anticipated benefits of any acquisition, investment or
business relationship may not be realized, if, for example, we fail to successfully integrate such acquisitions, or the technologies associated with
such acquisitions, into our company.

To pay for any such acquisitions, we would have to use our cash and cash equivalents, incur debt or issue equity securities, or a
combination thereof, each of which may affect our financial condition or the value of our Class A common stock and could result in dilution to our
existing stockholders. If we incur more debt, it would result in increased fixed obligations and could also subject us to additional covenants or
other restrictions that would impede our ability to manage our operations. Additionally, we may receive indications of interest from other parties
interested in acquiring some or all of our business. The time required to evaluate such indications of interest could require significant attention
from management, disrupt the ordinary functioning of our business and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Our business is subject to the risk of earthquakes, fire, power outages, floods, public health crises, including the COVID-19 pandemic,
and other catastrophic events, and to interruption by manmade problems such as war or terrorism.

Our business is vulnerable to damage or interruption from earthquakes, fires, pandemics, floods, power losses, telecommunications
failures, terrorist attacks, acts of war, including the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine, human errors, break-ins, public health crises,
including the COVID-19 pandemic and similar events. For example, our operations are subject to a range of external factors related to the
COVID-19 pandemic that are not within our control. A wide range of governmental restrictions have been imposed on our employees’, customers’
and suppliers’ physical movement to limit the spread of COVID-19. There can be no assurance that precautionary measures, whether adopted by
us or imposed by others, will be effective, and such measures could negatively affect our sales, marketing and Cricut Member Care efforts, delay
and lengthen our sales cycles, decrease our employees’ or customers’ or partners’ productivity or create operational or other challenges, any of
which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. The third-party systems and operations and manufacturers we rely
on are subject to similar risks. As another example, we engage third-party service providers, a portion of whose software development staff
resides in Ukraine. Due to the current conflict, we may experience an interruption in the services provided by these parties. Our insurance
policies may not cover losses from these catastrophic events or may provide insufficient compensation that does not cover our total losses. For
example, a significant natural disaster, such as a pandemic, earthquake, fire or flood, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations, and our insurance coverage may be insufficient to compensate us for losses that may occur. Acts of terrorism, which may
be targeted at metropolitan areas that have higher population density than rural areas, could also cause disruptions in our or our suppliers’ and
manufacturers’ businesses or the economy as a whole. We may not have sufficient protection or recovery plans in some circumstances, such as
natural disasters affecting locations that store significant inventory of our products, that house our servers, or from which we generate content. As
we rely heavily on our computer and communications systems, and the Internet to conduct our business and provide high-quality Cricut Member
Care, these disruptions could negatively impact our ability to run our business and either directly or indirectly disrupt suppliers’ and
manufacturers’ businesses, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to payment processing risk.

Our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and users pay for our products using a variety of different payment methods, including credit
and debit cards, gift cards, electronic fund transfers and electronic payment system and third-party financing providers. We rely on internal
systems as well as those of third parties to process payment. Acceptance and processing of these payment methods are subject to certain rules
and regulations and require payment of interchange and other fees. To the extent there are disruptions in our payment processing systems,
increases in payment processing fees, material changes in the payment ecosystem, such as large re-issuances of payment cards, delays in
receiving payments from payment processors or changes to rules or regulations concerning payment processing, our revenue, operating
expenses and results of operation could be adversely impacted. We leverage our third-party payment processors to bill users on cricut.com and
Paid Subscriber on our behalf. If these third parties become unwilling or unable to continue processing payments on our behalf, we would have to
find alternative methods of collecting payments, which could adversely impact user and Paid Subscriber acquisition and retention. In addition,
from time to time, we encounter fraudulent use of payment methods, which could impact our results of operation and if not adequately controlled
and managed could create negative consumer perceptions of our service.

In 2020, we introduced an integration with a third-party financing provider, Affirm, which allows users to finance the purchase of our
connected machines through third-party consumer financing. There is no assurance that Affirm, or any other company that may in the future offer
financing to our users, will continue to provide users with access to credit or that credit limits under such arrangements will be sufficient. Such
restrictions or limitations on the availability of consumer credit could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
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The estimates of market size included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or that we have provided publicly may prove to be
inaccurate, and even if the market in which we compete is of the size we estimate, we cannot assure you that our business will
penetrate some or all of our SAM or TAM.

Market size estimates are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not prove to be
accurate. The estimates of market size in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or that we have provided publicly relating to our SAM and TAM,
including estimates based on our commissioned surveys or our own internal survey data, may prove to be inaccurate. Even if the market is of the
size we estimate, we may not further penetrate our SAM or TAM, or at all. Accordingly, the estimates of market size should not be taken as
indicative of our future growth.

The requirements of being a public company, including maintaining adequate internal control over our financial and management
systems, may strain our resources, divert management’s attention and affect our ability to attract and retain executive management
and qualified board members.

As a public company we incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. We are subject
to reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the rules subsequently implemented by the SEC, the rules and
regulations and the listing standards of the Exchange and other applicable securities rules and regulations. Compliance with these rules and
regulations will likely strain our financial and management systems, internal controls and employees.

The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and results
of operations and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures, and
internal control, over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required, improve our disclosure controls and procedures, and internal control
over, financial reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight may be required. If, in the future, we have
material weaknesses or deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting, we may not detect errors on a timely basis and our
consolidated financial statements may be materially misstated. Effective internal control is necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports
and is important to prevent fraud.

In addition, we will be required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act as early as in
our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022. We expect to incur significant expenses and devote substantial
management effort toward ensuring compliance with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. As a result of
the complexity involved in complying with the rules and regulations applicable to public companies, our management’s attention may be diverted
from other business concerns, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Although we have already hired
additional employees to assist us in complying with these requirements, our finance team is small and we may need to hire more employees in
the future, or engage outside consultants, which will increase our operating expenses.

Being a public company and complying with applicable rules and regulations will make it much more expensive for us to obtain director and
officer liability insurance, and we will incur substantially higher costs to obtain and maintain the same or similar coverage. These factors could
also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors and qualified executive officers.

If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies prove to be incorrect, our results of operations could be
adversely affected.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as provided in the section titled “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” The results of these estimates form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity/deficit and the amount of revenue and
expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Significant assumptions and estimates used in preparing our consolidated financial
statements include those related to deferred revenue and entitlements. Our results of operations may be adversely affected if our assumptions
change or if actual circumstances differ from those in our assumptions, which could cause our results of operations to fall below the expectations
of securities analysts and investors, resulting in a decline in the price of our Class A common stock.
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We may be subject to sales and other taxes, and we may be subject to liabilities on past sales for taxes, surcharges and fees.

The application of indirect taxes, such as sales and use tax, subscription sales tax, value-added tax, provincial taxes, goods and services
tax, business tax and gross receipt tax, to businesses like ours is a complex and evolving issue. Significant judgment is required to evaluate
applicable tax obligations. In many cases, the ultimate tax determination is uncertain because it is not clear how existing statutes apply to our
business. One or more states, the federal government or other countries may seek to impose additional reporting, record-keeping or indirect tax
collection obligations on businesses like ours that offer subscription services. For example, on June 21, 2018, the U.S. Supreme Court held in
South Dakota v. Wayfair, Inc. that states could impose sales tax collection obligations on out-of-state sellers even if those sellers lack any
physical presence within the states imposing the sales taxes. Under Wayfair, a person requires only a “substantial nexus” with the taxing state
before the state may subject the person to sales tax collection obligations therein. An increasing number of states (both before and after the
publication of Wayfair) have considered or adopted laws that attempt to impose sales tax collection obligations on out-of-state sellers. The U.S.
Supreme Court’s Wayfair decision has removed a significant impediment to the enactment and enforcement of these laws, and it is possible that
states may seek to tax out-of-state sellers on sales that occurred in prior tax years, which could create additional administrative burdens for us,
put us at a competitive disadvantage if such states do not impose similar obligations on our competitors and decrease our future sales, which
could adversely impact our business and results of operations. Although we believe that we currently collect and remit sales taxes in all states
that have adopted laws imposing sales tax collection obligations on out-of-state sellers since Wayfair was decided, a successful assertion by one
or more states requiring us to collect sales taxes where we presently do not do so, or to collect more taxes in a jurisdiction where we currently do
collect some sales taxes, could result in substantial tax liabilities, including taxes on past sales, as well as interest and penalties. The adoption of
new laws by, or a successful assertion by taxing authorities of such laws, could also require us to incur substantial costs to capture data and
collect and remit taxes. If such obligations were imposed, the additional costs associated with tax collection, remittance and audit requirements
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 

None

Item 2. Properties 

Our corporate headquarters are in South Jordan, Utah under operating leases that expire at various times through 2027. We also lease
offices elsewhere in Utah, China and Malaysia. All of our offices are leased and we do not own any real property.

We believe that our existing facilities are sufficient for our current needs. In the future, we may need to add new facilities and expand our
existing facilities as we add employees, grow our infrastructure and evolve our business, and we believe that suitable additional or substitute
space will be available on commercially reasonable terms to meet our future needs.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not presently a party to any material pending legal proceedings. We are, from time to time, subject to legal proceedings and claims
arising from the normal course of business activities, and an unfavorable resolution of any of these matters could materially affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Litigation may be necessary, among other things, to defend ourselves or our users by determining the scope, enforceability and validity of
third-party proprietary rights, to establish our proprietary rights, or to address royalty payments we make. The results of any current or future
litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, and regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and
settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

In September 2020, we joined NXN LLC and dozens of other plaintiffs in a complaint against the U.S. federal government in the United
States Court of International Trade alleging unlawful actions by the federal government on the imposition of the third and fourth round of tariffs on
products covered in the United States Trade Representative’s Section 301 Action Concerning China’s Act’s, Policies, and Practices Related to
Technology Transfer, Intellectual Property, and Innovation. The complaint seeks declaratory judgment that the United States Trade
Representative’s actions were beyond its delegated authority under the Trade Act of 1974 and in violation of the Administrative Procedure Act
and the United States Constitution.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Market Information for Our Class A Common Stock

Our Class A common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "CRCT" since March 25, 2021. Prior to
that date, there was no public trading market for our Class A common stock. There is no public trading market for our Class B common stock.

Holders of Record

As of February 28, 2022, we had 317 holders of record of our Class A and Class B common stock. The actual number of stockholders is
greater than this number of record holders and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners but whose shares are held in street name by
brokers and other nominees.

Dividend Policy

In September 2020, we paid a cash dividend to holders of our common stock totaling $51.2 million. We do not currently intend to pay any
cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development
of our business. Any future determination to pay dividends on our common stock will be made at the discretion of our board of directors subject to
applicable laws, and will depend upon, among other factors, our results of operations, financial condition, contractual restrictions and capital
requirements. Our ability to pay cash dividends on our capital stock may also be limited by the terms of our Credit Agreement and the terms of
any future debt or preferred securities or future indebtedness.

65



Table of Contents

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC,
for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under
that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Act.

The following graph compares (i) the cumulative total stockholder return on our Class A common stock from March 25, 2021 (the date our
Class A common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq) through December 31, 2021 with (ii) the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq
Composite Index and the S&P MidCap 400 Index over the same period, assuming the investment of $100 in our Class A common stock and in
each index on March 25, 2021 and the reinvestment of dividends. The graph uses the closing market price on March 25, 2021 of $17.80 per
share as the initial value of our Class A common stock. The comparisons are based on historical data and are not indicative of, nor intended to
forecast, future performance of our Class A common stock.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Item 6. [ Reserved ]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report. This discussion and analysis
contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results could differ materially from these
forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those discussed in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements.”

A discussion regarding our financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2019 can be found in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our
Prospectus, which was filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4) on March 25, 2021 which is hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Overview of Our Business and History

At Cricut, our mission is to help people lead creative lives. We have designed and built a creativity platform that enables our engaged and
loyal community of over 6.4 million users to turn ideas into professional-looking handmade goods. With our highly versatile connected machines,
design apps and accessories and materials, our users create everything from personalized birthday cards, mugs and T-shirts to large-scale
interior decorations.

Our users’ journeys typically begin with the purchase of a connected machine. We currently sell a portfolio of connected machines that cut,
write, score and create other decorative effects using a wide variety of materials including paper, vinyl, leather and more. Our connected
machines are designed for a wide range of uses and are available at a variety of price points (MSRP by machine family as of December 31,
2021):

• Cricut Joy for personalization on-the-go, $179.99 MSRP

• Cricut Explore for cutting, writing and scoring, $249.99 - $299.99 MSRP

• Cricut Maker for cutting, writing, scoring and adding decorative effects to a wider range of materials, $399.99 MSRP

Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share seamlessly. Our software is
cloud-based, meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any time, across desktops or mobile devices. We enable
our users to be inspired, to create and share projects with the Cricut community and to follow others doing the same. On our apps, users can find
inspiration, purchase or upload content like fonts and images, design a project from scratch or find a vast array of ready-to-make projects.

Users can leverage the full power of our platform by using our connected machines together with our free design apps, in-app purchases
and subscription offerings to design and complete projects. All users can access a select number of free images, fonts and projects from our
design apps or upload their own. In addition, we offer a wider selection of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte, including licensed
content from partners with well-known brands and characters, like major motion picture studios. We also have two subscription offerings: Cricut
Access and Cricut Access Premium. Cricut Access provides a subscription to images, fonts and projects as well as other member benefits,
including exclusive software features and functionality, discounts, and priority Cricut Member Care. Cricut Access is billed monthly for $9.99 per
month or annually for $95.88 per year. Cricut Access Premium includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and
preferred shipping and is billed annually for $119.88 per year. As of December 31, 2021, we had over 2.0 million Paid Subscribers to Cricut
Access and Cricut Access Premium.

We sell a broad range of accessories and materials that bring our users’ designs to life, from advanced tools like heat presses to Cricut-
branded rulers, scoring tools, pens, paper and iron-on vinyl, all designed to work seamlessly with our connected machines. Designing and
completing projects drives repeat purchases of Cricut-branded accessories and materials.

We design and develop our software and hardware products, and we work with third-party contract manufacturers to source components
and finished goods and with third-party logistics companies to warehouse and distribute our products.

We sell our connected machines and accessories and materials through our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as through
our website at cricut.com. Our partners include Amazon, Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target, Walmart and many others. We also sell
our products, including subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium, on cricut.com. In both 2019 and 2020, 52%, and in 2021, 50%
of our revenue
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was generated through brick-and-mortar sales. In both 2019 and 2020, 48%, and in 2021, 50% of our revenue was generated through online
channels.

For the years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, we generated:

• Total revenue of $486.6 million, $959.0 million and $1,306.2 million, respectively, representing 43%, 97% and 36% year-over-year
growth, respectively

• Net income of $39.2 million, $154.6 million and $140.5 million, respectively, representing 43%, 294% and (9)% year-over-year growth,
respectively

On March 29, 2021, we completed an initial public offering (“IPO”), in which we sold 13,250,000 shares of Class A common stock, and the
selling stockholders sold an additional 2,064,903 shares of Class A common stock at a price to the public of $20.00 per share. We received
aggregate net proceeds of $242.7 million after deducting offering costs, underwriting discounts and commissions of $22.3 million. On April 28,
2021, we sold an additional 968,815 shares of Class A common stock and the selling stockholders sold an additional 150,984 shares of Class A
common stock pursuant to the partial exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares which generated net proceeds of $18.0
million after deducting for underwriting discounts and commissions of $1.4 million.

Our Business Model

Our business model thrives because our products unlock creativity, which then in turn drives the engagement of our users. Our 6.4 million
users’ journeys typically begin with the purchase of a connected machine and expand across our family of products as users harness the power
of our platform. Our business model is characterized by strong engagement and diversified sales across product categories. This engagement
has led to rapid growth and strong profitability.

Attracting and Engaging New Users through Connected Machine Sales

Since launching our first connected machine in 2014, we have built a loyal and growing community of users that has reached substantial
scale. As of December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021, we had 2.5 million, 4.3 million and 6.4 million users, respectively, representing 50%, 71% and
48% year-over-year growth, respectively. See the section titled “—Key Business Metrics” for the definition of users. We believe we are in the
early stages of our growth and that we have a significant untapped opportunity in the United States and Canada, as well as globally. Our 6.4
million users represent approximately 5% of our total SAM which includes the United States, Canada, and our four leading international markets
of Australia, France, Germany and the United Kingdom.

We have been able to efficiently acquire new users and drive sales of our products because of the powerful network effects of our
community. To date, word-of-mouth referrals, as well as effective use of low-cost marketing channels like social media, have driven our success.
In 2021, over 40% of new users first heard about Cricut through friends and family. Sales and marketing expenses represented 8%, 7% and 10%
of revenue in 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.

Once we acquire a user, we see strong engagement with them over time. We drive engagement through a highly interactive and fulfilling
product experience and the strength of our community. We continuously innovate and improve our connected machines, design apps and
accessories and materials, giving our users more to create. Once they have purchased connected machines, users inspire one another to create
and use more of our digital content, subscriptions and accessories and materials. In turn, we learn from our users’ creativity, and launch new
products to help expand their creative horizons. We measure engagement by the Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days. See the
section titled “—Key Business Metrics” for the definition of Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days and for information regarding that
metric over the last three years. As of December 31, 2021, 60% of our 6.4 million users created on their connected machines in the last 90 days.
User engagement has been relatively consistent over time, demonstrating how our platform becomes a regular part of the creative lives of our
users.

The table below shows the Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days for the periods indicated.

2019 2020 2021
Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Users (in Thousands) 2,221 2,525 2,803 3,274 3,681 4,323 4,939 5,373 5,732 6,409
Percentage of Users Creating in
Trailing 90 Days 60% 64% 60% 63% 63% 65% 62% 59% 56% 60%
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Many of our users choose to pay for our subscription offerings which include a subscription to images, fonts and projects as well as other
member benefits, including exclusive software features and functionality, discounts, priority Cricut Member Care, and, in the case of Cricut
Access Premium, preferred shipping. By subscribing to our offerings, users have access to a curated and growing design library of over 200,000
images, thousands of ready-to-make projects and hundreds of fonts. We believe that the number of Paid Subscribers is an indicator of the depth
of our users’ engagement. See the section titled “—Key Business Metrics” for the definition of Paid Subscribers and for information regarding that
metric over the last three years. As of December 31, 2021, we had over 2.0 million Paid Subscribers, representing 56% year-over-year growth.
As of December 31, 2021, approximately 32% of our users were also Paid Subscribers. We aim to increase the number of our users that are Paid
Subscribers over time.

Growing With Users Over Time

The vast majority of the connected machines we sell are first-time Cricut purchases. We launch software enhancements and new tools for
our connected machines, as well as new accessories and materials SKUs, to enhance the capabilities of our connected machines over time. We
grow with our users as they continue to create on their connected machines, subscribe to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium and
purchase à la carte items and our accessories and materials repeatedly.

The table below is a summary of our Users, Paid Subscribers, Subscription ARPU and Accessories and Materials ARPU since Q1 2019. In
2021, we generated, on average, approximately $141 combined from subscriptions and accessories and materials per user. Our users purchase
subscriptions and accessories and materials, our higher gross margin categories, long after they first purchase a connected machine. In 2021,
the gross margin of our subscriptions and accessories and materials categories was 89% and 38%, respectively, compared to 12% for our
connected machines category.

2019 2020 2021
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Users (in Thousands) 1,907 2,058 2,221 2,525 2,803 3,274 3,681 4,323 4,939 5,373 5,732 6,409
Paid Subscribers (in Thousands) 457 496 536 604 740 996 1,164 1,303 1,614 1,765 1,814 2,037
Subscription ARPU $6.56 $6.34 $6.47 $6.58 $7.20 $7.91 $8.97 $9.23 $9.96 $9.83 $9.60 $9.18
Accessories and Materials ARPU $27.60 $26.15 $25.76 $32.90 $25.40 $32.23 $29.41 $40.76 $29.45 $26.67 $18.79 $28.66

We review Subscription ARPU and Accessories and Material ARPU as an indicator of the monetization of the journey of our users.
Connected Machine revenue fluctuates as we introduce new connected machines at various price points and as the mix of connected machines
purchased changes.

We define Accessories and Materials ARPU as Accessories and Materials revenue divided by average users in a period. Accessories and
Materials ARPU fluctuates seasonally as well as over time as we introduce new accessories and materials at various price points and as the
volume and mix of accessories and materials purchased changes. We expect this metric to continue to fluctuate both seasonally and over time
from shifts in volume and mix.

Factors Affecting Our Performance

Our financial condition and results of operations have been, and will continue to be, affected by a number of factors, including the following:

Attracting New Users and Driving Connected Machine Sales

Our growth depends in part on our ability to drive continued growth in users and connected machine sales. We believe we are in the early
stages of growth in our addressable market. We have been successful in attracting new users by delivering positive product experiences and due
to the powerful network effects associated with our large and loyal user community. We plan to continue to grow our number of users through
word-of-mouth referrals, by investing in sales and marketing initiatives and by broadening our partnerships with new and existing brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners and distributors. Our efforts to attract new users outside of the United States and Canada will require us to
spend additional resources, particularly in marketing. If we cannot attract new users, our results of operations would be adversely affected.

Engaging and Expanding With our Existing Users

An important part of our success is driven by engagement of our users, as well as our ability to sell additional products to our users after
their first connected machine purchase. Our users are engaged when they create with connected machines, design apps and accessories and
materials. It is therefore important that users find our products intuitive and easy to use. As users create on their connected machines, they are
more likely to
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purchase subscriptions and accessories and materials. Historically we find that our users continue to be engaged over time. As of December 31,
2021, 81% of our 6.4 million users created on their connected machines in the last 365 days. This durable relationship is motivated by new
software and products that we launch to expand the capabilities of existing connected machines as well as through the inspiration derived from
our large and passionate community. If our users engage with their connected machines less over time, the overall growth in our business may
slow.

Scaling our Product Offerings

We have historically enjoyed strong demand for our products, driving methodical growth. Our growth depends in part on our ability to
design and introduce new products and enhance existing products that meet the preferences of our users. We must also carefully manage any
changes to our product offerings so that we do not harm our brand or our relationships with our users. To continue to grow, we must employ the
right personnel to execute our product roadmap and effectively work with third-party suppliers and manufacturers. If we fail to expand our
products or maintain high quality standards in our products, our brand, business and results of operations will be adversely affected.

Managing our Supply Chain

We rely on third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers and third-party logistics partners to produce and distribute our products. Our ability
to grow depends largely on the ability of these third-party companies to scale with us, provide high quality services and deliver components and
finished products on time and at reasonable costs. While we are working to diversify our supply chain, some of our third-party suppliers and
manufacturers are sole-source suppliers, including one manufacturer for the majority of our connected machines. Our concentration of suppliers
could lead to supply shortages, long lead times for components and supply changes. Much of our supply chain originates in Malaysia and China.
We expect to pursue additional geographic diversification in our supply chain to mitigate tariffs and other supply chain challenges. We must
continue to build relationships with strong third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers and third-party logistics companies and continue to
diversify our supply chain to improve operational results. We manage our inventory levels to account for the complexity of our supply chain,
resulting in significant working capital risks and elevated obsolescence risks.

Driving Innovation

We focus on understanding our users and their needs. We engage with our users through our customer service channels, as well as
through regularly conducted surveys, ethnographies and focus groups. Social media serves as an additional conversational channel where we
learn from our users. We then seek to methodically translate these insights into elegant solutions that serve the needs of our users, including
through new products and enhancements to existing products. In particular, we are continually driving innovation in our software, connected
machines, design apps, accessories and materials. While all of these offerings are designed to work seamlessly with each other, they each
require significantly different strengths and talents, and so we have built our research and development teams with the unique needs of each
offering in mind. Improving our software, expanding the capabilities of our connected machines and subscriptions and releasing new accessories
and materials will require continued investment and expenses. As a result, our reported capital expenditures and research and development
expenses should be viewed in tandem to understand our investments in innovation.

Balancing Operating Discipline and Investment for Growth

We seek to balance investments for long-term growth with operating discipline and the profitability of our business. We have been net
income profitable every year since 2017. See the section titled “—Key Business Metrics” for information regarding our net income and net income
margin over the last three years. We expect net income margin to fluctuate as a percentage of revenue in the near term and long term. We have
a strong focus on the unit economics of each of our products and consistency in how we operate the business. Our investments to date have
been critical to our success and have allowed us to reach 6.4 million users as of December 31, 2021 and launch more than 3,000 SKUs since the
launch of our first connected machine. We will continue to prioritize our investments in technology innovation including software and hardware
development, content and accessories and materials. In addition, we are investing in sales and marketing and operations as appropriate to
support our growth. Our expenses may also increase as we hire additional personnel and continue to attract technical talent. While we expect to
continue or increase our spending in these investments in the future, we cannot be certain they will result in the growth of our number of users or
increase engagement with existing users.

Growing Internationally

Expanding internationally, including by entering new geographic markets and increasing our sales in markets that we have already entered,
requires us to invest in sales and marketing, distribution partnerships, infrastructure and personnel. Our international growth will depend on our
ability to create brand awareness, attract
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new users, develop retail and distribution partnerships and sell connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials. Our
international expansion has resulted in, and will continue to result in, increased costs and is subject to a variety of risks, including content
localization, multilingual customer support, potentially complex delivery logistics and compliance with foreign laws and regulations.

Seasonality

Historically, we have experienced the highest revenue levels in the fourth quarter of the year, coinciding with the holiday shopping season
in the United States. For example, in 2019, 2020 and 2021, our fourth quarter represented 36%, 39% and 30% of total revenue for the year,
respectively. Our promotional discounting activity is higher in the fourth quarter as well, which negatively impacts gross margin during this period.
For example, gross margin in the fourth quarter of 2021 was 27%, compared to gross margin of 35% for all of 2021. Additionally, sales of
accessories and materials typically rise and fall with seasonal holiday crafting periods. The seasonality patterns experienced in 2020 and 2021
are not representative of our typical historical patterns due to the unique aspects of the pandemic. For example, we experienced unusually high
demand in the first and second quarters of 2021, which is inconsistent with normal seasonality patterns. As the impact of the pandemic on
behaviors abate, we expect to return to a more normal seasonality pattern. As we continue to grow internationally, we expect we may experience
seasonality in additional markets, which may differ from the seasonality experienced in the United States.

Key Business Metrics

In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, we use the following key metrics to evaluate our business,
measure our performance, identify trends and make strategic decisions.

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Users (in thousands) 6,409 4,323 2,525 
Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days 60 % 65 % 64 %
Paid Subscribers (in thousands) 2,037 1,303 604 

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Subscription ARPU $ 38.37 $ 32.52 $ 25.57 
Accessories and Materials ARPU $ 102.91 $ 125.88 $ 111.44 

Users

We define a User as a registered user of at least one registered connected machine as of the end of a period. One user may own multiple
registered connected machines but is only counted once if that user registers those connected machines by using the same email address. If
possession of a connected machine is transferred to a new owner and registered by that new owner, the new owner is added to the total user
count and the prior owner is removed from the total user count if the prior owner does not own any other registered connected machines. User
count is a key indicator of the health of our business, because changes in the number of users reflects changes in connected machine sales and
represents opportunities for us to drive additional sales of subscriptions and accessories and materials. There are certain limitations associated
with this metric. For example, this metric does not capture whether a User is active in using a connected machine and does not indicate whether
a User is purchasing subscriptions or accessories and materials. We compensate for these limitations by also reviewing other metrics that
capture portions of this information, including the metrics below.

Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days

We define the Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days as the percentage of users who have used a connected machine for any
activity, such as cutting, writing or any other activity enabled by our connected machines, in the past 90 days. This metric is a key indicator of our
engagement with users, which helps drive sales of subscriptions and accessories and materials. We began tracking this metric in July 2019 and
therefore do not have information for the full year 2019 or for any prior periods. There are certain limitations associated with this metric. For
example, this metric does not capture how active a User is during the 90-day period, nor whether a User is purchasing subscriptions or
accessories and materials. We compensate for some of these limitations by also reviewing other metrics that capture portions of this information,
including the metrics below.
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Paid Subscribers

We define Paid Subscribers as the number of users with a subscription to Cricut Access or Cricut Access Premium, excluding cancelled,
unpaid or free trial subscriptions, as of the end of a period. Paid Subscribers is a key metric to track growth in our subscriptions revenue and
potential leverage in our gross margin.

Subscription ARPU

We define Subscription ARPU as Subscriptions revenue divided by average users in a period. Subscription ARPU allows us to forecast
Subscriptions revenue over time and is an indicator of our ability to expand with users and of user engagement with our subscription offerings.

Accessories and Materials ARPU

We define Accessories and Materials ARPU as Accessories and Materials revenue divided by average users in a period. Accessories and
Materials ARPU allows us to forecast Accessories and Materials revenue over time and is an indicator of our ability to expand with users,
particularly the volume of projects created by our users.

Components of our Results of Operations

We operate and manage our business in three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and Materials.
We identify our reportable segments based on the information used by management to monitor performance and make operating decisions. See
Note 17 to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this filing for additional information regarding our reportable
segments.

Revenue

Connected Machines

We generate Connected Machines revenue from sales of our portfolio of connected machines, currently consisting of machines in three
product families, Cricut Maker, which includes Maker and Maker 3, Cricut Explore, which includes Explore Air 2 and Explore 3, and Cricut Joy, net
of sales discounts, incentives and returns. Connected Machines revenue is recognized at the point in time when control is transferred, which is
either upon shipment or delivery to the customer in accordance with the terms of each customer contract.

Subscriptions

We generate Subscriptions revenue primarily from sales of subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium and a minimal
amount of revenue allocated to the unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and access to our cloud-
based services. For a monthly or annual subscription fee, Cricut Access includes a subscription to images, fonts and projects as well as other
member benefits, including exclusive software features and functionality, discounts, and priority Cricut Member Care. For an annual subscription
fee, Cricut Access Premium includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and preferred shipping. Subscriptions
revenue excludes à la carte digital content purchases. Subscriptions revenue is recognized on a ratable basis over the subscription term.

Accessories and Materials

We generate Accessories and Materials revenue from sales of ancillary products, such as Cricut EasyPress, Cricut Mug Press, hand tools,
machine replacement tools and blades, project materials such as vinyl and iron-on and sales of à la carte digital content purchases, including
fonts, images and projects. Accessories and Materials revenue is recognized for sales of such items, net of sales discounts, incentives and
returns. Accessories and Materials revenue is recognized at the point in time when control is transferred, which is either upon shipment or
delivery to the customer in accordance with the terms of each customer contract.

Cost of Revenue

Connected Machines

Cost of revenue related to Connected Machines consists of product costs, including costs of components, costs of contract manufacturers
for production, inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other applicable importing costs,
warranty replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and royalties. We expect our cost of
revenue related to Connected Machines as a percentage of revenue to fluctuate in the near term as we address global supply chain challenges
created by the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to invest in the growth of our business and decrease over the long term as we drive greater
scale and efficiency in our business.
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Subscriptions

Cost of revenue related to Subscriptions consists primarily of hosting fees, digital content costs, amortization of capitalized software
development costs and software maintenance costs. We expect our cost of revenue related to Subscriptions as a percentage of revenue to
fluctuate in the near term as we expand our content offerings, including localized content for international target markets, and decrease over time
as we drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.

Accessories and Materials

Costs of revenue related to Accessories and Materials consists of product costs, including costs of components, costs of contract
manufacturers for production, inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other applicable
importing costs, warranty replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and royalties. We expect
our cost of revenue related to Accessories and Materials as a percentage of revenue to fluctuate in the near term as we address global supply
chain challenges created by the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to invest in the growth of our business and decrease over the long term as we
drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.

Operating Expenses

Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs associated with the development of our connected machines, software and
accessories and materials, including personnel-related expenses for engineering, product development and quality assurance, as well as
prototype costs, service fees incurred by contracting with vendors and allocated overhead. We expect our research and development expenses
to grow in the near term as we begin developing and investing in more new products to support growth further into the future. Longer term, we
expect research and development expense to increase as a percentage of revenue to levels somewhat higher than recent historical levels.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of the advertising and marketing of our products, third-party payment processing fees,
personnel-related expenses, including salaries and bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensation expense, as well as sales incentives,
professional services, promotional items, and allocated overhead costs. We expect our sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of
revenue to fluctuate in the near and long term as we expand internationally and launch new products.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist of personnel-related expenses for our finance, legal, human resources and administrative
personnel, including salaries and bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensation expense, as well as the costs of professional services, any
allocated overhead, information technology and other administrative expenses. We expect our general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenue to increase in the near term as we expand our operations and incur expenses required of a public company, and to
decline over the long term as we drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net consists primarily of interest expense associated with our debt financing arrangements and amortization of debt
issuance costs.

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes consists of income taxes in the United States and certain state and foreign jurisdictions in which we conduct
business. We have not recorded a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets as we have concluded that it is more likely than not that
the deferred tax assets will be realized.
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Results of Operations

The following tables set forth the components of our audited consolidated statements of operations for each of the periods presented and
as a percentage of our revenue for those periods. The period-to-period comparison of results of operations is not necessarily indicative of results
of future periods.

The following table is presented in thousands:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands)
Revenue:

Connected machines $ 548,205 $ 416,714 $ 198,144 
Subscriptions 205,858 111,337 53,829 
Accessories and materials 552,164 430,979 234,581 

Total revenue 1,306,227 959,030 486,554 
Cost of revenue:

Connected machines 484,025 351,898 176,894 
Subscriptions 21,961 13,125 8,827 
Accessories and materials 342,791 261,633 158,483 

Total cost of revenue 848,777 626,656 344,204 
Gross profit 457,450 332,374 142,350 
Operating expenses:

Research and development 79,814 38,930 26,674 
Sales and marketing 133,963 63,329 40,110 
General and administrative 51,268 29,602 22,005 

Total operating expenses 265,045 131,861 88,789 
Income from operations 192,405 200,513 53,561 
Other expense, net (32) (1,320) (3,293)
Income before provision for income taxes 192,373 199,193 50,268 
Provision for income taxes 51,900 44,615 11,057 
Net income $ 140,473 $ 154,578 $ 39,211 

(1)    Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019
(in thousands)
Cost of revenue

Connected machines $ 34 $ 7 $ 2 
Subscriptions 219 31 11 
Accessories and materials — — — 

Total cost of revenue 253 38 13 
Research and development 15,782 3,332 881 
Sales and marketing 13,814 4,794 623 
General and administrative 8,225 1,320 328 

Total stock-based compensation expense $ 38,074 $ 9,484 $ 1,845 

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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Comparison of the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Revenue:

Connected machines $ 548,205 $ 131,491 32 % $ 416,714 $ 218,570 110 % $ 198,144 
Subscriptions 205,858 94,521 85 % 111,337 57,508 107 % 53,829 
Accessories and materials 552,164 121,185 28 % 430,979 196,398 84 % 234,581 

Total revenue $ 1,306,227 $ 347,197 36 % $ 959,030 $ 472,476 97 % $ 486,554 

Connected Machines revenue increased by $131.5 million, or 32%, to $548.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $416.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by growth in the number of Connected Machines sold during
the period, including sales of Explore 3 and Maker 3, which launched in June 2021.

Subscriptions revenue increased by $94.5 million, or 85%, to $205.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $111.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in the number of Paid Subscribers which increased by
56% from 1.3 million as of December 31, 2020 to 2.0 million as of December 31, 2021.

Accessories and Materials revenue increased by $121.2 million, or 28%, to $552.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
$431.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by growth in unit sales of Accessories and Materials
during the period, particularly growth in units of EasyPress, Mug Press, which launched in March 2021, and project materials.

Cost of Revenue, Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Cost of Revenue:

Connected machines $ 484,025 $ 132,127 38 % $ 351,898 $ 175,004 99 % $ 176,894 
Subscriptions 21,961 8,836 67 % 13,125 4,298 49 % 8,827 
Accessories and materials 342,791 81,158 31 % 261,633 103,150 65 % 158,483 

Total cost revenue $ 848,777 $ 222,121 35 % $ 626,656 $ 282,452 82 % $ 344,204 
Gross Profit:

Connected machines $ 64,180 $ (636) (1)% $ 64,816 $ 43,566 205 % $ 21,250 
Subscriptions 183,897 85,685 87 % 98,212 53,210 118 % 45,002 
Accessories and materials 209,373 40,027 24 % 169,346 93,248 123 % 76,098 

Total gross profit $ 457,450 $ 125,076 38 % $ 332,374 $ 190,024 133 % $ 142,350 
Gross Margin

Connected machines 12 % 16 % 11 %
Subscriptions 89 % 88 % 84 %
Accessories and materials 38 % 39 % 32 %
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Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Connected Machines cost of revenue increased by $132.1 million, or 38%, to $484.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
$351.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by growth in the number of Connected Machines sold
during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020.

Gross margin for Connected Machines decreased to 12% for the year ended December 31, 2021 from 16% for the year ended December
31, 2020. Gross margin decreased due to higher promotions, sales incentives, and freight costs due to global supply chain challenges as a
percentage of revenue.

Subscriptions cost of revenue increased $8.8 million, or 67%, to $22.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $13.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by an increase in hosting fees to support our growing number of
subscribers along with increases in amortization of capitalized software development costs, and digital content costs.

Gross margin for Subscriptions increased to 89% for the year ended December 31, 2021 from 88% for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Gross margin increased due to lower amortization of capitalized software development costs as a percentage of subscriptions revenue.

Accessories and Materials cost of revenue increased by $81.2 million, or 31%, to $342.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021
from $261.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily driven by growth in the units of project materials, Mug
Press, and EasyPress sold during the period.

Gross margin for Accessories and Materials decreased to 38% for the year ended December 31, 2021 from 39% for the year ended
December 31, 2020. Gross margin decreased primarily due to higher freight costs due to global supply chain challenges.

Operating Expenses

Research and Development

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Research and development $ 79,814 $ 40,884 105 % $ 38,930 $ 12,256 46 % $ 26,674 

As a percentage of total revenue 6 % 4 % 5 %

Research and development expenses increased by $40.9 million, or 105%, to $79.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
$38.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily due to a $13.7 million increase in product development
expenses for future products, a $12.5 million increase in stock-based compensation expense, and a $11.2 million increase in payroll-expenses
due to increases in research and development personnel.

Sales and Marketing

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Sales and marketing $ 133,963 $ 70,634 112 % $ 63,329 $ 23,219 58 % $ 40,110

As a percentage of total revenue 10 % 7 % 8%

Sales and marketing expenses increased by $70.6 million, or 112%, to $134.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $63.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily due to a $32.6 million increase in advertising and other marketing
costs, a $15.4 million increase in payment processing fees, a $9.0 million increase in stock-based compensation expense, and a $7.9 million
increase in payroll-related expenses due to more sales and marketing personnel.
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General and Administrative

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
General and administrative $ 51,268 $ 21,666 73 % $ 29,602 $ 7,597 35 % $ 22,005

As a percentage of total revenue 4 % 3 % 5%

General and administrative expenses increased by $21.7 million, or 73%, to $51.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
$29.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily due to a $6.9 million increase in stock-based compensation, a
$5.0 million increase in payroll-related expenses due to increases in personnel, and a $3.6 million increase in professional services.

Other Expense, Net

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Other expense, net $ (32) $ 1,288 (98)% $ (1,320) $ 1,973 (60)% $ (3,293)

Other expense, net changed by $1.3 million, or (98)%, to expense of $32 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2021 from a net
expense of $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The change was primarily due to a decrease in interest expense as we repaid all
outstanding borrowings in September 2020 and had no outstanding borrowings during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Provision for Income Taxes

Years Ended December 31,
Change Change

2021 $ % 2020 $ % 2019
(dollars in thousands)
Provision for income taxes $ 51,900 $ 7,285 16 % $ 44,615 $ 33,558 304 % $ 11,057 

Provision for income taxes increased by $7.3 million, or 16%, to $51.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $44.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020. This represents an effective tax rate of 27.0% and 22.4% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The increase in the tax rate is due mainly to the allocation of sales in states with high tax rates and nexus in additional states for
2020. Additionally, we recorded a reduction to the deferred tax asset related to stock-based compensation as a result of Section 162(m) rules
which are now applicable.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our operations during the periods presented have been financed primarily through cash flow from operating activities, borrowings under
credit facilities and the net proceeds from our initial public offering in March of 2021. We believe our balances of cash and cash equivalents,
which totaled $241.6 million as of December 31, 2021, along with forecasted cash expected to be generated by ongoing operations and $150.0
million in available borrowings on our credit facility (see Note 8) will be sufficient to satisfy our cash requirements over the next 12 months and
beyond.

Our future capital requirements may vary materially from those currently planned and will depend on many factors, including our rate of
revenue growth, the timing and extent of spending on research and development efforts and other growth initiatives, the expansion of sales and
marketing activities, the timing of new product introductions, market acceptance of our products and overall economic conditions. To the extent
that current and anticipated future sources of liquidity are insufficient to fund our future business activities and requirements, we may be required
to seek additional equity or debt financing. The sale of additional equity would result in additional dilution to our stockholders. The incurrence of
debt financing would result in debt service obligations, and the instruments governing such debt could provide for operating and financing
covenants that would restrict our operations. There can be no assurances that we will be able to raise additional capital. The inability to raise
capital would adversely affect our ability to achieve our business objectives.
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Our material cash requirements include the following contractual and other obligations:

Employee Compensation

Compensation for employees include fixed (salaried and hourly) and variable (commissions, bonuses, etc.) elements as well as the cost
of benefits and many fluctuate with sales, financial results, hiring and retention activity and payment of withholding taxes on vested stock-based
awards.

Inventory and Supply Chain

We utilize third-party contract manufacturers to source components and finished goods and third-party logistics companies to warehouse
and distribute our products. As of December 31, 2021, we had component purchase obligations of $41.9 million, with $24.8 million payable within
12 months in addition to ongoing inventory purchases of finished goods from our contract manufacturers. These manufacturing purchase
obligations are primarily noncancellable. Actual inventory purchases will vary based on current and forecasted demand for our products.
Payments to third-part logistics companies are largely variable and are primarily driven by inventory levels and receiving and shipping activity
levels.

Leases

As of December 31, 2021, we had fixed lease payment obligations of $25.0 million, with $4.9 million payable within 12 months primarily
for corporate and other office space. See Note 13 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities $ (104,949) $ 248,227 $ 3,861 
Net cash flows used in investing activities (35,786) (21,842) (14,095)
Net cash flows provided (used in) by financing activities 260,244 (110,915) 10,896 

Operating Activities

The change in net cash flows from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to year ended December 31, 2020
is primarily due to increased cash used to rebuild depleted inventories and fund higher inventory levels to mitigate global supply chain challenges
as well as cash used to pay down accounts payable. These cash uses were partially offset by a smaller increase in accounts receivable in 2021
compared to 2020.

Investing Activities

The change in net cash flows from investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to year ended December 31, 2020
was due to increased property and equipment acquisition and capitalized software development costs.

Financing Activities

The change in net cash flows from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to year ended December 31, 2020
was primarily due to proceeds of $262.0 million received from our IPO, net of underwriter discounts and offering costs compared to net outflows
during 2020 due to a cash dividend and payments on the line of credit and term loan.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported revenues and expenses incurred
during the reporting periods. Our estimates are based on our historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The critical accounting
policies that reflect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements include those
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described in Note 2 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements in the section titled “—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

During the past three fiscal years, we have not made any material changes to the accounting methodologies used to assess the areas
discussed below, unless noted otherwise. We believe that our significant accounting estimates involve a higher degree of judgment and/or
complexity for the reasons discussed below.

Customer rebates

We recognize revenue at the net sales price, which includes certain estimates for variable consideration related to customer rebates with
our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. These promotional programs are designed to enhance the sale of our products and consist of
incentives to our customers. The promotional programs include advertising allowances, volume and growth incentives, business development,
product damage allowances and point-of-sale support. Sales incentives are considered to be variable consideration, which we estimate using the
expected value method or most likely amount, based upon the nature of the incentive. Sales are reduced by the cost of these promotional and
rebate programs and we record a related customer rebate liability in our consolidated balance sheets at the date of the transaction. Certain
customer rebate programs are estimates at period end due to the nature of the incentives or expected and yet-to-be announced incentive
programs that apply to current period revenue transactions. These estimates are based on our incentive program experience, historical and
projected sales data and current contractual terms. The remaining portion of this liability is based on contractual amounts and does not require
estimation.

In limited cases where the customer rebate is specifically for co-operative marketing or advertising campaigns, we classify these
expenditures as selling and marketing expenses only if they meet the criteria of being a distinct good or service, are distinct within the context of
the contract and the fair value is readily estimable. While management believes estimated amounts are reasonable, actual results may vary from
our estimates due to uncertainty regarding forecasted volume, product damage claims, or qualifying activities by our customers.

Stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation costs are recognized over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, on a straight-line
basis for awards with only a service condition. The graded vesting method is used for awards that have service and other conditions. Forfeitures
are accounted for as they occur. Stock-based compensation recognized over the service period is based on the grant date fair value of equity
classified awards and is based on the fair value of liability classified at each reporting date through settlement.

Through the date of our corporate reorganization in March 2021 (“Corporate Reorganization”), Cricut Holdings had granted to certain of our
employees common incentive units (“CIUs”), options to purchase zero-strike price incentive units, and incentive unit equivalents (phantom units).
The grant date fair value of CIUs and options to purchase zero-strike price incentive units was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The fair value of incentive unit equivalents which also had a market condition, was estimated using a Geometric Brownian Motion Stock
Path Monte Carlo Simulation, or Monte Carlo Simulation.

The determination of the grant date fair value of the awards issued was affected by a number of variables, including the fair value of Cricut
Holdings’ units, the expected unit price volatility over the expected life of the awards, the expected term of the award, risk-free interest rates, the
expected dividend yield of Cricut Holdings’ units and the likelihood of termination. We derived our volatility from the average historical stock
volatilities of peer public companies over a period equivalent to the expected term of the awards. We estimated the expected term based on the
expected time to a liquidation event or other transaction that would result in settlement of the award. The risk-free interest rate was based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected dividend yield was 0.0% as Cricut Holdings has not paid and does not anticipate
paying dividends on its common units other than a one-time dividend paid in September 2020. Likelihood of termination for the Monte Carlo
Simulation is estimated based upon both historical turnover and anticipated turnover based upon Company or market pressures.

At the time of our Corporate Reorganization, all outstanding awards were settled or modified as described in Note 11 of the notes to our
consolidated financial statements. After our Corporate Reorganization and initial public offering in March 2021, we estimate the fair value of
stock-based awards based on the observable fair value of our common stock, the risk-free interest rate, volatility based upon a blended average
of historical stock volatilities of peer companies and historical volatility of our stock price over a period equal to the expected term of the awards,
and our expected dividend yield.
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Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

We were primarily exposed to changes in interest rates with respect to our cost of borrowing under our Revolving Credit Loan and Term
Loan. We monitor our cost of borrowing, taking into account our funding requirements and our expectations for interest rates in the future. To
date, we have not been exposed, nor do we anticipate being exposed to material risks due to changes in interest rates. A hypothetical 10%
change in interest rates during any of the periods presented would not have had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar and the functional currency of each of our subsidiaries is either its local currency or the U.S. dollar
depending on the circumstances. For foreign subsidiaries where the functional currency is the local currency, assets and liabilities are translated
into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at each balance sheet date. Revenue and expenses are translated using the average exchange rate
for the relevant period. Equity transactions are translated using historical exchange rates. Decreases in the relative value of the U.S. dollar to
other currencies may negatively affect revenue and other results of operations as expressed in U.S. dollars. Foreign currency translation
adjustments are accounted for as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity. Gains or losses
due to transactions in foreign currencies are included in general and administrative operating expenses in our consolidated statements of
operations. As the impact of foreign currency exchange rates was not material to results of operations during 2019, 2020 and 2021, we have not
entered into derivative or hedging transactions, but we may do so in the future if our exposure to foreign currency becomes more significant.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Cricut, Inc.
South Jordan, Utah

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cricut, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for leases in 2021 due to the
adoption of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 842, Leases.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The
Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we
are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the
consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of a critical
audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating
the critical audit matter below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Variable Consideration Related to Customer Rebates

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes revenue at the net sales price, which includes certain
estimates for variable consideration related to customer rebates. The reserves for variable consideration related to customer rebates are
recorded as a liability in the consolidated balance sheets and totaled $37 million as of December 31, 2021. While a portion of this liability is based
on contractual amounts and does
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not require estimation, certain customer rebate programs are estimates at period end due to the nature of the incentives or expected and yet-to-
be announced incentive programs that apply to current period revenue transactions.

We identified the auditing of certain estimated variable consideration related to customer rebate amounts as a critical audit matter. Specifically,
estimated variable consideration for certain customer rebates reflects management's evaluation of contractual terms, historical experience and
assumptions over projected sales data and additional incentives expected to be granted. Auditing these estimates involved especially challenging
and complex auditor judgment due to the level of uncertainty involved in management’s subjective assumptions regarding the expected
realization of these various programs.

The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included:

• Assessing the completeness of estimated customer rebate listings with the Company’s internal sales personnel.
• Developing an expectation for estimated variable consideration and liabilities related to customer rebates using sales data, rebate

percentages per contractual agreements and historical claims data and comparing to actual results.
• Assessing the current and historical accuracy of management’s estimates by comparing customer rebate liabilities to actual settlements

made in subsequent periods and for a selection of liabilities, evaluating whether the Company considered relevant information, including
agreements with customers, historical data, and economic conditions.

• Performing a search for unrecorded customer rebate liabilities at period end by inspecting significant subsequent claims activity.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2012.

Salt Lake City, Utah
March 8, 2022
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Cricut, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

As of December 31,
2021 2020

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 241,597 $ 122,215 
Accounts receivable, net 199,508 162,931 
Inventories 454,174 248,745 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 32,820 4,916 

Total current assets 928,099 538,807 
Property and equipment, net 53,261 33,441 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 17,653 — 
Intangible assets, net 1,520 2,280 
Deferred tax assets 3,255 3,119 
Other assets 2,462 3,753 

Total assets $ 1,006,250 $ 581,400 
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 204,714 $ 251,658 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 69,351 71,324 
Deferred revenue, current portion 30,547 23,518 
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 3,755 — 

Total current liabilities 308,367 346,500 
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion 15,780 — 
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 4,858 2,758 
Other non-current liabilities 3,269 3,217 

Total liabilities 332,274 352,475 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2021. No shares issued, authorized or outstanding as of
December 31, 2020. — — 
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share, 1,250,000,000 shares authorized as of December 31,
2021, 221,913,559 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021; 257,058,262 shares
authorized as of December 31, 2020, 208,116,104 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2020. 222 208 
Additional paid-in capital 717,369 412,741 
Accumulated deficit (43,560) (184,033)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (55) 9 

Total stockholders’ equity 673,976 228,925 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,006,250 $ 581,400 

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.

84



Table of Contents

Cricut, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Revenue:
Connected machines $ 548,205 $ 416,714 $ 198,144 
Subscriptions 205,858 111,337 53,829 
Accessories and materials 552,164 430,979 234,581 

Total revenue 1,306,227 959,030 486,554 
Cost of revenue:

Connected machines 484,025 351,898 176,894 
Subscriptions 21,961 13,125 8,827 
Accessories and materials 342,791 261,633 158,483 

Total cost of revenue 848,777 626,656 344,204 
Gross profit 457,450 332,374 142,350 
Operating expenses:

Research and development 79,814 38,930 26,674 
Sales and marketing 133,963 63,329 40,110 
General and administrative 51,268 29,602 22,005 

Total operating expenses 265,045 131,861 88,789 
Income from operations 192,405 200,513 53,561 
Total other expense, net (32) (1,320) (3,293)
Income before provision for income taxes 192,373 199,193 50,268 
Provision for income taxes 51,900 44,615 11,057 
Net income $ 140,473 $ 154,578 $ 39,211 
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (64) 37 (28)
Comprehensive income 140,409 154,615 39,183 
Earnings per share, basic $ 0.67 $ 0.74 $ 0.19 
Earnings per share, diluted $ 0.64 $ 0.74 $ 0.19 
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 208,833,827 208,116,104 208,116,104 
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, diluted 219,776,069 208,116,104 208,116,104 

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total
Stockholders’

EquityShares Amount
Balance as of December 31, 2018 208,116,104 $ 208 $ 457,380 $ (377,822) $ — $ 79,766 
Net Income — — — 39,211 — 39,211 
Capital contributions — — 1,296 — — 1,296 
Stock-based compensation — — 1,625 — — 1,625 
Compensatory units repurchased — — (728) — — (728)
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (28) (28)
Balance as of December 31, 2019 208,116,104 $ 208 $ 459,573 $ (338,611) $ (28) $ 121,142 
Net income — — — 154,578 — 154,578 
Capital contributions — — 2,452 — — 2,452 
Stock-based compensation — — 4,956 — — 4,956 
Compensatory units repurchased — — (3,038) — — (3,038)
Cash dividend — — (51,202) — — (51,202)
Other comprehensive income — — — — 37 37 
Balance as of December 31, 2020 208,116,104 $ 208 $ 412,741 $ (184,033) $ 9 $ 228,925 
Net income — — — 140,473 — 140,473 
Capital contributions — — 200 — — 200 
Initial public offering, net of offering costs 14,218,815 14 260,675 — — 260,689 
Issuance of common stock upon vesting or
exercise of stock-based awards, net of
withholding tax 121,014 — (2,606) — — (2,606)
Forfeiture of unvested common stock (541,850) — — — — — 
Repurchase upon Corporate
Reorganization (524) — (10) — — (10)
Extinguishment of liability awards to equity — — 10,784 — — 10,784 
Stock-based compensation — — 35,755 — — 35,755 
Compensatory units repurchased — — (170) — — (170)
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (64) (64)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 221,913,559 $ 222 $ 717,369 $ (43,560) $ (55) $ 673,976 

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 140,473 $ 154,578 $ 39,211 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash equivalents (used in) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of debt issuance costs) 19,388 14,116 9,178 
Impairment of trade name — — 747 
Stock-based compensation 38,074 9,484 1,845 
Deferred income tax (135) (2,463) (1,257)
Non-cash lease expense 4,186 — — 
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment (2) — 16 
Provision for inventory obsolescence 5,070 2,802 5,193 
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,096 128 699 
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 162 — 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (37,673) (97,625) (4,876)
Inventories (207,978) (37,979) (73,233)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (27,942) (2,991) 4,550 
Other assets (934) (450) (79)
Accounts payable (46,667) 157,023 10,340 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities 3,639 39,732 7,454 
Operating lease liabilities (4,672) — — 
Deferred revenue 9,128 11,710 4,073 

Net cash and cash equivalents (used in) provided by operating activities (104,949) 248,227 3,861 
Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisitions of property and equipment, including capitalized software development costs (35,786) (21,842) (14,095)
Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities (35,786) (21,842) (14,095)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from capital contributions 200 1,088 1,296 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon initial public offering, net of offering costs 262,007 — — 
Repurchase of compensatory units (170) (3,038) (728)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 272 — — 
Employee tax withholding payments on stock-based awards (2,017) — — 
Payments on term loan — (22,917) (4,417)
Drawdowns on revolving loan — 228,269 502,730 
Payments on revolving loan — (260,862) (487,755)
Payments on capital leases — (81) (127)
Payments for debt issuance costs — (854) (103)
Cash dividend — (51,202) — 
Other financing activities, net (48) (1,318) — 

Net cash and cash equivalents (used in) provided by financing activities 260,244 (110,915) 10,896 
Effect of exchange rate on changes on cash and cash equivalents (127) 92 (25)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 119,382 115,562 637 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 122,215 6,653 6,016 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 241,597 $ 122,215 $ 6,653 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest $ 14 $ 1,306 $ 3,301 
Cash paid during the period for income taxes $ 81,132 $ 42,315 $ 6,652 

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 6,805 $ — $ — 
Refinance of credit facility $ — $ — $ 11,667 

Property and equipment included in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 3,355 $ 2,585 $ 4,245 

Tax withholdings on stock-based awards included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 860 $ — $ — 

Stock-based compensation capitalized for software development costs $ 1,607 $ 253 $ 85 

Deferred offering costs in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ — $ 623 $ — 

Reclassification of liability awards to equity upon modification $ 10,784 $ — $ — 

 Leasehold improvements acquired through tenant allowances $ — $ 936 $ — 

 Purchased unit equivalents issued in settlement of bonus $ — $ 1,364 $ — 

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Business

Cricut, Inc. (“Cricut” or the “Company”) is a designer and marketer of a creativity platform that enables users to turn ideas into professional-
looking handmade goods. Using the Company’s versatile connected machines, design apps and accessories and materials, users create
everything from personalized birthday cards, mugs and T-shirts to large-scale interior decorations. The Company’s connected machines and
related accessories and materials and subscription services are primarily marketed under the Cricut brand in the United States, as well as
Europe and other countries of the world. Headquartered in South Jordan, Utah, the Company is an innovator in its industry, focused on bringing
innovative technology (automation and consumerization of industrial tools) to the craft, DIY and home décor categories. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements include the operations of its wholly owned subsidiaries, which are located throughout Europe and in the Asia-
Pacific region.

The Company designs, markets and distributes the Cricut family of products, including connected machines, design apps and accessories
and materials. In addition, Cricut sells a broad line of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte.

On September 2, 2020, Cricut converted from a Utah corporation to a Delaware corporation. In connection with such conversion, each
share of Class A common stock, par value $0.01, of the Utah corporation was exchanged for one share of common stock of the Delaware
corporation, par value $0.001. On March 11, 2021, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect
a 64.2645654-for-1 forward stock split of its outstanding common stock. The par value per share was not adjusted as a result of the forward stock
split. All authorized, issued and outstanding shares of common stock, additional paid in capital and the related per share amounts contained in
the consolidated financial statements have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the forward stock split for all prior periods presented.

The Company organizes its business into the following three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories
and Materials. See Note 17 for further discussion of the Company’s segment reporting structure.

Initial Public Offering and Corporate Reorganization

The Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 related to its initial public offering (“IPO”) was declared effective on March 24, 2021 by
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and the Company’s Class A common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Select
Market on March 25, 2021. On March 29, 2021, the Company closed its IPO, in which the Company sold 13,250,000 shares of Class A common
stock and the selling stockholders sold an additional 2,064,903 shares of Class A common stock at a price to the public of $20.00 per share. The
Company received aggregate net proceeds of $242.7 million after deducting offering costs, underwriting discounts and commissions of $22.3
million. On April 28, 2021, the Company sold an additional 968,815 shares of Class A common stock and the selling stockholders sold an
additional 150,984 shares of Class A common stock pursuant to the partial exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares
which generated net proceeds of $18.0 million after deducting for underwriting discounts and commissions of $1.4 million.

Immediately prior to the IPO, the Company engaged in a series of related Corporate Reorganization transactions as follows:

• Cricut, Inc. filed an amended and restated certificate of incorporation; and

• Cricut Holdings, LLC, or Cricut Holdings, dissolved and liquidated in accordance with the terms and conditions of its then existing
limited liability company agreement, pursuant to which the holders of existing units in Cricut Holdings (including holders of
purchased units, incentive units, zero strike price incentive units, certain phantom units and options), or the Existing Unitholders,
received 100% of the capital stock of Cricut, Inc., its sole asset, at the time of the liquidation with a value implied by the initial public
offering price of the shares of Class A common stock to be sold in this offering. Cricut Holdings ceased to exist following this
transaction.
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In connection with the Corporate Reorganization the outstanding stock-based compensation awards issued by Cricut Holdings were
modified or settled as described in Note 11 below.

Upon filing the amended and restated certificate of incorporation, all of the Company’s historical Common Stock converted to Class B
common stock. Shares of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Each share of Class B common stock is entitled to five votes
per share and is convertible at any time into one share of Class A common stock.

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States (“GAAP”). Certain prior year reported amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation. These
reclassifications did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements or related footnotes.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cricut, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. For revenue recognition, examples of estimates and
judgments include: determining the nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, determining the standalone selling price (“SSP”)
of performance obligations, estimating variable consideration such as sales incentives and product returns. Other estimates include the warranty
reserve, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserve, intangible assets and other long-lived assets valuation, legal contingencies, stock-
based compensation, income taxes, deferred tax assets valuation and developed software, among others. These estimates and assumptions are
based on the Company’s best estimates and judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using
historical experience and other factors, including any effects of the ongoing pandemic and the economic environment, which management
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances
dictate. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two components: net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income
(loss) refers to net gains and losses that are recorded as an element of stockholders’ equity but are excluded from net income. The Company’s
other comprehensive income (loss) consists of foreign currency translation adjustments from those subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as their
functional currency. Realized and unrealized foreign currency transaction gains and losses included in net income are recorded within operating
expenses. Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) totaled $(0.9) million, $(0.3) million, and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31,
2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include money market funds and are stated at fair value. The Company also classifies amounts in transit
from payment processors for credit card and debit card transactions as cash equivalents.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at original invoice amounts less estimates for credit losses. Management determines the allowance for
credit losses by specifically identifying troubled accounts and by using historical write off experience, adjusted for current market conditions and
reasonable supportable forecasts of future economic conditions, applied to an aging of all other accounts. Accounts receivable are written off
when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are recorded when received. Accounts receivable consist of
the following:
  December 31,
  2021  2020
(in thousands)  

Trade accounts receivable  $ 194,757  $ 161,070 
Other receivables  6,205  2,218 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts  (1,454)  (357)
Total accounts receivable, net  $ 199,508  $ 162,931 

The movements in the allowance for credit losses were not material for any of the periods presented.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents in deposit accounts at financial institutions that, at times, may significantly exceed
federally insured limits. Historically, the Company has not experienced any losses related to such accounts. The Company’s non-interest bearing
cash balances at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were fully insured up to $250,000 per depositor at each financial institution, and the Company’s
non-interest bearing cash balances may significantly exceed federally insured limits.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of trade receivables. In the
normal course of business, the Company provides credit terms to its customers. Accordingly, the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations
of its customers, generally does not require collateral and considers the credit risk profile of the customer from which the receivable is due in
further evaluating collection risk. The Company maintains allowances for possible losses which, when realized, have been within the range of
management’s expectations. If one or more of the Company’s significant customers were to become insolvent or were otherwise unable to pay
for product purchased, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of consolidated operations.
Customers that accounted for 10% or greater of accounts receivable, net as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:
  December 31,

  2021  2020
Customer A  23 %  21 %
Customer B  *  16 %
Customer C  12 %  22 %
Customer D  *  10 %

* Accounts receivable was less than 10%.
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Customers with revenue equal to or greater than 10% of total revenue for the periods indicated were as follows:
  Year Ended December 31,

  2021  2020 2019
Customer A  11 %  * 12 %
Customer B  *  11 %  11 %
Customer C  10 %  14 %  *
Customer D  14 %  14 %  21 %

* Revenue was less than 10%.
The revenue from these customers is associated with the Connected Machines and Accessories and Materials segments.

Supplier Concentration

The Company relies on third parties for the supply and manufacture of its products, as well as third-party logistics providers. In instances
where these parties fail to perform their obligations, the Company may be unable to find alternative suppliers or satisfactorily deliver its products
to its customers on time, if at all. Substantially all of the Company’s products are manufactured by outsourcing partners that are located primarily
in Asia.

We rely on single source, or a small number of suppliers. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company’s top two vendors
accounted for approximately 76% of total finished goods purchases. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company’s top two vendors
accounted for approximately 73% of total finished goods purchases. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company’s top three vendors
accounted for approximately 84% of total finished goods purchases.

Inventories

Inventories, which primarily consist of finished goods, are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value
is defined as estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and
transportation. Assessments to value the inventory at the lower of the average cost to purchase the inventory, or the net realizable value of the
inventory, are based upon assumptions about future demand, physical deterioration, changes in price levels and market conditions. As a result of
the Company’s assessments, when the net realizable value of inventory is less than the carrying value, the inventory cost is written down to the
net realizable value and the write down is recorded as a charge to cost of revenue. Inventories include indirect acquisition and production costs
that are incurred to bring the inventories to their present condition and location. Inventories are recorded net of reserves for obsolescence. Once
established, the original cost of the inventory less the related inventory reserve represents the new cost basis of such products.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while minor repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. Manufacturing tools include tools and molds used in the
production process. Expenditures for tools and molds are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets. We capitalize
certain software development costs in the application development stage in accordance with ASC 350-40, “Accounting for Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use” and upon the establishment of technological feasibility for a product in accordance with ASC
985-20, “Software to Be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations.
Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
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The Company uses the following estimated useful lives:

Computer software, software development costs and equipment  3-5 years  
Furniture and fixtures  5-7 years  
Manufacturing tools and equipment  3-5 years  
Vehicles  5 years  
Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term or remaining life of the asset  

Leases

As described in “Recently adopted accounting standards” below, the Company adopted ASC 842, Leases (“ASC 842”) effective January
1, 2021. Under ASC 842, the Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception by assessing whether the arrangement
contains an identified asset and whether it has the right to control the identified asset. Right-of-use (ROU) assets represent the Company's right
to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of future lease payments over the lease
term. ROU assets are based on the measurement of the lease liability and also include any lease payments made prior to or on lease
commencement and exclude lease incentives and initial direct costs incurred, as applicable.

As the implicit rate in the Company's leases is generally unknown, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the
information available at the lease commencement date in determining the present value of future lease payments. The Company gives
consideration to its credit risk, term of the lease, total lease payments and adjusts for the impacts of collateral, as necessary, when calculating its
incremental borrowing rates. The Company evaluates renewal options at lease inception and on an ongoing basis, and includes renewal options
that it is reasonably certain to exercise in its expected lease terms when classifying leases and measuring lease liabilities. Lease costs for the
Company's operating leases are recognized on a straight-line basis within operating expenses and cost of revenue over the reasonably assured
lease term.

The Company has elected to not separate lease and non-lease components for leases of office space and, as a result, accounts for any
lease and non-lease components for office space as a single lease component, to the extent they are fixed. Non-lease components that are not
fixed are expensed as incurred as variable lease payments. The Company’s office leases typically include non-lease components such as
common-area maintenance costs. The Company has also elected to not apply the recognition requirement to any leases within its existing
classes of assets with a term of 12 months or less.

Legal Contingencies

Liabilities for legal contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties and other sources are recorded when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment can be reasonably estimated. If a loss is reasonably possible and
the loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated, the Company discloses the possible loss or states that such an estimate cannot be made.
See Note 12.

Debt Issuance Costs

Third-party costs incurred to obtain debt financing are capitalized and amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the
debt instruments.

Costs incurred by the lender and paid by the Company for term debt are recorded as a reduction of the debt proceeds (debt discount) and
are amortized to interest expense (see Note 8). Costs incurred by the lender and paid by the Company for the revolver debt are recorded as
other assets and amortized over the term of the revolver using the straight-line method.
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Deferred Offering Costs

The Company recorded deferred offering costs of $1.9 million as other assets on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020
and consist of costs incurred in connection with the Company’s IPO, including legal, accounting, printing and other IPO-related costs. Upon
completion of the IPO, these deferred offering costs were reclassified to stockholders’ equity and recorded against the proceeds from the offering.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived assets, including intangible assets subject to amortization, on an annual
basis or when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered.
The Company regularly evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate possible impairment and relies on a number of
factors, including results of operations, business plans, economic projections and anticipated future cash flows. An impairment loss is recognized
when the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not
recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Any
required impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value and is recorded as
a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and a charge to the consolidated statement of operations. During the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020, the Company recorded no impairments relating to amortized intangible assets. During the year ended December 31,
2019, the Company recorded $0.7 million in impairment within sales and marketing expense on the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations relating to its amortized intangible assets (see Note 6). During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company
recorded no impairments for certain property and equipment (see Note 5).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable. At December 31,
2021, and 2020, the carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate fair values because of the short-term
nature of these instruments.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures at fair value certain of its financial and non-financial assets and liabilities by using a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, essentially an exit price, based on the highest
and best use of the asset or liability. Fair value is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability, the characteristics specific
to the asset or liability and the state of the marketplace including the existence and transparency of transactions between market participants.
The Company estimates fair value for the assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis by
applying the following hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into three levels and bases the categorization within the
hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is available and significant to the fair value measurement.

 • Level I – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets and liabilities as of the reporting date.

 • Level II – Significant other observable inputs (e.g., quoted prices for similar items in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar items in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, such as interest
rate and yield curves and market-corroborated inputs). Pricing inputs are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.

 • Level III – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the assets and liabilities and includes situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the assets and liabilities. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management
judgment or estimation.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and
considers factors specific to the asset or liability.
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The Company’s non-financial assets and liabilities, which include intangible assets and property and equipment, are not required to be
carried at fair value on a recurring basis. However, if certain triggering events occur such that a non-financial instrument is required to be
evaluated for impairment, based upon a comparison of the non-financial instrument’s fair value to its carrying value, an impairment is recorded to
reduce the carrying value to the fair value, if the carrying value exceeds the fair value. The inputs for fair value calculations of intangible assets
and property and equipment, would be based on Level 3 inputs as data used for such fair value calculations would be based on discounted cash
flows that are not observable from the market, directly or indirectly. The key variables that drive the discounted cash flow analysis are estimated
revenue growth rates, levels of profitability, the terminal value growth rate assumptions and the weighted average cost of capital rate applied,
among others.

No long-lived assets were measured at fair value on a recurring basis, and financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were not material at each of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Money market funds are highly liquid investments and are actively traded. The pricing information for the Company’s money market funds
are readily available and can be independently validated as of the measurement date. This approach results in the classification of these
securities as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 for any of the periods presented. As of
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company held $197.8 million and $106.0 million in money market funds, respectively, with no
unrealized gains or losses.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed using the two-class method required for multiple classes of common stock and participating securities. The
rights, including the liquidation and dividend rights and sharing of losses, of the Class A common stock and Class B common stock are identical,
other than voting rights. As the liquidation and dividend rights and sharing of profits are identical, the undistributed earnings are allocated on a
proportionate basis and the resulting net income per share will, therefore, be the same for both Class A and Class B common stock on an
individual or combined basis.

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of outstanding shares of common stock during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of outstanding shares of common stock and, when dilutive, potential
shares of common stock outstanding during the period are determined under the treasury stock method.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives the majority of its revenue from the sale of connected machines, digital content subscriptions and accessories and
materials. The Company markets and sells its products to customers, which include brick-and-mortar and online retail partners as well as users
that purchase from the Company’s website at cricut.com.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

 • Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

 • Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

 • Determination of the transaction price;

 • Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

 • Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to the Company’s customers, in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recorded at the net sales
price, which includes estimates of variable consideration such as product returns, volume rebates and sales incentives or discounts. The
estimates of variable consideration are based on historical return experience, historical and projected sales data and current contract terms.

Taxes collected from customers relating to product sales and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from revenue. The
Company accounts for shipping and handling activities performed after a customer obtains control
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of the goods as activities to fulfill the promise to transfer the good. The Company does not incur significant costs to obtain contracts with
customers.

The following describes the nature of the Company’s primary types of revenue and the revenue recognition policies and significant
payment terms as they pertain to the types of transactions with its customers.

Connected Machines

Connected machines include the Cricut Joy, Cricut Explore and Cricut Maker machine architectures. Payment for sale of products online
through the online channel at cricut.com is collected at point of sale in advance of shipping the products. Payment by traditional brick-and-mortar
retail partners, including their online channels, is due under customary fixed payment terms. The Company’s contracts with customers for a
connected machine contain multiple promises that include hardware, software, unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the
software and access to the Company’s cloud-based services. Determining whether products and services are considered distinct performance
obligations that should be accounted for separately requires significant judgment. The Company’s software used to design, cut and complete
projects can be accessed offline or with the cloud-based services at no charge. When accessed with the cloud-based services, users are also
able to sync projects across various devices. The connected machines are not able to function without the software, inclusive of firmware and the
downloadable software. Together the hardware and software are inputs into providing the essential functionality of the connected machines and
are accounted for as a single performance obligation. Revenue is recognized for the single performance obligation of hardware with essential
software at a point-in-time when control is transferred, which is either upon shipment or delivery of goods, in accordance with the terms of each
contract with the customer.

The promise to provide the customer with unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and the
promise to provide access to the Company’s cloud-based services are both distinct performance obligations that provide incremental benefits to
the connected machines and are recognized using a time-based output measure over the service period as the customer consumes the benefit
of the service each day. The Company estimates the service period since it is not contractually stated. In developing the estimated period of
providing future services, the Company considers past history, plans to continue to provide services, expected technological developments,
obsolescence, competition and other factors. The estimated service period may change in the future in response to competition, technology
developments and the Company’s business strategy.

Judgment is required to determine the SSP for each distinct performance obligation. The Company allocates revenue to each
performance obligation based on their relative SSP. The Company estimates SSP for items that are not sold separately, which include the
connected machines and related software, unspecified software upgrades and cloud-based services using information that may include the range
of prices for the bundle of products and services and the cost of providing the products or services plus a reasonable margin. In developing SSP
estimates, the Company also considers the nature of the products and services and the expected level of future services. SSP of the hardware
and essential software reflects the Company’s best estimate of the selling price if it was sold regularly on a standalone basis and comprises the
majority of the contract value.

Subscriptions

The Company’s paid subscription services relate to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium which provide users access to images,
fonts and projects, which is in addition to the free service of unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and
access to the Company’s cloud-based services noted above. The paid subscription services are offered on a month-to-month or annual basis.
Payments for subscription services are due month-to-month or annually in advance. Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium are generally sold
in standalone contracts and reallocations are not required. Revenue related to subscriptions is recognized ratably over the length of the
subscription using a time-based output measure as the customer consumes the benefit of the service each day.

Accessories and Materials

The Company also sells accessories and materials (both physical and digital) which generally consist of a single performance obligation
and reallocations are not required. Revenue from accessories and materials is recognized at a point-in-time when control is transferred, either
upon shipment or delivery of goods, in accordance with the terms of each contract with the customer, or in the case of digital goods, at a point-in-
time when the goods are made available to the customer. Payment for sale of accessories and materials through the online channel at
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cricut.com is collected at point of sale in advance of shipping the products. Payment by traditional brick-and-mortar retail partners, including their
online channels, is due under customary fixed payment terms.

Cost of Revenue

Connected Machines

Cost of revenue related to Connected Machines consists of product costs, including costs of contract manufacturers for production,
inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other applicable importing costs, warranty
replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and royalties.

Subscriptions

Cost of revenue related to Subscriptions consists primarily of hosting fees, digital content costs, amortization of capitalized software
development costs and software maintenance costs.

Accessories and Materials

Costs of revenue related to Accessories and Materials consists of product costs, including costs of components, costs of contract
manufacturers for production, inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other applicable
importing costs, warranty replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and royalties.

Customer Rebates

The Company recognizes revenue at the net sales price, which includes certain estimates for variable consideration related to customer
rebates with our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. These promotional programs are designed to enhance the sale of the Company’s
products and consist of incentives to the Company’s customers. The promotional programs include advertising and product damage allowances,
volume/growth and business development incentives and point-of-sale support. Sales incentives are considered to be variable consideration,
which the Company estimates using the expected value method or most likely amount, based upon the nature of the incentive. Sales are reduced
by the cost of these promotional and rebate programs and the Company records a related customer rebate liability in its consolidated balance
sheets at the date of the transaction. Certain customer rebate programs are estimates at period end due to the nature of the incentives or
expected and yet-to-be announced incentive programs that apply to current period revenue transactions. These estimates are based on the
Company’s incentive program experience, historical and projected sales data and current contractual terms. The remaining portion of this liability
is based on contractual amounts and does not require estimation.

In limited cases where the customer rebate is specifically for co-operative marketing or advertising campaigns, the Company classifies
these expenditures as selling and marketing expenses only if they meet the criteria of being a distinct good or service, are distinct within the
context of the contract and the fair value is readily estimable.

Sales Refund Liability

The Company provides its customers a limited right of return with the sale of its products. The Company estimates sales returns and
records reserves at the time the related sales are recorded based on historical data and current economic trends. Actual sales returns could differ
from these estimates. The Company regularly assesses and adjusts the estimate of accrued sales returns by updating the return rates for actual
trends and projected costs. The Company classifies the estimated sales returns as a current liability as they are expected to be paid out in less
than one year using the expected-value method. The estimated sales returns are recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time of sale and
recorded as a liability on the consolidated balance sheets. At the same time this is recorded, a right of recovery asset is also recorded within
inventory.
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Changes in the reserve for sales refunds were as follows:

  December 31,
  2021  2020
(in thousands)  

Balance at beginning of period  $ 3,515  $ 941 
Additions that reduced net revenue  15,889  8,664 
Deductions from reserves for current year returns  (11,578)  (6,090)
Balance at end of period  $ 7,826 $ 3,515 

Warranty Reserves

The Company provides an assurance-type limited warranty on most of the products sold. The estimated warranty costs, which are
expensed at the time of sale and included in cost of revenue, are based on the results of product testing, industry and historical trends and
warranty claim rates incurred and are adjusted for any current or expected trends as appropriate. Actual warranty claim costs could differ from
these estimates. The Company regularly assesses and adjusts the estimate of accrued warranty claims by updating claims rates for actual trends
and projected claim costs.

Changes in the reserve for product warranties were as follows:
  December 31,
  2021  2020
(in thousands)  

Warranty reserve, beginning of period  $ 1,284  $ 633 
Additions charged to cost of revenue  7,261  2,683 
Repairs and replacements  (6,147)  (2,032)
Warranty reserve, end of period  $ 2,398 $ 1,284 

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and
assets for the expected future income tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. As such, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial carrying amounts
and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.
On a periodic basis, the Company assesses the probability that its deferred tax assets, if any, will be recovered. If after evaluating all of the
positive and negative evidence, a conclusion is made that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
recovered, a valuation allowance is provided by a charge to tax expense to reserve the portion of the deferred tax assets which are not expected
to be realized.

Under literature related to uncertain tax provisions, the Company reviews its filing positions for all open tax years in all U.S. federal and
state jurisdictions where the Company is required to file. The Company recognizes a liability for each uncertain tax position at the amount
estimated to be required to settle the issues.

The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. For the years
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, interest or penalties related to income tax matters included in the provision for income taxes have not
been material.

Sales Taxes

South Dakota v. Wayfair is a U.S. Supreme Court case that was decided on June 21, 2018 that nullified the physical presence precedent
established by Quill Corp. v North Dakota in 1992. The overarching effect of the Wayfair case was that state governments were given the power
to impose sales tax on the shipment of goods to customers located within their state boundary even if the seller did not have a physical presence
within the state. As such, the Company is required by certain governmental authorities to collect sales taxes on certain transactions. The
Company currently collects and reports on sales tax in all states in which it does business. However, the application of existing,

98



Table of Contents

new or revised taxes on our business, in particular, sales taxes, VAT and similar taxes would likely increase the cost of doing business online and
decrease the attractiveness of selling products over the Internet. The application of these taxes on our business could also create significant
increases in internal costs necessary to capture data and collect and remit taxes. There have been, and will continue to be, substantial ongoing
costs associated with complying with the various indirect tax requirements in the numerous markets in which we conduct or will conduct
business. The Company conducts ongoing analysis on state sales tax nexus regulations to determine where collection is necessary. The
Company accounts for sales taxes as part of accrued expenses and excludes them from revenue.

Stock-Based and Stock-Equivalent Compensation

The Company records compensation expense for all stock-based awards granted based on the fair value of the award at the time of the
grant. Stock-based compensation costs are recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, on a
straight-line basis for awards with only a service condition. The graded vesting method is used for awards that have service and other conditions.
For awards subject to performance vesting conditions, expense is recognized for the awards if it is probable the performance conditions will be
met. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur.

The Company estimates the fair value of awards with time-based or performance-based vesting provisions using the Black-Scholes
method. The fair value of awards subject to market conditions prior to the Corporate Reorganization was estimated using a Monte Carlo
Simulation. The determination of the grant date fair value of the awards issued is affected by a number of variables, including the fair value of the
underlying shares or units, the expected price volatility over the expected life of the awards, the expected term of the award, risk-free interest
rates, the expected dividend yield of the underlying shares or units and the likelihood of termination.

The Company has limited publicly available stock information and therefore, used the historical volatility of the stock price of similar publicly
traded peer companies prior to its IPO in March 2021, and a blended average of average historical stock volatilities of peer companies and
historical volatility of the Company's stock price for valuations subsequent to the IPO. The Company estimates the expected term using the
simplified method for “plain vanilla” stock option awards or based on the expected time to a liquidation event or other transaction that would result
in settlement of other awards. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected dividend
yield is 0.0% as the Company does not anticipate paying dividends, and the Company and its former parent, Cricut Holdings, have not paid
dividends other than a one-time dividend paid in 2020. Likelihood of termination for the Monte Carlo Simulation is estimated based upon both
historical turnover and anticipated turnover based upon Company or market pressures.

Prior to the Corporate Reorganization, the Company’s former parent Cricut Holdings issued stock-based awards to employees of the
Company. As the awards were issued by Cricut Holdings, the Company recorded a capital contribution from Cricut Holdings commensurate with
the amount of compensation expense recognized in relation to the awards.

Incentive unit equivalents (phantom units) granted by Cricut Holdings to the Company’s employees entitled the recipient to future
compensation based upon satisfaction of service conditions and were liability classified. The amount of compensation was determined by the
change in the underlying value of Cricut Holdings common units. Since the awards also had a market condition, the Company recorded stock-
based compensation expense over the requisite service period using the graded vesting method. The incentive unit equivalent awards were
recorded at fair value and re-measured at fair value at each reporting period during the period from the date of grant through the settlement date.
The impact of fair value re-measurement was recognized as compensation cost over the requisite service period.

Common Unit Valuations

Fair value of the underlying common units of Cricut Holdings was historically determined by Cricut Holdings’ Board of Managers (“Board of
Managers”) on the date of grant for all awards granted. In the absence of a public trading market, the Board of Managers, with input from
management, exercised significant judgment and consider numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the fair value of Cricut
Holdings’ common units as of the date of each award grant, including:

 • relevant precedent transactions involving Cricut Holdings’ capital units;

 • Cricut Holdings’ actual consolidated operating and financial performance;
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 • current business conditions and projections;

 • Cricut Holdings’ stage of development;

 • the likelihood and timing of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering, given prevailing market conditions;

 • any adjustment necessary to recognize a lack of marketability of the common units;

 • the market performance of comparable publicly traded companies; and

 • U.S. and global capital market conditions.

In addition, Cricut Holdings’ Board of Managers considered the independent valuations completed by a third-party valuation consultant.
The valuations of Cricut Holdings’ common units were determined in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Practice Aid, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation.

Shipping and Handling Revenue and Expenses

Shipping and handling revenue for orders placed by customers is recognized at the time of the sale. Shipping and handling expenses
incurred by the Company related to these sales are considered fulfillment costs and reported as costs of revenue at the time of the sale.

Advertising Costs

The Company incurs advertising costs associated with print, digital and other related broadcast advertisements. Advertising costs are
expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $45.1 million, $15.5 million, and
$4.2 million respectively. Advertising costs include expenditures for shared advertising costs that the Company incurs under its co-operative
advertising programs to the extent the fair value of the distinct good or service can reasonably be estimated.

Research and Development (“R&D”)

R&D expense consists of costs associated primarily with engineering, product development, quality assurance, service fees incurred by
contracting with vendors and allocated overhead costs. R&D costs are expensed as incurred.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Recently adopted accounting standards

In February 2016 the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (“ASU 2016-02” or “Topic 842”). ASU 2016-02 amends a number of aspects of
lease accounting, including requiring lessees to recognize leases with a term greater than one year as a right-of-use asset and corresponding
liability, measured at the present value of the lease payments. On January 1, 2021, the Company adopted Topic 842 using the modified
retrospective approach. Results for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 are presented under Topic 842. No prior period amounts were
adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with previous lease guidance, ASC Topic 840, Leases.

The new standard provides a number of optional practical expedients in transition. The Company elected the practical expedients to not
reassess its prior conclusions about lease identification under the new standard, to not reassess lease classification, to not reassess initial direct
costs, and to use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the Company's right-of-use assets.
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The impact of the adoption of Topic 842 on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of January 1, 2021 was as follows:

As reported December 31, 2020
Adjustments due to the
adoption of Topic 842 As adjusted January 1, 2021

(in thousands)
Assets:

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ — $ 15,036 $ 15,036 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets: — 

Prepaid rent 9 (9) — 
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Operating lease liabilities - current — 3,918 3,918 
Deferred rent 2,376 (2,376) — 
Operating lease liabilities - non-current $ — $ 13,485 $ 13,485 

The adjustments due to the adoption of Topic 842 related to the recognition of operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease
liabilities for the existing operating leases. The adoption of the new standard did not have an impact on the Company's beginning equity,
statement of operations or cash flows.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, “Financial Instruments – Credit Losses” (Topic 326). ASU 2016-13 modifies the
measurement of expected credit losses of certain financial instruments, requiring entities to estimate an expected lifetime credit loss on financial
assets. For available-for-sale debt securities in unrealized loss positions, ASU 2016-13 requires allowances to be recorded instead of reducing
the amortized cost of the investment. ASU 2016-13 became effective on January 1, 2021. The adoption of ASU 2016-13 did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, “Income Taxes” (Topic 740). ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions for
investments, intraperiod allocations and interim calculations and adds guidance to reduce complexity in accounting for income taxes. The
Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2021. The adoption of ASU 2019-12 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other – Internal Use Software (Subtopic 350-40) –
Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That is a Service Contract, which aligns the
accounting for implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the accounting for implementation costs
incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software under ASC 350-40, in order to determine which costs to capitalize and recognize as an asset
and which costs to expense. The Company adopted this standard on a prospective basis effective January 1, 2021. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Company capitalized $1.4 million of implementation costs under this standard primarily related to the implementation of
additional accounting and financial reporting tools. These costs are recorded within other assets in the consolidated balance sheets and
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the associated hosting arrangement. Amortization of implementation costs during the year
ended December 31, 2021 was not significant.

3. Revenue and Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue relates to performance obligations for which payments have been received from the customer prior to revenue
recognition. Deferred revenue primarily consists of deferred subscription-based services. Deferred revenue also includes amounts allocated to
the unspecified upgrades and enhancements and the Company’s cloud-based services. The Company had no material contract assets.
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The following table summarizes the changes in the deferred revenue balance for the periods indicated:

December 31,
2021 2020

(in thousands)
Deferred revenue, beginning of period $ 26,276 $ 14,566 
Recognition of revenue included in beginning of period

deferred revenue (23,518) (13,188)
Revenue deferred, net of revenue recognized on contracts in

the respective period 32,647 24,898 
Deferred revenue, end of period $ 35,405 $ 26,276 

As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations was equal to the
deferred revenue balance.

The Company expects the following recognition of deferred revenue as of December 31, 2021:

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2023 2024 Total

(in thousands)
Revenue expected to be recognized $ 30,547 $ 3,564 $ 1,294 $ 35,405 

The Company’s revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by major product lines, excluding sales-based taxes, are included in
Note 17.

Revenue recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021 related to performance obligations satisfied or partially satisfied in prior
periods was $2.3 million.

The following table presents the total revenue by geography based on the ship-to address for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands)
North America $ 1,157,679 $ 888,266 $ 469,110 
International 148,548 70,764 17,444 

Total revenue $ 1,306,227 $ 959,030 $ 486,554 

North America revenue consists of revenues from the United States and Canada. United States represents 96%, 98%, and 98% of North
America revenue for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively.

4. Inventories

Inventories of finished goods are comprised of the following:

December 31,
2021 2020

(in thousands)
Raw Materials $ 20,187 $ 714 
Finished goods 433,987 248,031 

Total Inventories $ 454,174 $ 248,745 
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5. Property and Equipment

The composition of property and equipment is as follows:
  December 31,

  2021 2020
(in thousands)  

Computer software, software development costs and equipment  $ 70,663 $ 50,242 
Furniture and fixtures  5,243 5,184 
Leasehold improvements  4,018 3,587 
Manufacturing tools and equipment  29,753 15,563 
Vehicles  — 22 
Assets under construction  9,118 7,702 

Total cost of property and equipment  118,795 82,300 
Less: accumulated depreciation  (65,534) (48,859)

Property and equipment, net  $ 53,261 $ 33,441 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $18.3 million, $13.2 million and $8.3 million,
respectively. Property and equipment, along with all other Company assets, including inventory, are pledged as collateral on the revolving credit
facility (see Note 8).

6. Intangible Assets, Net

The following is a summary of the Company’s intangible assets in the consolidated balance sheets:

December 31, 2021

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization and

Impairment Net
(in thousands)

Trade names and trademarks $ 42,301 $ (40,781) $ 1,520 
Total intangible asset $ 42,301 $ (40,781) $ 1,520 

December 31, 2020

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization and

Impairment Net
(in thousands)

Trade names and trademarks $ 42,301 $ (40,021) $ 2,280 
Total intangible asset $ 42,301 $ (40,021) $ 2,280 

The Company’s trade names and trademarks have useful lives ranging from 11 to 15 years. Amortization is expensed on a straight-line
basis for all intangible assets, as this is the Company’s best estimate of the period of economic benefit to be received.

The Company performed an evaluation of its intangible assets and determined there was an impairment of $0.7 million during the years
ended December 31, 2019, associated with a product trade name which is no longer in use. These impairment charges were recognized within
sales and marketing expense on the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. Amortization expense of intangible assets totaled
$0.8 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2021, estimated future amortization of intangible assets is as follows:

Amount
(in thousands)
2022 $ 760 
2023 760 

Total $ 1,520 

7. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,
2021 2020

(in thousands)
Sales incentives and rebates $ 36,969 $ 30,295 
Other accrued liabilities and other current liabilities 32,382 41,029 

Total accrued expenses $ 69,351 $ 71,324 

8. Revolving Credit Facility

2020 Credit Agreement

In September 2020, the Company entered into the Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A. and Origin Bank.
The Credit Agreement replaces the prior amended credit agreement with Origin Bank. The Credit Agreement provides for a three-year asset-
based senior secured revolving credit facility of up to $150.0 million, maturing on September 4, 2023. During the term of the Credit Agreement,
the Company may increase the aggregate amount of the credit facility by up to an additional $200.0 million, (for maximum aggregate lender
commitments of up to $350.0 million), subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions under the Credit Agreement, including obtaining the consent
of the administrative agent and an increased commitment from existing or new lenders. The credit facility may be used to issue letters of credit
and for other business purposes, including working capital needs.

The amount that can be borrowed under the Credit Agreement is limited to the lesser of (a) the borrowing base minus the aggregate
revolving exposure or (b) aggregate lender commitments at any given time. The borrowing base is determined according to certain percentages
of eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventory (which may be valued at average cost, market value or net orderly liquidation value), subject
to reserves determined by the administrative agent. At any time that the Company’s borrowing base is less than the aggregate lender
commitments, the Company can only borrow revolving loans up to the amount of the Company’s borrowing base and not in the full amount of the
aggregate lender commitments. As of December 31, 2021, no amount was outstanding under the Credit Agreement and available borrowings
were $150.0 million.

Generally, borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate based on LIBOR (“Adjusted LIBO rate”) or an alternative base
rate (“ABR”), plus, in each case, an applicable margin. The applicable margin will range from (a) with respect to borrowings bearing interest at the
ABR, 1.50% to 2.00%, and (b) with respect to borrowings bearing interest at the ABR (i) if the “REVLIBOR30 Screen Rate” (as defined in the
Credit Agreement) is available for such period, 1.50% to 2.00%, or (ii) otherwise, 0.00% to 0.50%, in each case for the previous clauses (a) and
(b), based on our “Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” as defined in the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement contains financial covenants during the initial year of the agreement, requiring the Company to maintain a fixed
charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0 to 1.0, measured monthly on a trailing 12 month basis. The Company is also subject to this covenant in
future periods if the available commitment is less than the greater of $15.0 million and 10% of total commitment made by all lenders.
Management has determined that the Company was in compliance with all financial and non-financial debt covenants as of December 31, 2021.
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9. Income Taxes

The Company’s income before income taxes of $192.4 million, $199.2 million, and $50.3 million during the years ended December 31,
2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively, consisted of $191.5 million, $199.7 million, and $50.2 million of income earned in the United States. The
remaining amount was earned in foreign jurisdictions.

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to our effective income tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Income tax provision at statutory rate 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
State taxes, net 4.7 2.2 2.4 
Stock-based compensation 2.1 0.8 0.7 
Foreign derived intangible income deduction (1.4) (0.7) — 
Tax credits (2.9) (1.1) (2.8)
Return to provision adjustments 2.3 (0.1) 0.3 
Other 1.2 0.3 0.4 

Total provision for income taxes 27.0 % 22.4 % 22.0 %

Differences between the Company’s effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate relate primarily to state income taxes, stock-based
compensation, tax credits and changes in unrecognized tax benefits during the period.Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets are comprised of the following:
  December 31,

  2021 2020
(in thousands)  

Deferred tax assets:     
Inventories  $ 3,387  $ 4,092 
Deferred rent  —  370 
Lease liability 5,068 —
Accounts receivable  372  83 
Sales refund liability  2,002  816 
Deferred revenue  1,243  640 
Stock-based compensation  4,668  394 
Amortization  149  182 
Net operating loss carryforwards  146  171 
Tax credits  1,003  1,064 
Other  853  1,449 

Total deferred tax assets  18,891  9,261 
Deferred tax liabilities:   

Depreciation and amortization  (11,215)  (6,142)
ROU lease asset (4,421) — 

Total deferred tax liabilities  (15,636)  (6,142)
Net deferred tax assets  $ 3,255  $ 3,119 
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  Year Ended December 31,
  2021 2020  2019

(in thousands)  
Current:  

Federal  $ 44,093 $ 41,900 $ 11,070 
State  7,780 5,132 1,244 
Foreign  162 (125) — 

Total current  52,035 46,907 12,314 
Deferred:  

Federal  (23) (2,492) (1,535)
State  (137) 200 278 
Foreign  25 — —

Total deferred  (135) (2,292) (1,257)
Income tax provision  $ 51,900 $ 44,615 $ 11,057 

There are immaterial foreign net operating loss carryforwards set to expire in 2025. The Company establishes valuation allowances if it is
more likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized. We believe that we will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the
net operating loss deferred tax asset and other net deferred tax assets recorded in our consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the
Company has not recorded a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

As of December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019, $2.8 million, $1.4 million and $1.8 million, respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits would
affect our effective tax rate if recognized. The total balance of unrecognized gross tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
resulting primarily from research and development credits, fixed asset and inventory basis differences were as follows:
  Year Ended December 31,
  2021  2020
(in thousands)  

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year  $ 3,318 $ 3,989 
Reductions based on prior year tax positions  — (1,481)
Additions based on prior year tax provisions  593 132 
Additions based on current year tax provisions  1,431 678 
Reductions due to tax authorities’ settlements (2,824) — 
Reductions due to expirations of statutes of limitation (139) — 
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year  $ 2,379 $ 3,318 

The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. For the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, interest or penalties related to income tax matters included in the provision for income taxes have not been
material.

In January 2021, the IRS completed its examination of the Company’s 2017 tax year. No material adjustments resulted from this
examination. The Company is subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examination for tax years 2016 and forward.
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10. Capital Structure

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization prior to the IPO, the Company filed an amended and restated certification of incorporation
which authorized 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, and 1,250,000,000 shares of common stock, par value
$0.001 per share, which was divided between two series Class A common stock and Class B common stock. All previously outstanding common
stock was reclassified as Class B common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2021, 23,838,863 shares of Class B common stock were
converted to Class A common stock. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had 1,000,000,000 shares of Class A common stock and
250,000,000 shares of Class B common stock authorized and 37,886,660 shares of Class A common stock and 184,026,899 shares of Class B
common stock issued and outstanding. Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Each share of Class B common
stock is entitled to five votes per share and is convertible at any time into one share of Class A common stock.

11. Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based Compensation Cost

The following table shows the stock-based compensation cost by award type for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands)
Equity-classified awards $ 35,755 $ 4,956 $ 1,625 
Liability-classified awards 6,447 5,161 305 

Total stock-based compensation $ 42,202 $ 10,117 $ 1,930 

The following table sets forth the total stock-based compensation cost included in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income or capitalized to assets for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands)
Cost of revenue

Connected machines $ 34 $ 7 $ 2 
Subscriptions 219 31 11 
Accessories and materials — — — 

Total cost of revenue 253 38 13 
Research and development 15,782 3,332 881 
Sales and marketing 13,814 4,794 623 
General and administrative 8,225 1,320 328 
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 38,074 $ 9,484 $ 1,845 
Capitalized for software development costs $ 1,607 $ 253 $ 85 
Capitalized to inventory $ 2,521 $ 380 $ — 
Total stock-based compensation $ 42,202 $ 10,117 $ 1,930 

As of December 31, 2021, there was $125.8 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to stock-based awards which
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.2 years.

Corporate Reorganization and Stock-Based Compensation Modifications

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization, all outstanding awards issued under the Incentive Unit Plan discussed below were
modified by exchanging the outstanding awards of Cricut Holdings for awards of the Company. All service based vesting conditions were
unaffected by the modification. As described below, the vesting conditions were modified for certain awards which previously had both service
and market based vesting conditions.
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All vested equity classified awards were settled in shares of the Company’s Class B common stock previously held by Cricut Holdings.
Unvested equity classified awards were converted to unvested shares of the Company’s Class B common stock subject to future vesting, or in
the case of options were converted into options to purchase the Company’s Class B common stock. All vested liability classified awards
converted into either shares of Class B common stock to the extent permitted in each applicable jurisdiction or settled in cash. All unvested
liability classified awards converted into restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan that will vest into shares of Class A
common stock of Cricut, Inc. to the extent permitted in each applicable jurisdiction or into restricted stock unit equivalents which will be settled in
cash upon vesting as described below.

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization and modification, the Company granted options under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan to
certain employees. The number of options was calculated based on the number of outstanding incentive units or incentive unit equivalents prior
to the modification and the participation threshold of such awards. The vesting terms of the options are also based on the vesting terms of the
original award. Therefore, the Company considered the exchange of the original award for the unvested shares or RSUs plus the options to be a
single modification and will recognize the incremental compensation cost of $14.5 million over the vesting term. Of this amount, the Company
recognized $5.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2021 including a cumulative adjustment in March 2021 to recognize the incremental
compensation cost associated with historical vesting.

As part of the modification of outstanding awards in connection with the Corporate Reorganization, awards issued under the Incentive Unit
Plan which included both service and market conditions were modified to remove the market vesting condition and to increase the participation
threshold of the award to the price specified in the former market condition. In total, 3.0 million, 3.0 million, 1.0 million and 1.0 million awards
which previously had a participation threshold of $2.00, $2.00, $5.00 and $5.00 per share, respectively, were modified to have a participation
threshold of $3.00, $4.00, $6.00 and $7.00 per share, respectively. Incremental compensation cost associated with these awards is included in
the total incremental compensation cost associated with the issuance of additional options to employees described above as this change was
part of a single modification.

These modifications are shown as cancellations under the Incentive Unit Plan and as grants under the activity summarized below.

2021 Equity Incentive Plan

In March 2021, the Company’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan became effective. The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan provides for the grant of
incentive stock options to employees and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation
rights, performance units and performance shares to our employees, directors and consultants and our parent and subsidiary corporations’
employees and consultants. As of December 31, 2021, 20,800,000 shares of Class A common stock were reserved for issuance under this plan
including shares reserved for previously granted awards discussed below as well as shares reserved for issuance of future awards under the
plan.

A summary of the Company’s RSU activity under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is as follows:

Number of
RSUs

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value
(per share)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — $ — 
Granted 5,021,833 $ 23.69 
Vested (224,752) $ 20.00 
Forfeited/cancelled (123,250) $ 24.68 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 4,673,831 $ 23.84 

Options under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan have a contractual term of 10 years. The exercise price of an incentive stock option and non-
qualified stock option shall not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant.
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A summary of the Company’s stock option activity under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is as follows:

Number of
Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Term

(Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — $ — 
Granted 3,419,359 20.00 
Exercised (13,592) 20.00 
Forfeited/cancelled (145,410) 20.00 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 3,260,357 $ 20.00 5.8 $ 6,814 
Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2021 1,379,702 $ 20.00 5.1 $ 2,884 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the total intrinsic value of options exercised was $0.1 million. The weighted-average grant date fair
value of options granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan during the year ended December 31, 2021 was $8.79 per share based on the
following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31, 2021
Expected volatility 51.6 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.8 %
Expected term (in years) 4.9
Expected dividend — %

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization, certain employees received restricted stock unit equivalents (“RSU equivalents”). Upon
vesting, these awards are settled for a cash payment equal to the intrinsic value of the award on the date of the Corporate Reorganization plus
the difference between the Company’s stock price on the vesting date less the base price specified at the time of the grant. Due to the cash
settlement feature, these awards are liability classified awards and require initial and subsequent measurement at fair value. As of December 31,
2021, the total recognized liability for these awards was $0.9 million which was included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities per the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. A summary of the RSU equivalent activity under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is as follows:

Number of
RSU Equivalents

Weighted-
Average

Base Price

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — 
Granted 94,304 20.00 
Vested (13,227) $ 20.00 $ 436 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 81,077 $ 20.00 $ 1,231 
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The weighted-average fair value of RSU equivalents granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan during the year ended December 31,
2021 was $7.57 per share based on the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31, 2021
Expected volatility 80.5 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.4 %
Expected term (in years) 1.0
Expected dividend — %

Unvested Class B Common Stock

The Company’s unvested Class B common stock resulted from the Corporate Reorganization and is not part of the 2021 Equity Incentive
Plan. Activity related to Class B common stock subject to future vesting for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Number of
Unvested Shares

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date Fair
Value (per share)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — 
Granted 14,037,505 $ 20.00 
Vested (2,643,782) $ 20.00 
Forfeited / Cancelled (538,864) $ 20.00 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 10,854,859 $ 20.00 

Options to Purchase Class B Common Stock

The Company’s options to purchase Class B common stock resulted from the Corporate Reorganization and are not part of the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan. A summary of the Company stock option activity for the options to purchase shares of Class B common stock is as follows:

Number of
Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Term

(Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — 
Granted 522,000 $ 9.04 
Forfeited / Cancelled (88,000) $ 9.04 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 434,000 $ 9.04 3.9 $ 5,664 
Vested at December 31, 2021 — $ — N/A $ — 

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options to purchase Class B common stock during the year ended December 31, 2021 was
$13.42 per share based on the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31, 2021
Expected volatility 51.4 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.8 %
Expected term (in years) 5.5
Expected dividend — %
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2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In March 2021, the Company’s 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2021 ESPP”) became effective. Subject to any limitations contained
therein, the 2021 ESPP allows eligible employees to contribute, through payroll deductions, up to 15% of their eligible compensation to purchase
the Company’s Class A common stock at a discounted price per share. As of December 31, 2021, 4,000,000 shares of our Class A common
stock were available for sale under the 2021 ESPP.

No offerings have been authorized to date by the administrator under the 2021 ESPP. If the administrator authorizes an offering period
under the 2021 ESPP, the administrator will establish the duration of offering periods and purchase periods, including the starting and ending
dates of offering periods and purchase periods, provided that no offering period may have a duration exceeding 27 months.

Incentive Unit Plan

The Company’s former parent, Cricut Holdings, authorized an Incentive Unit Compensation Plan (the “IU Plan”) that allowed for issuances
of common incentive units (“CIUs”). The participation threshold of the awards granted under the IU Plan was typically equal to the fair market
value of Cricut Holdings’ membership units at the date of the grant, except zero strike price incentive unit awards which have no participation
threshold. Except as noted below, all awards issued under the IU Plan only had service-based conditions. Per unit amounts in the activity below
are based on the value of Cricut Holdings’ units.

Equity Classified Units

The Company’s former parent, Cricut Holdings, granted CIUs to employees of the Company. These awards vested 25% annually over four
years of service. The Company’s former parent also granted a performance-based incentive unit, which is discussed later. These awards are
collectively referred to as equity classified incentive units. Once vested, all equity classified incentive units remained outstanding until the
liquidation of Cricut Holdings or until repurchased by Cricut Holdings. Upon the liquidation of Cricut Holdings all outstanding awards were settled
or modified as described above.

A summary of the equity classified incentive units activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Equity
Incentive

Units

Weighted-
Average

Participation
Threshold

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 93,371,324 $ 0.97 $ 600,316 
Granted 1,548,223 $ — 
Exercised — $ — 
Forfeited (82,500) $ 1.29 
Cancelled upon Corporate Reorganization (94,837,047) $ 0.95 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 
Vested at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 
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The following table summarizes the unvested equity classified incentive units activity for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Number of
Awards

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date Fair
Value Per Unit

Unvested at December 31, 2020 37,116,025 $ 0.74 
Granted 1,548,223 $ 9.06 
Vested (7,123,673) $ 0.40 
Forfeited (82,500) $ 0.79 
Cancelled upon Corporate Reorganization (31,458,075) $ 1.23 
Unvested at December 31, 2021 — $ — 

The weighted-average grant date fair value of equity classified incentive units granted during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020
and 2019 was $9.06, $1.27 and $0.28, respectively. The total intrinsic value of equity classified incentive units exercised during the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was nil, $2.8 million and $0.3 million, respectively. The total fair value of equity classified incentive units
vested during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $3.2 million, $3.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

The grant date fair value of CIUs granted during the year ended December 31, 2021 was equal to the estimated fair value of Cricut
Holdings’ common unit on the date of the grant as all CIUs had no participation threshold. The fair value of CIUs granted during the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019

Fair value of common unit $ 2.77 $ 0.80 
Expected life (in years) 3.2 3.5
Expected volatility 50.0 % 42.9 %
Risk-free rate 0.6 % 2.3 %
Expected dividend yield — % — %

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued service and market-based incentive units to an employee under the Plan.
The recipient was awarded three million incentive equity units comprised of three distinct tranches each containing one million units. The first
tranche was subject to service conditions wherein vesting of the award is ratable over four years. The second and third tranches were subject to
the same service vesting conditions as tranche one; however, they were also subject to a market vesting condition wherein the fair value of the
Cricut Holdings common units was required to exceed a determined price threshold for two consecutive board meetings or for 100 out of 120
consecutive trading days if the Company became public traded. In the absence of a public trading market, the fair value of a common unit was
derived through a valuation technique allowed under ASC 718. The determined price thresholds were $6.00 and $7.00 for the second and third
tranches, respectively.

In the event of a change in control, all unvested units immediately vest subject to the recipient being employed through the date of the
event and any applicable price thresholds being met at the time of the change in control. In the event the recipient was terminated for cause, all
incentive units, whether unvested or vested are immediately forfeited.

The incentive units represented a net profits interest and only pay out upon the occurrence of a liquidation event such as a change in
control transaction. In addition, the units did not participate until the sum of distributions and capital appreciation of the common units from the
date of grant of the incentive units equaled $5.00 per unit.
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On the date of grant, the Company determined the fair value of this award to be $2.3 million based upon a Monte Carlo Simulation. The
significant assumptions used in the Monte Carlo Simulation were as follows:

Fair value of common unit $ 2.95 
Participation Threshold $ 5.00 
Expected volatility 51.12 %
Risk-free rate 0.24 %
Timing of liquidity event 2 - 6 years
Fair value thresholds $ 6.00 - 7.00
Likelihood of termination 10.0 %

As described above, in connection with the Corporate Reorganization, these incentive equity units were modified to remove the market
vesting condition and to increase the participation threshold to the applicable fair value threshold. The modified awards were then converted into
shares of the Company’s class B common stock subject to the same service vesting conditions.

Equity Classified Options

The Company’s former parent, Cricut Holdings, granted employees of the Company options to purchase zero strike price incentive units.
These options generally vested on a cliff basis upon completion of the service period specified for each award. All outstanding options of Cricut
Holdings were exchanged for options to purchase class B common stock of Cricut Inc. in connection with the Corporate Reorganization. A
summary of option activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Number of
Options

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 1,140,000 $ 4.52 $ 3,283 
Granted 27,027 $ 7.40 
Exercised (27,027) $ 7.40 $ 52 
Forfeited (84,000) $ 4.52 
Cancelled upon Corporate Reorganization (1,056,000) $ 4.52 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 
Vested at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 

The grant date fair value of options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Fair value of common unit $ 8.99 $ 6.24 
Expected life (in years) 5.0 3.5
Expected volatility 50.9 % 52.5 %
Risk-free rate 0.6 % 0.3 %
Expected dividend yield — % — %

Liability Classified Incentive Unit Equivalents

The Company’s former parent issued incentive unit equivalents (phantom units) to various employees under the Incentive Unit Plan. The
incentive unit equivalents paid out upon the occurrence of a liquidation event such as a change in control transaction. In addition, the units did not
participate until the sum of distributions and capital appreciation of the common units from the date of grant of the incentive units equaled a
specified participation threshold per unit. The incentive unit equivalents did not represent any kind of legal equity interest in the Company or
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the former parent Company and required cash settlement. Accordingly, the incentive unit equivalent awards were accounted for as liability
classified awards and required initial and subsequent measurement at fair value.

Initially, during the year ended December 31, 2020, these awards generally vested 12.5% annually for each of the first four years of service
and 50% after the fifth year of service. Following the amendment of these awards in January 2020, these awards vested 25% annually over four
years of service. All liability classified incentive units had indefinite contract terms and, once vested, remained outstanding until liquidation of
Cricut Holdings or until repurchased by Cricut Holdings. Upon the liquidation of Cricut Holdings all outstanding awards were settled or modified
as described above.

A summary of the liability classified incentive unit equivalents activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Liability
Incentive

Equivalents

Weighted-
Average

Participation
Threshold

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 2,851,516 $ 2.13 $ 15,017 
Granted 320,000 
Forfeited (4,000)
Cancelled upon Corporate Reorganization (3,167,516) $ 1.92 
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 

Exercisable at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2021 — $ — $ — 

The following table summarizes the unvested liability classified incentive unit equivalents activity for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Number of
Awards

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date Fair
Value Per Unit

Unvested at December 31, 2020 2,851,516 $ 1.74 
Granted 320,000 $ 8.19 
Forfeited (4,000) $ 6.58 
Cancelled upon Corporate Reorganization (3,167,516) $ 2.39 
Unvested at December 31, 2021 — $ — 

The weighted-average grant date fair value of liability classified incentive units granted during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020
and 2019 was $8.19, $2.01 and $1.01, respectively

The Company estimated the fair value of liability classified incentive units at each reporting period using the Monte Carlo Simulation. The
significant assumptions used in the Monte Carlo Simulation for the periods indicated were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019

Fair value of common units $ 7.40 $ 1.85 
Expected life (in years) 0.3 - 5 years 3 - 5 years
Expected Volatility 51.1 % 40.2 %
Risk-free rate 0.2 % 1.6 %
Expected dividend yield — % — %
Likelihood of termination 10.0 % 10.0 %

114



Table of Contents

For the year end December 31, 2021, the Company estimated the fair value of liability classified incentive unit equivalents upon the
modification or settlement as part of the Corporate Reorganization based on the estimated fair value of the awards received to settle the liability.
The cumulative adjustment upon settlement or modification is included in stock-based compensation related to liability awards above.

Liability classified incentive unit equivalents were included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities per the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets and the rollforward of this liability is as follows (in thousands):

(in thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 25 
Stock-based compensation during year 305 
Purchased unit equivalents during year 30 
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 360 
Stock-based compensation during year 5,161 
Purchased unit equivalents during year 181 
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 5,702 
Stock-based compensation during period 6,041 
Settlement or modification of awards (11,743)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ — 

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The Company is subject to certain outside claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Management is not aware of any
contingencies which it believes will have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

13. Leases

The Company leases office space with lease terms ranging from 1 to 10 years. These leases require monthly lease payments that may be
subject to annual increases throughout the lease term. Certain of these leases also include renewal options at the election of the Company to
renew or extend the lease.

In December 2021, the Company amended its operating lease for its corporate headquarters in South Jordan, Utah to extend the term
through March 2027 and to reduce the annual rent rate for future periods. As a result of this amendment, the Company remeasured the
associated operating lease liability and right-of-use asset for this lease. The Company will also lease additional space at its corporate
headquarters commencing in January of 2022 under the same terms as its existing lease. Lease obligations for the additional space total $4.1
million and are excluded from future maturities disclosed below.

The Company has determined its leases should be classified as operating leases. Variable lease costs are comprised primarily of the
Company's proportionate share of operating expenses, property taxes, and insurance and are classified as lease cost due to the Company's
election to not separate lease and non-lease components. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company incurred operating lease costs
of $4.7 million and variable lease costs of $0.5 million.

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $5.1 million
and was included in net cash used in operating activities in the Company's consolidated statements of cash flows.
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As of December 31, 2021, the maturities of the Company's operating lease liabilities were as follows: 

Operating Leases
(in thousands)
2022 $ 4,305 
2023 4,896 
2024 4,619 
2025 3,437 
2026 2,960 
Thereafter 748 
Total lease payments $ 20,965 
Less: imputed interest $ (1,430)
Present value of operating lease liabilities $ 19,535 
Operating lease liabilities, current $ 3,755 
Operating lease liabilities, non-current $ 15,780 

As of December 31, 2021, the weighted average remaining operating lease term and the weighted average discount rate used to determine
the operating lease liability were as follows:

As of December 31, 2021
Weighted-average remaining lease term of operating leases 4.6 years
Weighted-average discount rate of operating leases 3.1 %

Rent expense totaled $4.0 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

14. Related Party Transactions

For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 the Company received $0.2 million, $2.5 million and $1.3 million, respectively, of
capital contributions from Cricut Holdings, as a result of additional common units issued by Cricut Holdings at the estimated fair value of the
underlying units. The equity offering was purchased by a subset of then current common unit holders of Cricut Holdings and employees of the
Company.

15. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan for the benefit of its employees who have attained at least 18 Years of age. The Company matches
50% of the first 12% of an employee’s salary contributed to the plan on the first day of the month following their hire date. The Company
contributed $2.4 million and $1.1 million years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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16. Net Income Per Share

The computation of net income per share is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
Basic earnings per share:

Net income $ 140,473 $ 154,578 $ 39,211 
Shares used in computation:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 208,833,827 208,116,104 208,116,104 
Earnings per share, basic $ 0.67 $ 0.74 $ 0.19 

Diluted earnings per share:
Net income $ 140,473 $ 154,578 $ 39,211 

Shares used in computation:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 208,833,827 208,116,104 208,116,104 
Weighted-average effect of potentially dilutive securities:

Unvested common stock subject to forfeiture 9,132,579 — — 
Employee stock options 717,772 — — 
Restricted stock units 1,073,093 — — 
Underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares 18,798 — — 

Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 219,776,069 208,116,104 208,116,104 
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.64 $ 0.74 $ 0.19 

The following potentially dilutive shares were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for the periods presented
because including them would have had an anti-dilutive effect:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

Restricted stock units 786,500 — — 

17. Segment Information

The Company applies ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting, in determining reportable segments for its financial statement disclosure. The
Company’s operating segments are generally organized by the type of product or service offered. Similar operating segments have been
aggregated into three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and Materials. Segment information is
presented in the same manner that the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) reviews the results of operations in assessing
performance and allocating resources. The CODM reviews revenue and gross profit for each of the reportable segments. Gross profit is defined
as revenue less cost of revenue incurred by the segment. The Company does not allocate assets at the reportable segment level as these are
managed on an entity wide group basis. As of December 31, 2021, long-lived assets located outside the United States, primarily located in
Malaysia and China, were $13.5 million.

The Connected Machines segment derives revenue from the sale of its connected machine hardware and related essential software. The
Subscriptions segment derives revenue primarily from monthly and annual subscription fees and a minimal amount of revenue allocated to the
unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and access to the Company’s cloud-based services. The
Accessories and Materials segment primarily consists of craft, DIY, home décor products and heat presses including the Cricut Mug Press and
Cricut EasyPress. There are no internal revenue transactions between the Company’s segments.
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Key financial performance measures of the segments including revenue, cost of revenue and gross profit are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020 2019

(in thousands)
Connected Machines:
Revenue $ 548,205 $ 416,714 $ 198,144 
Cost of revenue 484,025 351,898 176,894 
Gross profit $ 64,180 $ 64,816 $ 21,250 

Subscriptions:
Revenue $ 205,858 $ 111,337 $ 53,829 
Cost of revenue 21,961 13,125 8,827 
Gross profit $ 183,897 $ 98,212 $ 45,002 

Accessories and Materials:
Revenue $ 552,164 $ 430,979 $ 234,581 
Cost of revenue 342,791 261,633 158,483 
Gross profit $ 209,373 $ 169,346 $ 76,098 

Consolidated:
Revenue $ 1,306,227 $ 959,030 $ 486,554 
Cost of revenue 848,777 626,656 344,204 
Gross profit $ 457,450 $ 332,374 $ 142,350 

18. Subsequent Events

On January 7, 2022, the Company granted 6,615,000 RSUs to employees and directors of the Company under the 2021 Equity Incentive
Plan which vest in two equal tranches subject to the Company achieving cumulative adjusted earnings per share over eight quarters of $4.93
share and $6.16 per share, respectively.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and to provide reasonable assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Exemption from Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This annual report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial
reporting or an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the SEC
for newly public companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-
15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2021 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, do not expect that our disclosure controls or our
internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the Company have been or would be detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be
faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of
some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is also based
in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving
its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree
of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdiction that Prevent Inspections.

Not Applicable.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be set forth in the Proxy Statement.

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be set forth in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owner and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be set forth in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be set forth in the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be set forth in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV

122



Table of Contents

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules

(a)    The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements: The information concerning our financial statements, and the report of our independent registered
public accounting firm required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein to Item 8.

2. Financial Statement Schedule: All financial statement schedules are omitted because the information called for is not
required or is shown either in the consolidated financial statements or in the notes thereto.

3. Exhibits: See Item 15(b) below. We have filed, or incorporated into this Report by reference, the exhibits listed on the
accompanying Index to Exhibits in this Item.

(b)    Exhibits:

We have filed, or incorporated into this Report by reference, the exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits in this Item.

(c)    Financial Statement Schedules: See Item 15(a), above.

The documents listed below are incorporated by reference or are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in each case as indicated
therein (numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K).

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description Filed

Herewith Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
the registrant

10-Q 001-40257 3.1 May 13, 2021

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the registrant 10-Q 001-40257 3.1 May 13, 2021
4.1 Description of Capital Stock X
10.1+ Form of Indemnification Agreement between the

registrant and each of its directors and executive officers
S-1/A 333-253134 10.1+ March 16, 2021

10.2+ Outside Director Compensation Policy. S-1/A 333-253134 10.2+ March 16, 2021
10.3+ Form of Incentive Unit Award S-1/A 333-253134 10.3+ March 16, 2021
10.4+ Form of Zero Strike Incentive Unit Award Agreement. S-1/A 333-253134 10.4+ March 16, 2021
10.5+ Form of Incentive Unit Subscription Agreement. S-1/A 333-253134 10.5+ March 16, 2021
10.6+ Form of Zero Strike Incentive Unit Subscription

Agreement.
S-1/A 333-253134 10.6+ March 16, 2021

10.7+ Form of Announcement of Bonus Award and Bonus
Award Agreement.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.7+ March 16, 2021

10.8+ Form of Announcement of Bonus Purchase and Bonus
Purchase Agreement.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.8+ March 16, 2021

10.9+ Cricut, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan and related form
agreements.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.9+ March 16, 2021

10.10+ Executive Employment Agreement between the
registrant and Ashish Arora, dated as of March 14,
2021.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.10+ March 16, 2021

10.11+ Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant
and Martin F. Petersen, dated as of March 13, 2021.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.11+ March 16, 2021
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000182896221000011/ex31cricutincamendedandres.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000182896221000011/ex32amendedandrestatedbyla.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex101_111.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex102_105.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex103_112.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex103_112.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex103_112.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex104_108.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex105_509.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex106_510.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex107_110.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex108_109.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex109_922.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1010_924.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1011_436.htm


Table of Contents

10.12+ Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant
and Donald B. Olsen, dated as of March 13, 2021.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.12+ March 16, 2021

10.13+ Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant
and Gregory Rowberry, dated as of March 13, 2021.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.13+ March 16, 2021

10.14 Office Lease, dated as of November 20, 2014, between
the registrant and Riverpark Five, LLC.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.14 March 16, 2021

10.15 First Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of January 6,
2017, between the registrant and Riverpark Five, LLC.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.15 March 16, 2021

10.16 Second Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of
January 18, 2018, between the registrant and Riverpark
Five, LLC.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.16 March 16, 2021

10.17 Amended and Restated Third Amendment to Office
Lease, dated as of March 16, 2018, between the
registrant and Riverpark Five, LLC.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.17 March 16, 2021

10.18 Fourth Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of
December 13, 2021, between the registrant and
Riverpark Five, LLC.

X

10.19 Credit Agreement dated as of September 4, 2020,
among the registrant, the other loan parties party
thereto, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A. and Origin Bank.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.18 March 16, 2021

10.20 Supply Agreement between the registrant and Xiamen
Intretech, Inc., dated August 19, 2018.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.19 March 16, 2021

10.21+ Cricut, Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and
related form agreements.

S-1/A 333-253134 10.20+ March 16, 2021

10.22+ Executive Incentive Compensation Plan. S-1/A 333-253134 10.21+ March 16, 2021
10.23+ Form of Option Agreement. S-1/A 333-253134 10.22+ March 16, 2021
10.24+ Executive Change in Control and Severance Plan. S-1/A 333-253134 10.23+ March 16, 2021
21.1 List of subsidiaries of the registrant. S-1/A 333-253134 21.1 March 16, 2021
23.1 Consent of BDO USA, LLP, Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm, as to the registrant. X

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

X

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

X

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

X
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1012_435.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1013_434.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1013_434.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1013_434.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1014_7.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1015_9.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1016_8.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1017_11.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1018_6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1019_10.htm
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1828962/000156459021006015/crct-ex1019_10.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1020_920.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1021_106.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1022_107.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021013306/crct-ex1023_921.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001828962/000156459021010926/crct-ex211_835.htm
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32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

X

101 SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101 CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase

Document.
101 DEF Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101 LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

Document.

+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

* The certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K and will not be
deemed "filed" for purposes of Section 18 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that the registrant
specifically incorporates it by reference.
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Item 16. Form 10-K Summary 

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Cricut, Inc.

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Ashish Arora
Name: Ashish Arora
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Ashish Arora
and Martin F. Petersen and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, proxies, and agents, each with full power of substitution,
for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact,
proxies, and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection
therewith, as fully for all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact,
proxies, and agents, or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
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Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Ashish Arora
Name: Ashish Arora
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Martin F. Petersen
Name: Martin F. Petersen
Title: Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Ryan Harmer
Name: Ryan Harmer
Title: VP of Accounting, Corporate Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Len Blackwell
Name: Len Blackwell
Title: Director

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Steven Blasnik
Name: Steven Blasnik
Title: Director

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Russell Freeman
Name: Russell Freeman
Title: Director

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Jason Makler
Name: Jason Makler
Title: Director and Chair of the Board of Directors

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Melissa Reiff
Name: Melissa Reiff
Title: Director

Date: March 8, 2022 By: /s/ Billie Williamson
Name: Billie Williamson
Title: Director
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CRICUT, INC.
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

General

The following description summarizes certain important terms of our capital stock. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all the
information that may be important to you. For a complete description of the matters set forth in this summary, you should refer to our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, which are included as exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, of
which this summary is an exhibit, and to the applicable provisions of Delaware law.

Our authorized capital stock consists of 1,350,000,000 shares of capital stock of which:

• 1,000,000,000 shares are designated as Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share;
• 250,000 shares are designated as Class B common stock, par value $0.001 per share; and
• 100,000,000 shares are designated as preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share.

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our board of directors has the authority, without stockholder approval
except as required by the listing standards of the Exchange, to issue additional shares of our Class A common stock.

Common Stock

We have two classes of authorized common stock, Class A common stock and Class B common stock. The rights of the holders of Class A
common stock and Class B common stock are identical, except with respect to voting and conversion.

Dividend Rights

Subject to preferences that may apply to any shares of preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of our common stock are entitled
to receive dividends out of funds legally available if our board of directors, in its discretion, determines to issue dividends and then only at the
times and in the amounts that our board of directors may determine. See the section titled “Dividend Policy” in Item 5 of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K of which this summary is an exhibit for additional information.

Voting Rights

Holders of our Class A common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders and
holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to five votes for each share held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. The holders
of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class, unless otherwise required by law.

Delaware law could require either holders of our Class A common stock or our Class B common stock to vote separately, as a single class, in
the following circumstances:

• if we were to seek to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to increase or decrease the par value of a class of
stock, then that class would be required to vote separately to approve the proposed amendment; and

• if we were to seek to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation in a manner that alters or changes the powers,
preferences or special rights of a class of stock in a manner that affected its holders adversely, then that class would be required to
vote separately to approve the proposed amendment.
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Until the Final Conversion Date, as defined in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, approval of a majority of the outstanding
shares of our Class B common stock voting as a separate class will be required to:

• reclassify any outstanding shares of Class A common stock into shares having rights as to dividends or liquidation that are senior to
the Class B common stock or the right to have more than one vote for each share thereof; or

• issue any shares of preferred stock authorized pursuant to the filing of a certificate as authorized by the Company’s board of
directors.

We have not provided for cumulative voting for the election of directors in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. Subject to
any rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock to elect directors under circumstances specified in our amended and restated certificate
of incorporation, directors will be elected by a plurality of the voting power cast in the election of directors.

No Preemptive or Similar Rights

Our common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights, and is not subject to conversion, redemption or sinking fund provisions.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

If we become subject to a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the assets legally available for distribution to our stockholders would be
distributable ratably among the holders of our common stock and any participating preferred stock outstanding at that time, subject to prior
satisfaction of all outstanding debt and liabilities and the preferential rights of and the payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any
outstanding shares of preferred stock.

Conversion of Class B Common Stock

Each share of Class B common stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holder into one share of Class A common stock. Shares
of Class B common stock will automatically convert into shares of Class A common stock upon sale or transfer except for certain transfers
described in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, including transfers from one Petrus Affiliate to another Petrus Affiliate or
estate planning or charitable transfers where sole dispositive power and exclusive voting control with respect to the shares of Class B common
stock are retained by the transferring holder or to permitted transferees of such transferring holder. In addition, each outstanding share of Class B
common stock held by a stockholder who is a natural person or held by the permitted entities and permitted transferees of such natural person
(as described in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation), will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock upon
the death of such natural person.

Each share of Class B common stock will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock upon (i) the date following March
24, 2021, or the Effectiveness Date, on which the number of shares of our capital stock, including Class A common stock and Class B common
stock, and any shares of capital stock underlying any securities, including restricted stock units, options or other convertible instruments, held by
Petrus Affiliates and their permitted entities is less than 50% of the number of shares of Class B common stock held by Petrus Affiliates and their
permitted entities as of 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on the Effectiveness Date, (ii) the first date after the Effectiveness Date when the outstanding
shares of Class B common stock represent less than a majority of the total voting power of the then outstanding shares of our capital stock
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors or (iii) the time following the Effectiveness Date specified by affirmative vote or written election
of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock.
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Preferred Stock

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of, our board of directors has the authority, subject to limitations prescribed by Delaware
law, to issue preferred stock in one or more series, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series, and to fix
the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions, in each case
without further vote or action by our stockholders. Our board of directors can also increase or decrease the number of shares of any series of
preferred stock, but not below the number of shares of that series then outstanding, without any further vote or action by our stockholders. Our
board of directors may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or
other rights of the holders of our common stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible
acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of
our company and might adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of our
common stock. We have no current plan to issue any shares of preferred stock.

Renouncement of Corporate Opportunity

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, to the extent permitted by law, we renounce any expectancy that a
“covered person” offer us an opportunity to participate in a “specified opportunity” and waives any claim that the specified opportunity constitutes
a corporate opportunity that should have been presented by the covered person to us; provided, however, that the covered person acts in good
faith. A “covered person” is any officer, member of the board of directors or stockholder (or affiliate thereof) who is not an employee of ours or any
of our subsidiaries. A “specified opportunity” is any transaction or other business opportunity that is not presented to the covered person solely in
his or her capacity as an officer, member of the board of directors or stockholder (or affiliate thereof).

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Delaware Law

We have elected not to be governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL. In general,
Section 203 of the DGCL prohibits a public Delaware corporation from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a
period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless:

• the transaction was approved by the board of directors prior to the time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder;
• upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested

stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding
shares owned by directors who are also officers of the corporation and shares owned by employee stock plans in which employee
participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or
exchange offer; or

• at or subsequent to the time the stockholder became an interested stockholder, the business 
combination was approved by the board of directors and authorized at an annual or special 
meeting of the stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 
two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.

In general, Section 203 defines a “business combination” to include mergers, asset sales and other transactions resulting in financial benefit
to a stockholder and an “interested stockholder” as a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years did own,
15% or more of the corporation’s outstanding voting stock. These provisions may have the effect of delaying, deferring or
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preventing changes in control of a company. We have opted out of these provisions. Accordingly, we are not subject to any anti-takeover effects
of Section 203.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaw Provisions

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws include a number of provisions that could deter
hostile takeovers or delay or prevent changes in control of our board of directors or management team.

Dual Class Stock

As described above in “—Common Stock—Voting Rights,” our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides for a dual class
common stock structure, which provides our pre-initial public offering stockholders, including Petrus, with significant influence over matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our
company or its assets.

Board of Directors Vacancies

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws authorize only our board of directors to fill vacant
directorships, including newly created seats. In addition, the number of directors constituting our board of directors is permitted to be set only by a
resolution adopted by a majority vote of our entire board of directors. These provisions would prevent a stockholder from increasing the size of
our board of directors and then gaining control of our board of directors by filling the resulting vacancies with its own nominees. This makes it
more difficult to change the composition of our board of directors and promotes continuity of management.

Stockholder Action; Special Meetings of Stockholders

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, prior to the Final Conversion Date, our stockholders may not take action
by written consent unless the action is first recommended or approved by our board of directors. Further, our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation provides that, from and after the Final Conversion Date, our stockholders may not take action by written consent, but may only take
action at annual or special meetings of our stockholders. Our amended and restated bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders
may be called only by a majority of our entire board of directors, the chairperson of our board of directors, our Chief Executive Officer or our
President, thus prohibiting a stockholder from calling a special meeting. These provisions might delay the ability of our stockholders to force
consideration of a proposal or for stockholders controlling a majority of our capital stock to take any action, including the removal of directors.

Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholders Proposals and Director Nominations

Our amended and restated bylaws provide advance notice procedures for stockholders seeking to bring business before our annual meeting
of stockholders or to nominate candidates for election as directors at our annual meeting of stockholders. Our amended and restated bylaws also
specify certain requirements regarding the form and content of a stockholder’s notice. These provisions might preclude our stockholders from
bringing matters before our annual meeting of stockholders or from making nominations for directors at our annual meeting of stockholders if the
proper procedures are not followed. We expect that these provisions may also discourage or deter a potential acquirer from conducting a
solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of our company.
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No Cumulative Voting

The DGCL provides that stockholders are not entitled to cumulate votes in the election of directors unless a corporation’s certificate of
incorporation provides otherwise. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting.

Amendment of Charter and Bylaws Provisions

Following the Final Conversion Date, certain amendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will require the approval of
two-thirds of the outstanding voting power of all outstanding shares of our capital stock. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
provides that, following the Final Conversion Date, approval of stockholders holding two-thirds of the outstanding voting power of our outstanding
voting securities is required for stockholders to alter or amend or repeal or adopt certain provision of our amended and restated bylaws.

Issuance of Undesignated Preferred Stock

Our board of directors has the authority, without further action by our stockholders, to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of undesignated
preferred stock with rights and preferences, including voting rights, designated from time to time by our board of directors. The existence of
authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock would enable our board of directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to
obtain control of us by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or other means.

Exclusive Forum

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, the sole and exclusive forum for (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of
breach of a fiduciary duty owed by, or other wrongdoing by, any of our directors, officers or other employees to us or our stockholders, (iii) any
action asserting a claim against us or any of our directors or officers arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or (iv) any other action
asserting a claim that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine shall be a state or federal court located within the State of Delaware, in all cases
subject to the court’s having jurisdiction over indispensable parties named as defendants. This provision would not apply to suits brought to
enforce a duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the U.S. federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Our
amended and restated bylaws also provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of
the United States shall be the sole and exclusive forum for any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to the Securities Act. Any person or
entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in our shares of capital stock shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to these
provisions. Although we believe these provisions benefit us by providing increased consistency in the application of Delaware and federal law for
the specified types of actions and proceedings, the provisions may have the effect of discouraging lawsuits against us or our directors and
officers.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our Class A common stock and Class B common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A. The
transfer agent and registrar’s address is 250 Royall Street, Canton Massachusetts 02021.

Limitations of Liability and Indemnification

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions that limit the liability of our directors for monetary damages to the
fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. Consequently, our directors will not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages
for any breach of fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for the following:
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• any breach of their duty of loyalty to our company or our stockholders;
• any act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct 

or a knowing violation of law;
• unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or 

redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the DGCL; or
• any transaction from which they derived an improper personal benefit.

Any amendment to, or repeal of, these provisions will not eliminate or reduce the effect of these provisions in respect of any act, omission or
claim that occurred or arose prior to that amendment or repeal. If the DGCL is amended to provide for further limitations on the personal liability
of directors of corporations, then the personal liability of our directors will be further limited to the greatest extent permitted by the DGCL.

In addition, our amended and restated bylaws provide that we will indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any person who is or was
a party or is threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our directors or
officers or is or was serving at our request as a director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. Our
amended and restated bylaws provide that we may indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by law any person who is or was a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our employees or agents or
is or was serving at our request as an employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. Our
amended and restated bylaws also provide that we must advance expenses incurred by or on behalf of a director or officer in advance of the final
disposition of any action or proceeding, subject to limited exceptions.

Further, we have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers that may be broader than the
specific indemnification provisions contained in the DGCL. These indemnification agreements require us, among other things, to indemnify our
directors and executive officers against liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service. These indemnification agreements also
require us to advance all expenses incurred by the directors and executive officers in investigating or defending any such action, suit or
proceeding. We believe that these agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve as directors and executive
officers.

The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions that are in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and
restated bylaws and in indemnification agreements that we have entered into with our directors and executive officers may discourage
stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against our directors and executive officers for breach of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the
likelihood of derivative litigation against our directors and executive officers, even though an action, if successful, might benefit us and other
stockholders. Further, a stockholder’s investment may be adversely affected to the extent that we pay the costs of settlement and damage
awards against directors and executive officers as required by these indemnification provisions.

We have obtained insurance policies under which, subject to the limitations of the policies, coverage is provided to our directors and
executive officers against loss arising from claims made by reason of breach of fiduciary duty or other wrongful acts as a director or executive
officer, including claims relating to public securities matters, and to us with respect to payments that may be made by us to these directors and
executive officers pursuant to our indemnification obligations or otherwise as a matter of law.

Certain of our non-employee directors may, through their relationships with their employers, be insured and/or indemnified against certain
liabilities incurred in their capacity as members of our board of directors.
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Listing

Our Class A common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CRCT.”



FOURTH AMENDMENT TO OFFICE LEASE
RiverPark Five, LLC/Cricut, Inc.

    THIS AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into as of the ____ day of December, 2021, between RIVERPARK FIVE, LLC, a Utah limited
liability company (“Landlord”), and CRICUT, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Tenant”). (Landlord and Tenant are referred to in this Amendment collectively
as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party.”)

    FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

    1.    Definitions. As used in this Amendment, each of the following terms shall have the indicated meaning, and any term used in this Amendment that is
capitalized but not defined shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Lease (defined below in this Paragraph 1), as amended by this Amendment, and
references in the Lease to “this Lease” shall be deemed and construed to be references to the Lease as amended by this Amendment:

        “Additional Space” means the additional space being added to the Lease by this Amendment, described as Suite 500 on the fifth floor of the Building,
consisting of approximately 24,553 usable square feet and approximately 28,236 rentable square feet.

        “Expansion Date” means the earlier to occur of the following:

(i)    January 1, 2022;

(ii)    the date of substantial completion of the Tenant Improvements (as defined below) being made to the Additional Space; or

(iii)    the date on which Tenant occupies and commences business operations from the Additional Space; provided, however, that
Tenant may not commence business operations from the Premises prior to the date of substantial completion of the Tenant Improvements being made to the
Additional Space without Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, but which consent may
be withheld if Landlord reasonably determines that Tenant’s commencement of business operations from the Premises would interfere with or hinder the
completion of such Tenant Improvements; provided further, however, that after the date of this Amendment, Tenant may store furniture or other materials in
(but, unless permitted to do so under the foregoing proviso, people may not occupy) the Additional Space, so long as such furniture or other materials are stored
in areas approved by Landlord that will not, and shall be moved if necessary in order to not, interfere with or hinder the completion of such Tenant
Improvements.

        “Lease” means the Office Lease, dated November 20, 2014, as amended by (i) the First Amendment to Office Lease (the “First Amendment”), dated
January 6, 2017, (ii) the Expansion Date Certificate, dated September 20, 2017, (iii) the Second Amendment to Office Lease, dated January 18, 2018, and (iv)
the Amended and Restated Third Amendment to Office Lease, dated March 16, 2018, all entered into between Landlord, as landlord, and Provo Craft &
Novelty, Inc., a Utah corporation, the predecessor in interest by corporate conversion to Tenant, as tenant, and, where applicable, as amended by this
Amendment.

    2.    Purpose. The Parties desire to add the Additional Space to the Lease as of the Expansion Date in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in
this Amendment.

    3.    Lease Definitions. Effective as of, and for the period on and after, the Expansion Date, the following definitions in Paragraph 1 (Definitions) of the Lease
are revised to read as follows (and any term used in the following definitions that is not defined in the Lease shall have the same meaning as set forth in this
Amendment), which definitions shall apply to the entirety of the Premises covered by the Lease:

        1.1.    “Base Year Operating Expenses” means the Operating Expenses (as defined in Paragraph 5.1.2) that are actually incurred in
calendar year 2022.

        1.2.    “Basic Monthly Rent” means the following amounts per calendar month for the periods indicated, based on 127,012 rentable
square feet, which amounts are subject to adjustment as set forth in the definition of “Premises”; provided, however, that if the
Commencement Date occurs on a date earlier than January 1, 2022, then the periods set forth below shall begin on such other earlier date that
is the Commencement Date (as memorialized in a certificate entered into between the Parties) and shall shift accordingly in a manner
consistent
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with the definition of “Expiration Date” (with the Expiration Date being on the last day of the relevant month), but in all events, Tenant shall
have an initial three (3)-month period of Basic Monthly Rent at an annual cost of $8.15 per rentable square foot for 28,236 rentable square
feet:

                                    Annual Cost Per
    Periods                Basic Monthly Rent        Rentable Square Foot

January 1, 2022 through            $240,764.44 per month         
March 31, 2022, inclusive

April 1, 2022 through            $284,930.25 per month        $26.92
December 31, 2022, inclusive

January 1, 2023 through            $292,021.76 per month        $27.59
December 31, 2023, inclusive

January 1, 2024 through            $299,324.95 per month        $28.28
December 31, 2024, inclusive

January 1, 2025 through            $306,839.82 per month        $28.99
December 31, 2025, inclusive

January 1, 2026 through            $314,460.54 per month        $29.71
December 31, 2026, inclusive

January 1, 2027 through            $322,398.79 per month        $30.46
March 31, 2027, inclusive

* * * * *

        1.5.    “Expiration Date” means the date that is the last day of the month, five (5) years and three (3) months after the later of the
following, as applicable: (a) the Expansion Date, if the Expansion Date occurs on the first day of a calendar month; or (b) the first day of the
first full calendar month following the Expansion Date, if the Expansion Date does not occur on the first day of a calendar month.

* * * * *

        1.7.    “Permitted Use” means the following only, and no other purpose: (a) general office purposes (including, without limitation, general
office purposes for customer support service and product development), and (b) mechanical testing of Tenant’s products, including, without
limitation, calibration and product testing of electronic cutting machines, heat press products and other electronic drawing and cutting devices,
so long as such testing complies with all applicable laws, ordinances (including, without limitation, applicable municipal zoning ordinances),
regulations and requirements. In no event may the Premises be used as a call center or for telemarketing purposes; provided, however, that the
foregoing portion of this sentence shall not prohibit any typical business telephone communication as normally made in connection with
routine customer service operations of the type currently conducted by Cricut, Inc.

        1.8.    “Premises” means the following:

Suites            Usable Square Feet    Rentable Square Feet

    100             5,450             6,349
150             8,661             10,090
175             4,312             5,024
250             12,617             14,699

 The Basic Monthly Rent for this period is calculated as follows: (($8.15 x 28,236 rentable square feet) + ($26.92 x 98,776 rentable square feet)) ÷ 12 months.

 The annual cost per rentable square foot for this period is $8.15 for the Additional Space, and $26.92 for the balance of the Premises.

1 2
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275             3,714             4,327
300             24,927             29,039
400             25,566             29,248
500             24,553             28,236
Total            109,800            127,012

The Premises do not include, and Landlord reserves, the exterior walls and roof of the Premises, the land and other area beneath the floor of
the Premises, the pipes, ducts, conduits, wires, fixtures and equipment above the suspended ceiling of the Premises and the structural elements
that serve the Premises or comprise the Building. Landlord’s reservation includes the right to install, inspect, maintain, use, repair, alter and
replace those areas and items and to enter the Premises in order to do so. For all purposes of this Lease, the calculation of “usable square feet”
and “rentable square feet” contained within the Premises and the Building shall be subject to final measurement and verification by Landlord’s
architect according to ANSI/BOMA Standard Z65.1-2017 (or any successor standard), which shall be the sole and exclusive method used for
the measurement and calculation of usable and rentable square feet under this Lease, and in the event of a variation, Landlord and Tenant shall
amend this Lease accordingly, amending each provision that is based on usable or rentable square feet, including, without limitation, Basic
Monthly Rent, the Security Deposit, Tenant’s Parking Stall Allocation, Tenant’s Percentage of Operating Expenses and the TI Allowance.

* * * * *

        1.10.    “Security Deposit” means an amount equal to Basic Monthly Rent for the final calendar month of the then-current period
constituting the Term (currently, $322,398.79), which amount is subject to adjustment as set forth in the definition of “Premises.”

    4.    Limit on Occupants; Parking. Paragraph 6 of the First Amendment is revised to read as follow (with all changes in italics and underlined):

6.    Limit on Occupants; Parking. Neither Tenant nor Tenant’s Occupants shall do anything that will increase the number of
occupants in the Premises beyond one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the number of parking stalls allocated to Tenant in Tenant’s
Parking Stall Allocation. If the number of occupants in the Premises exceeds the number of parking stalls allocated to Tenant in Tenant’s
Parking Stall Allocation, then the automobiles of such excess occupants must be parked outside of the Property. On Landlord’s request, made
not more often than quarterly, Tenant shall provide to Landlord statistics and reports regarding shift times and employee counts, and shall
otherwise demonstrate to Landlord that Tenant is complying with the foregoing portion of this Paragraph.

    5.    Tenant Improvements. Landlord shall provide Tenant with a tenant improvement allowance (the “TI Allowance”) in the amount of $859,355.00 ($35.00
x 24,553 usable square feet) for tenant improvements (the “Tenant Improvements”) to be made by Landlord to any portion of the Premises, which may or may
not include the Additional Space, as elected by Tenant. The TI Allowance may be used, without limitation, for space planning, architectural and engineering
fees and permits related to the Tenant Improvements, and the Tenant Improvements shall include, without limitation, the installation of an exterior double door
and the construction of related alterations to the curbing and sidewalk adjacent to such door as well as upgraded electrical and venting systems necessary for the
Permitted Use. The Parties shall exert good faith, commercially reasonable efforts to agree as soon as reasonably practicable on the Tenant Improvements and a
budget therefor. Such agreed on Tenant Improvements shall then be made by Landlord in accordance with such budget as soon as reasonably practicable after
such agreement. The construction reasonably required to complete the Tenant Improvements shall not lessen or otherwise affect Tenant’s rent obligations under
the Lease, as amended by this Amendment. Tenant shall pay to Landlord all costs and expenses incurred by Landlord in connection with the Tenant
Improvements, together with a project management fee of five percent (5%) of such costs and expenses, less the TI Allowance, within ten (10) days after the
date of an invoice therefor, which invoice may, following the Parties’ agreement on such budget, be delivered prior to the commencement of construction. If all
or any portion of the TI Allowance is not used on or before December 31, 2023, the TI Allowance or such portion that is not used shall be lost and shall no
longer be available to Tenant.

    6.    Right of First Refusal. This Paragraph replaces any existing right of first refusal contained in the Lease.

        (a)    During the Term, and provided that (i) the Lease is in full force and effect, (ii) Tenant is not in default under the Lease beyond the expiration of any
applicable notice and cure period given to Tenant in the Lease, and (iii) Tenant has not assigned the Lease or subleased all or any portion of the Premises under
any then-existing sublease (excluding any assignment or subleasing permitted without Landlord’s consent), if Suite 200 (the “ROFR Space”) located on the
second floor of the Building, consisting of 7,178 usable square feet and 8,362 rentable square feet, is or becomes available for lease, and Landlord receives a
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request for proposal from a tenant that Landlord desires to accept to lease the ROFR Space, or sends out (or has decided to send out) a bona fide proposal to a
specific, bona fide prospective tenant to lease the ROFR Space, then Landlord shall give to Tenant notice (the “ROFR Notice”) that Landlord is willing to enter
into a lease with Tenant of the ROFR Space. (For purposes of this Paragraph, any space covered by a renewal, extension or expansion option existing in any
tenant’s lease as of the date of the Lease, any renewal or extension option given by Landlord to any then-existing tenant for its then-existing space, or any right
of first offer or right of first refusal existing as of the date of the Lease, shall not be “available for lease” until after each such option or right has expired.)

(b)    If Tenant gives Landlord notice of Tenant’s interest in leasing the ROFR Space within three (3) business days after receipt of the ROFR
Notice, the Parties shall enter into an amendment to the Lease covering the ROFR Space, which, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, shall (i) have a term
that is coterminous with the Lease, (ii) provide for Basic Monthly Rent for the ROFR Space at the same rate, on a per rentable square foot basis, as is payable
for the balance of the Premises during the period concerned, (iii) provide for a tenant improvement allowance for the ROFR Space on a per usable square foot
basis, determined by multiplying $35.00 per usable square foot by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of full calendar months left in the remaining
Term as of the commencement date for the ROFR Space in which non-discounted Basic Monthly Rent is payable, and the denominator of which is the number
of full calendar months in the original Term in which non-discounted Basic Monthly Rent is payable (sixty (60) months), and (iv) provide that the corridors and
hallways located on the second floor will be deemed usable square footage.

        (c)    If either of the following occurs: (i) within such three (3) business-day period, Tenant either delivers notice to Landlord that Tenant elects not to lease
the ROFR Space, or fails to deliver any response to Landlord; or (ii) Tenant fails to enter into an amendment to the Lease within ten (10) business days after
Tenant delivers notice to Landlord that Tenant elects to lease the ROFR Space, adding the ROFR Space to the Lease in a manner consistent with this Paragraph
6, then such right of first refusal with respect to the ROFR Space shall terminate and be of no further force or effect.

    7.    Right of First Offer. This Paragraph is in addition to the right of first offer set forth in Paragraph 3 (Right of First Offer) of the Rider (the “Rider”)
attached to the Lease, as modified by Paragraph 4 of the First Amendment. During the Term, and provided that (a) the Lease is in full force and effect, (b)
Tenant is not in default under the Lease beyond the expiration of any applicable notice and cure period given to Tenant in the Lease, and (c) Tenant has not
assigned the Lease or subleased all or any portion of the Premises under any then-existing sublease (excluding any assignment or subleasing permitted without
Landlord’s consent, as described in Paragraph 2.3 of the Rider), Landlord shall give Tenant written notice if, but only if, (y) Suite 125 (the “ROFO Space”)
located on the first floor of the Building and currently occupied by Knickerbockers Deli becomes available for lease to third parties, and (z) Landlord elects, in
Landlord’s sole discretion, to lease the ROFO Space for office and not retail purposes. Unless both the foregoing subparagraphs (y) and (z) are satisfied, the
right of first offer set forth in this Paragraph 7 shall not apply. If Tenant gives Landlord written notice of Tenant’s interest in leasing the ROFO Space within ten
(10) business days after notification by Landlord of the availability of the ROFO Space and Landlord’s election to lease the ROFO Space for office and not
retail purposes, the Parties shall negotiate reasonably and in good faith to enter into a new lease (or an amendment to the Lease) covering the ROFO Space,
which may include, without limitation, an extension of the term of the Lease and an increase in the Basic Monthly Rent payable under the Lease. If Tenant fails
to give Landlord such written notice within such ten (10)-day period, or if the Parties, after exercising reasonable, good faith efforts, are unable to agree on the
amount of the monthly rental and other terms and conditions for the ROFO Space within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt by Landlord of Tenant’s written
notice of interest in leasing the ROFO Space, such right of first offer shall terminate and be of no further force or effect with respect to the ROFO Space. On any
such termination, Landlord shall be free to lease the ROFO Space to any other person on such terms and conditions as Landlord may wish, whether or not such
terms and conditions are more or less favorable than the terms and conditions offered to Tenant.

    8.    Security Deposit. Based on the new rentable square footage of the Premises set forth in this Amendment, the amount of the Security Deposit, as set forth
above, will be $322,398.79, increasing the current Security Deposit, which is $137,889.31, by $184,509.48. Therefore, concurrently with the execution and
delivery of this Amendment by Tenant, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the sum of $184,509.48, the additional incremental amount of the Security Deposit, or such
greater amount as is necessary to cause the Security Deposit held by Landlord to equal $322,398.79.

    9.    Enforceability. Each Party represents and warrants that: such Party was duly formed and is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
state of its formation; such Party has the requisite power and authority under applicable law and its governing documents to execute, deliver and perform its
obligations under this Amendment; the individual executing this Amendment on behalf of such Party has full power and authority under such Party’s governing
documents to execute and deliver this Amendment in the name of, and on behalf of, such Party and to cause such Party to perform its obligations under this
Amendment; this Amendment has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by such Party; and this Amendment is the legal, valid and binding obligation of
such Party, and is enforceable against such Party in accordance with its terms.
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    10.    Brokerage Commissions. Except as may be set forth in one or more separate agreements between Landlord and Landlord’s broker, or Landlord or
Landlord’s broker and Tenant’s broker, each Party represents and warrants to the other Party that no claim exists for a brokerage commission, finder’s fee or
similar fee in connection with this Amendment based on any agreement made by such representing Party. Each Party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless
the other Party from and against any claim for a brokerage commission, finder’s fee or similar fee in connection with this Amendment based on an actual or
alleged agreement made by such indemnifying Party.

    11.    Entire Agreement. The Lease, as amended by this Amendment, exclusively encompasses the entire agreement of the Parties, and supersedes all previous
negotiations, understandings and agreements between the Parties, whether oral or written, including, without limitation, any oral discussions, letters of intent
and email correspondence. The Parties have not relied on any representation, understanding, information, discussion, assertion, guarantee, warranty, collateral
contract or other assurance (including, without limitation, one relating to square footage) made by or on behalf of the other Party or any other person whatsoever
(including, without limitation, any real estate broker or agent) that is not set forth in this Amendment, and the Parties waive all rights and remedies, at law or in
equity, arising or that may arise as the result of a Party’s reliance thereon.

    12.    Facsimile, Electronic Mail or Electronic Signatures. Signatures to this Amendment transmitted by telecopy or electronic mail shall be valid and
effective to bind the Party so signing, it being expressly agreed that each Party shall be bound by its own telecopied or electronically mailed signature and shall
accept the telecopied or electronically mailed signature of the other Party. The execution of this Amendment may be accomplished by electronic signature
utilizing DocuSign or any other technology, and any electronic signature (meaning any electronic symbol, designation or process), whether digital or encrypted,
used by either Party shall authenticate this Amendment and have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

    13.    General Provisions. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of the Lease and the provisions of this Amendment, the provisions of this
Amendment shall control. Except as set forth in this Amendment, the Lease (which, by definition, includes all previous amendments) is ratified and affirmed in
its entirety. This Amendment shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding on, the Parties and their respective successors and assigns. This Amendment shall be
governed by, and construed and interpreted in accordance with, the laws (excluding the choice of laws rules) of the state of Utah. This Amendment may be
executed in any number of duplicate originals or counterparts, each of which when so executed shall constitute in the aggregate but one and the same document.
Signature pages may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this Amendment to physically form one document.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signatures on following page]
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    THE PARTIES have executed this Amendment below, to be effective as of the date first set forth above.

                        LANDLORD:

                        RIVERPARK FIVE, LLC,
                        a Utah limited liability company,

by its Manager:

                        RIVERPARK HOLDINGS, LLC,
                        a Utah limited liability company

                        By                            
                            David S. Layton, Manager

                        TENANT:

                        CRICUT, INC.,
a Delaware corporation

                        By                            

                        Print or Type Name of Signatory:

                                                    

                        Its                            
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Cricut, Inc.
South Jordan, Utah

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-254679) of Cricut, Inc. of our
report dated March 8, 2022, relating to the consolidated financial statements which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Salt Lake City, Utah
March 8, 2022



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14a OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ashish Arora, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cricut, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

CRICUT, INC.

Date: March 8, 2022 /s/ Ashish Arora
Ashish Arora
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14a OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Martin F. Petersen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cricut, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

CRICUT, INC.

Date: March 8, 2022 /s/ Martin F. Petersen
Martin F. Petersen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ashish Arora, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cricut, Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Cricut, Inc.

CRICUT, INC.

Date: March 8, 2022 /s/ Ashish Arora
Ashish Arora
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Martin F. Petersen, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cricut, Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Cricut, Inc.

CRICUT, INC.

Date: March 8, 2022 /s/ Martin F. Petersen
Martin F. Petersen
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)


